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Financial and Operating Highlights

MBEREERE

Result B

Revenue WA

Profit attributable to RRTHEBA
owners of the Company FEME =T

Basic earnings per share (HK cents) &A% EAZ R GE{L)

Interim and proposed final dividends  FF A & 3235 A% R HA
per share (HK cents) A& 8 GBI

Financial Position B F AR

Net current assets BB ESFE

Total interest-bearing bank loans

FHRIRITERMERE

Key Financial Ratios FEBEER

Gross profit ratio eSS

Net profit ratio eI B

Return on equity [ ENEIEES

Current ratio BN &

Gearing ratio” BEAMGBHEEO

Operating Statistics EEHE

Throughput (metric tonnes) B2 (AHE)
Nanjing terminal Bt
Ningbo terminal s
Weifang terminal MRS SR

Jetty utilisation rate® e AEe
Nanjing terminal g
Ningbo terminal FRISER
Weifang terminal SRS SR

Notes:

(1) The calculation of the gearing ratio is based on the net bank loans
(total bank loans minus cash and cash equivalents) divided by
equity attributable to owners of the Company multiplied by 100%.

(2)  The utilisation rate is calculated by our record of the annual

actual throughput via jetties divided by the total annual designed
throughput capacity of jetties in relation to the operating period.
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2017 2016

HK$’000 HK$'000 % Change
FET FET B %
241,464 249,898 (8.4)
50,276 70,598 (28.8)
4.12 6.26 (34.2)
3.0 4.3 (30.2)
105,821 230,190 (54.0)
228,583 227,583 0.4
52.0% 53.8% (1.8)
23.9% 32.0% 8.1)
4.6% 7.0% (2.4)
2.3 13.1 N/A 3 F

9.3% 1.9% 7.4
1,502,000 1,493,200 0.6
367,000 337,000 8.9
1,358,000 - N/A T~
29.3% 25.9% 3.4
22.8% 36.2% (13.4)
73.0% - NATEA
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Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the Board of Directors (the “Board”), | am pleased to
present the annual results of Dragon Crown Group Holdings Limited
(the “Group” or “Dragon Crown”) for the year ended 31 December
2017.

SEIZE DEVELOPMENT OPPORTUNITY WITH OUR
STEADY FOUNDATION

In 2017, China has experienced steady economic growth, recording
GDP growth of 6.9%, a total amount of over RMB80,000 billion,
successfully turning the declining trend since 2011. The surge was
attributed to the total import-export trade value which has turned in
2017, with 14.2% increase. In addition, the improvement pace of
economic structure has been surging, making consumption power
the major driving power of economic growth. Besides, the success in
traditional sectors reform and upgrade provided new growth drivers
as the main support for economic growth in China. The added
value of industrial enterprises above designated size in China during
2017, calculated by comparable prices, grew significantly by 6.6%
as compared with last year. Under such economic turning point, the
performance of Dragon Crown was outstanding as compared with
its peer companies. The Group also seized expansion opportunity
by launching and expanding Weifang Liquid Terminal development
projects, which showed the solid foundation of the Group’s business
as well as the Group’s determination in business development.

Dragon Crown recorded revenue of HK$241.5 million (2016:
HK$249.9 million) and net profit of HK$57.8 million (2016: HK$80.1
million) for the financial year ended 31 December 2017. The net
profit declined was mainly due to decline in revenue, increase in tax
expenditure due to the expiry of tax incentive and share of loss of
newly commenced Weifang Joint Venture.
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Chairman’s Statement
EEHRE

Contributions from our visionary management team have been
essential in maintaining the Group’s healthy operation. Having
established a solid business foundation over the years, we were able
to leverage our position as a leading liquid petrochemical storage
and integrated terminal service provider to sustain ties with world-
class chemical enterprises, such as Celanese Corporation, and
other large-scale oil refineries. The income secured from such ties
was in itself sufficient to ensure satisfactory financial results for the
year. Given that the liquid petrochemicals handled by the Group are
applicable to various daily consumer products on the markets, hence
demand will grow continuously from players in the plastics, paints,
textiles, solvents and petroleum industries.

The Group marked our milestone by agreeing with another
shareholder of Weifang Joint Venture, in which each would inject
capital in the amount of RMB70 million, respectively into Weifang
Joint Venture, resulting in increasing the registered capital of Weifang
Joint Venture from RMB400 million to RMB540 million for the
expansion and development of Weifang Liquid Terminal at Weifang
Port. The Group has also entered into additional loan agreements
with Weifang Joint Venture, providing 5-years’ shareholder loans
of RMB63 million to the latter, which demonstrated the Group’s
confidence in the business. Furthermore, the Phase 1 and 2 Bulk
Liquid Terminal Project at The West Operation Zone, Central Port
Area of Weifang Port has already commenced operation, with Phase
3 Project under ground breaking process, the capacity of Weifang
Liquid Terminal will further increase to become a prominent income
source of the Group.

Weifang Liquid Terminal is the highest safety requirements and a
state-of-the-art terminal project that is dedicated to developing for
bulk oil and chemicals storage and distribution business. It is located
at the gateway to North-eastern Asian economic powerhouses such
as Japan and South Korea and the strategic junction between Bohai
Economic Basin and Yangtze Economic Basin. As such, the leading
position of Dragon Crown in China’s liquid petrochemical industry
can be consolidated.
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Looking forward, as the economic environment and global economy
is improving steadily, the Group will maintain stable growth and
performance. We will continue to monitor the cash flows closely to
ensure the Group has sufficient liquidity, so as to maintain a strong
financial position. Besides, we have sufficient funding to support the
sustainable development of the Group.

DIVIDENDS

In recognition of the long-term support of our shareholders, the
Group sticks to the dividend policy as before, an interim dividend of
HK1.5 cents (2016: HK2.0 cents) per share was declared and paid
during the year. In addition, the Board has proposed a final dividend
of HK1.5 cents (2016: HK2.3 cents) per share. The total dividends
per share in 2017 was HKS.0 cents, which represents 72.8% of
the earnings per share attributable to owners of the Company for
the year. The dividend payout ratio is consistent with the Group’s
dividend policy and has kept on maintaining the annual dividend
payout ratio exceeding 50% since listing.

SAFETY

The Group has paid close attention to employee safety and this
has been our top priority for many years. Therefore, all liquid
petrochemical terminals and storages of the Group have to be
approved by the relevant monitoring departments of government.
Furthermore, we provide regular training to all of our staff members,
as well as develop and implement HSE (Health, Safety and
Environment) policies in accordance with national and industry
standards. Due to our upmost attention to safety, we did not
experience any material incidents in 2017. In the future, we intend
to seek further improvements in this area, with the ultimate goal of
providing safe and quality services to our customers.

EXPANDING MARKET OFFERS PROMISING OUTLOOK

We are optimistic about the prospects for the liquid petrochemical
industry. With support from an expanding consumer market for basic
petrochemical materials and petrochemical products in China, we
believe that demand for our services will continue to grow, and we
are ready to satisfy such growth.
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Chairman’s Statement
EEHRE

With our world-class expertise and excellent facilities and services,
we have built a strong reputation and earned the trust of our
customers, which include renowned large-scale multinational
chemical enterprises and oil refineries. Capitalizing on the global
trend for outsourcing logistics arrangements, we see the opportunity
to introduce new cost-effective solutions that enable our customers
to reduce costs, increase flexibility and raise efficiencies as a whole.

The Group’s flagship operation, which is located in the Nanjing
Chemical Industry Park, the Nanjing terminal, has contributed a
stable and high profit to the Group for a continuous period. We also
commit for the continuous upgrading of the terminal and storage
facilities and services so as to better-serve our customers and
maximize our profitability. Besides, the Nanjing terminal has sufficient
land reserve for further expansion and development so that we are
ready to seize the opportunities upon high potential projects with
good investment returns arise.

Also, with the completion and operation of Phase 1 and 2 of the
Weifang Liquid Terminal, the Group has achieved obvious logistic
advantage in Shandong Province. Together with the ground
breaking process of Phase 3 of Weifang Liquid Terminal in progress,
the operation scale and development of the terminal will continuously
expand. We expect that it can contribute remarkable profit to the
Group in the near future. It will help Dragon Crown to enter and
capture the growing opportunities in China’s liquid petrochemical
industry, as well as strengthening the leading position of the Group,
improving the profitability of terminals and creating a valuable
investment opportunity for shareholders. Looking ahead, we expect
to bring more positive changes to the industry.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

On behalf of the Board, | would like to take this opportunity to
express my heartfelt gratitude to all of our business partners,
customers and most valued shareholders for their continuous
trust and support to the Group, and to our dedicated Directors,
management and staffs for their valuable contributions in 2017. | look
forward to achieving further brilliant performance with all of you in the
future, and generate better returns for our shareholders.
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Directors and Senior Management

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. NG Wai Man, aged 61, is an executive Director, the chairman
and the chief executive officer of the Company. Mr. NG is the founder
of our Group and is principally responsible for operation of our
Board and is the key decision-maker of our Group. He is responsible
for formulating the overall business strategic development for our
Group. Mr. NG has accumulated around 29 years of management
and operation experience in the terminal and storage of liquid
chemical products industry. Mr. NG is the founder of Dragon Source
Industrial Limited and its invested entity, Ningbo Haixiang Liquid
Chemical Store Co., Ltd. (the predecessor of Ningbo Xinxiang
Liquid Chemical Store Co., Ltd. (“Ningbo Xinxiang”)), and has
managed its operation since 1988. Mr. NG was the president and
legal representative of Nanjing Dragon Crown Liquid Chemicals
Terminal Co., Ltd (“NJDC”) from April 2004 to 2007 responsible for
overseeing strategic development and management of resources.
From December 1993 to September 2004, Mr. NG was a director
of Ningbo Huaxiang Inspection Co., Ltd, a company which provides
inspection, certification and testing services. He served as the
chairman and general manager from October 1997 to October
2006 and legal representative from October 1997 to October 2007
for Ningbo Free Trade Zone Dragon Crown Chemical International
Trade Company Ltd., a trading company, responsible for strategic
business management. Mr. NG was appointed as a Director on 16
July 2010 and was re-designated as an executive Director and the
chairman on 30 November 2010. Mr. NG was then appointed as the
chief executive officer on 22 September 2017.

Mr. CHONG Yat Chin, aged 56, is an executive Director. Mr.
CHONG joined our Group in 1994. Mr. CHONG is principally
responsible for business and strategic development, major decision-
making and communications with major customers. He has
accumulated around 23 years of experience in the liquid chemical
products terminal and storage industry. Prior to joining our Group,
Mr. CHONG worked for Mitsui & Company (Hong Kong) Limited, an
international conglomerate engaging in various businesses, including
worldwide logistics and financing, development of infrastructure, for
over seven years. He was in the chemicals division and undertook
business support centered around petrochemical products chain
for logistics and distribution. He was also responsible for developing
strategic partnerships and customer relations. Mr. CHONG
graduated from The Chinese University of Hong Kong in 1986 with
a Degree of Bachelor of Business Administration. Mr. CHONG was
appointed as an executive Director on 30 November 2010.
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Directors and Senior Management
EEREREEAE

Ms. CHAN Wan Ming, aged 52, is an executive Director. Ms.
CHAN is responsible for our Group’s day-to-day management,
administration as well as human resources management. She joined
our Group in 1988. Ms. CHAN has accumulated around 29 years of
management and operation experience in the terminal and storage
of liquid chemical products industry. Prior to joining our Group, Ms.
CHAN worked for Wai Hing Company, a trading company, from
November 1986 to July 1988 responsible for arrangements in trading
of chemicals. Ms. CHAN was appointed as an executive Director on
30 November 2010.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. LUO Shijie, aged 72, was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director on 30 November 2010. Mr. LUQO is also a member
of the audit committee, remuneration committee and nomination
committee of our Board. He was deputy factory director of SINOPEC
Sichuan Vinylon Works from 1988 to 1996. Mr. LUO was deputy
general manager of SINOPEC Sales Company from 1996 to 1999,
deputy director of SINOPEC Chemical Department from 2000 to
2008, and director of SINOPEC Chemical Department from 2003
to 2006. From 2005 to 2006, he also was general manager of
SINOPEC Chemical Products Sales Company. Mr. LUO graduated
from Tianjin University in 1968, majored in Precision Instrument.
He obtained the qualification as an engineer from Chongqging City
Government in 1981. He was appointed as senior engineer by
SINOPEC in 1987.

Mr. ZHU Wujun, aged 71, was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director on 30 November 2010, Mr. ZHU is also a member
of the audit committee, remuneration committee and nomination
committee of our Board. Mr. ZHU was the deputy manager of
Sinopec Yangzi Petrochemical Company from 1985 to 1998. From
1998 to 2005, Mr. ZHU was a director and deputy manager of
Sinopec Yangzi Petrochemical Company Ltd. From 2005 to 2006,
Mr.ZHU was the deputy manager of Sinopec Chemical Products
Sales Company. Mr. ZHU was also the chairman of Yangyang
Chemical logistics and Trading Company from 1995 to 2005. Mr.
ZHU graduated from Zhejiang University in 1970 with a bachelor
degree. He has obtained the qualification as a senior economist from
the assessment committee of China Petrochemical Company which
assessed his qualification according to standards set by the State
Council in 1995.
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Directors and Senior Management

Mr. LAU Sik Yuen, aged 50, was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director on 30 November 2010. Mr. LAU is also chairman
of the audit committee, remuneration committee and nomination
committee of our Board. Mr. LAU served as the financial controller
of a subsidiary of NWS Holdings Limited, a company listed on the
Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”) (collectively the “Main Board”) over 3 years and
had worked with PricewaterhouseCoopers for over 5 years. Mr. LAU
served as non-executive director of ZMFY Automobile Glass Services
Limited, a company listed on the Growth Enterprise Market Board of
the Stock Exchange (the “GEM”) from September 2013 to December
2014. Mr. LAU graduated from Oregon State University with a
bachelor degree of science in Business Administration in 1989. Mr.
LAU is a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants as well as a member of the American Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. Mr. LAU has been serving as the chief financial
officer and company secretary of Xinyi Glass Holdings Limited, a
company listed on the Main Board, since April 2003. Mr. LAU has
served as an independent non-executive director of China Qinfa
Group Limited, a company listed on the Main Board since June 2009.
Mr. Lau has also served as an independent non-executive director of
SDM Group Holdings Limited, a company Listed on the GEM, since
September 2014.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. LAU Lai Chi, aged 45, is the chief financial officer and company
secretary of our Group. Mr. LAU has joined our Group since August
2015. Mr. LAU graduated from the Chinese University of Hong
Kong with a Bachelor’s Degree (Honors) in Business Administration
(Professional Accountancy). Mr. LAU is a fellow member of both of
The Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and The
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants. Prior to joining
our Group, Mr. LAU had about 5 years working experience in an
international firm of certified public accountants and about 15 years
of experience in key financial position in Hong Kong listed companies
and multi-national companies. Mr. LAU has extensive experience
within the area of auditing, accounting and financial management,
taxation, corporate and project finance and management.
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Directors and Senior Management
EEREREEAE

Mr. ZOU Qing Long, aged 53, is the chief operating officer of
our Group and a director of NJDC. Mr. ZOU has joined our Group
since May 2004, was the general manager of NJDC and has been
promoted as the chief operating officer of the Group since July
2017, principally responsible for our Group’s overall operation
and business development. Mr. ZOU has accumulated around 15
years of management and operation experience in the terminal
and storage of liquid chemical products industry Mr. Zou’s major
responsibility with the Group includes managing and coordinating
operation workflow, recruitment and training of managers under his
supervision, developing guidelines of operation and maintenance.
He is overseeing operations in our terminals in Nanjing, Ningbo and
Weifang. Prior to joining the Group, he worked in the China Maritime
Safety Administration for 16 years in which he gained valuable
maritime logistics experience. Mr. ZOU graduated from Nanjing
Political College of the Chinese People’s Liberation Army with a
bachelor degree in Economics Management in 2003.

Mr. YANG Ai Ming, aged 56, is the chairman of the board and
the legal representative of NJDC. Mr. YANG has joined our Group
since December 2017, principally responsible for the monitoring
function of the board of directors of NJDC. Mr. YANG graduated
from East China University of Science and Technology in 1984,
majoring in petroleum refining engineering and he joined Sinopec
Yangzi Petrochemical Company Limited, engaging in technical
management duties in the same year. Since 2001, he successively
served as the deputy head of HSE department, the deputy
factory director of refinery, the head of production and operational
management department, the marketing manager, the logistics
manager, the head of production technology and operational
dispatch department, the party committee secretary of quality
inspection center of Sinopec Yangzi Petrochemical Company
Limited, the vice chairman of labor union of BASF-YPC Company
Limited, etc.. Mr. YANG was awarded the title of senior engineer in
1997.
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Directors and Senior Management

Mr. GU Jian Xin, aged 51, is the general manager of NJDC. Mr. GU
has joined our Group since December 2010 as the deputy general
manager of NJDC, in charge of HSE department, engineering
department and administrative and human resources department
and responsible for the coordination and contact with the industry
authorities of customs, state inspection, frontier defense, maritime
affairs, port, safety supervision, environmental protection, fire safety,
park management committee, etc. and has been promoted as
the general manager of NJDC since July 2017, mainly responsible
for the overall operation management of NJDC. Mr. GU has 29
years of working experience in the liquid chemical terminal and
storage industry and has extensive experience in areas such as
project construction, production operation, market development,
government coordination and corporate management. Mr. GU
graduated from Southeast University in Nanjing. Prior to joining
our Group, Mr. GU worked in Nanjing Port Co., Ltd. from August
1989 to January 2004, successively served as technician, secretary
to general manager, manager of engineering and technology
department, manager of development department and assistant
to general manager. He served as the deputy general manager of
Qiltanking Nanjing Co., Ltd. from January 2004 to November 2009.

Mr. LAU Chi Ming, Sammy, aged 60, is the deputy general
manager of NJDC. Mr. LAU is principally responsible for our
Group’s business and new project development of petrochemical
terminal in Nanjing. Mr. LAU has accumulated around 29 years of
management and operation experience in the terminal and storage
of liquid chemical products industry. Mr. LAU was an engineer of
ExxonMobil Hong Kong Limited from 1988 to 2004 and he assumed
management roles in HSE, logistics, operations and maintenance.
Mr. LAU graduated from The University of Hong Kong with a degree
of Bachelor of Science in Engineering in 1979. Mr. LAU was elected
as a Graduate of the Institution of Engineers, Australia on 10 January
1985 and has been included in the list of competent persons for
Class 2-inspection and certification of LPG compound and cylinder
stores by Electrical & Mechanical Services Department, Government
of Hong Kong since 6 November 1996. He joined our Group in April
2005 as a project manager.
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Directors and Senior Management
EEREREEAE

Mr. XIANG Xiao Chu, aged 62, is the general manager of
Ningbo Ningxiang Liquid Chemicals Terminal Co., Ltd. (“Ningbo
Ningxiang”) and Ningbo Xinxiang. Mr. XIANG has joined our Group
since November 1995. Mr. XIANG is principally responsible for our
Group’s overall operational management in Ningbo. Mr. XIANG
has accumulated around 25 years of management and operation
experience of which around 22 years are in the terminal and storage
of liquid chemical products industry. Prior to joining our Group, Mr.
XIANG served as deputy director the factory, division deputy chief of
Human Resource and Security and an office administrator in Ningbo
No.2 Pharmaceutical Factory of Zhejiang Province from February
1988 to October 1992. During the period from November 1992
to September 1995, Mr. XIANG served as an office administrator
handling selection and recruitment of new staff, finance management
and observing compliance of HSE policies of Zhejiang Chemicals
Factory (Yongxin Company). Mr. XIANG has served as a deputy
director and director of tank field, business manager and general
manager assistant in Ningbo Ningxiang and Ningbo Xinxiang since
October 1995. Mr. XIANG completed administration management
course of Self-Study Examination of the Higher Education of Zhejiang
Province in October 1990.

Mr. HUA Zi Ye, aged 48, is the general manager of Weifang
Sime Darby Liquid Terminal Co., Ltd. (“WSDL”). Mr. HUA has
joined WSDL since 2015, principally responsible for the overall
operational management of the company. Mr. HUA has got a
Master Degree in Chemistry from Tulane University in the USA and
a Master Degree in Business Administration from Rice University
in the USA. He has broad expertise within the area of Chemistry
and Business Administration. Prior to joining WSDL, Mr. HUA
was a general manager of Vopak China Management Co., Ltd.
and Odfjell Nangang Terminal (Tianjin) Co., Ltd.. Mr. HUA has
extensive experience within the area of company’s operation and
management.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BUSINESS REVIEW

Dragon Crown is one of China’s leading integrated service providers
that specialized in the handling and storage of liquid petrochemical
products, operating a total of three terminals that are located in
Nanjing, Ningbo and Weifang. Strategically situated in two of the
major petrochemical industry hubs of China, the Group has set
up jetties and tank farms (together, “Terminals”) along the coastal
area to seize the rising demand from the petroleum and chemical
industries. Dragon Crown offers a high quality and comprehensive
range of liquid petrochemical terminal and storage services to
customers through its own jetties, storage tanks and dedicated
pipelines.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the throughput volume
of liquid petrochemical products handled by the Group’s Nanjing,
Ningbo and Weifang terminals reached 1,502,000 metric tonnes,
367,000 metric tonnes and 1,358,000 metric tonnes, respectively
(2016: 1,493,200 metric tonnes, 337,000 metric tonnes and nil
metric tonnes, respectively), with a combined throughput volume of
3,227,000 metric tonnes (2016: 1,830,200 metric tonnes).

The following table provides an overview of the Group’s Terminals
and facilities as at 31 December 2017:

Terminals and facilities

TS 5A K % i

Number of tanks [T

Storage capacity (m3) FREEE (LHAK)

Number of berths YA R

Berthing capacity (dwt) JERzEE T (B EME)

Jetty designed throughput AR AT E
capacity (metric tonnes) (AMg)

*  Comprises three berths with capacity of 20,000 dwt, 20,000 dwt and
5,000 dwt, respectively.

**  Comprises two berths with capacity of 30,000 dwt and 30,000 dwt,
respectively.

Nanjing

210,000
45,000*

4,000,000
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EER - BEREEGHEZE=AHE - &~
SERE RN P EET — X2 AH
EITENRER  EELERET TH
SN R (Fh [ 1558 ) UNIEEA ML T
TEBERBRENF K - ENEBEEAE
B RELEREENEPRESMENR
RErREACEMIBERFFRE

REBZE2017F12A31HILFE - A&EE
RER - B R SRR IR EE Al
mA M &5 B A1,502,000 AW « 367,000
A WE 1,358,000 ME(20164F : 9 R
741,493,200 2 ME - 337,000 2 W 2 T A
ME) - ApGHAME 3,227,000 AN (2016 4 :
1,830,200 M)

TRENMN20175E12 A31 BRI AREBE W
SER R EIE

Ningbo Weifang Total
B i3 et

12 63 107
29,000 497,000 736,000
1 2 6

3,000 60,000"*

100,000 4,000,000 8,100,000

* M ={&%5%20,000FEME - 20,000 HENE
1% 5,000 B EMBRSARL A ©

= —{&% B4 30,000 = EME & 30,000 & E 1A
HISARIZERR ©
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEENWED T

The main source of the Group’s revenue is derived from Nanjing
terminal, the flagship operation of the Group, situated in the Nanjing
Chemical Industry Park. The Group’s major customer, Celanese
Corporation (NYSE: CE), a world leading producer of acetyl
products, also situated in the same industrial park, contributed
HK$219.0 million (2016: HK$220.7 million) in revenue to the Group,
which is equivalent to 90.7% (2016: 88.3%) of the total revenue
during the year. The business operation in Nanjing keeps on steady
as we have established long term relationship with our customers.

The China government has promulgated favourable policies to
liberalise crude oil import and usage in China and has therefore
boosted the growth of the Shandong teapot refinery and
petrochemical industries, resulting in a surge in demand for oil and
chemicals terminal and storage services. The investment in Weifang
Liquid Terminal signified the opening of a gateway to North-eastern
Asian economic powerhouses for the group. With the obvious
geographical and logistic advantage of Weifang Port to oil refineries
and chemical production plants located within its 300km radius,
Weifang Liquid Terminal allows the entrance of vessels with higher
Dead Weight Tonnage so as to effectively control customers’ costs.
As the Phase 1 and 2 Bulk Liquid Terminal Project at The West
Operation Zone, Central Port Area of Weifang Port has already
commenced operation, with Phase 3 Project under ground breaking
process, Weifang Liquid Terminal will become an important profit
generator for the Group. In addition, the completion and operation of
the surrounding railway in 2019 will definitely enhance the flexibility
and reliability of the terminal, as well as more convenience for
customers in the future.

The Group regards Weifang Liquid Terminal as a significant
milestone for our business development. Therefore, the Group,
together with another shareholder of Weifang Joint Venture have
decided to increase both capital injection and shareholder loans
into Weifang Joint Venture for the expansion and development
of Weifang Liquid Terminal at Weifang Port. The operation and
development of Weifang Liquid Terminal will definitely benefit to the
profit of the Group in future and will consolidate the leading position
of Dragon Crown in China’s liquid petrochemical industry.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Dragon Crown is in a strong financial position, with total assets of
HK$1,406.0 million (2016: HK$1,305.3 million) and total equity of
HK$1,139.4 million (2016: HK$1,054.2 million). The Group has cash
on hand of HK$127.2 million (2016: HK$208.1 million) and a gearing
ratio of 9.3% (2016: 1.9%). Such a healthy financial position ensures
the Group’s sustainability.

BUSINESS OUTLOOK

As China economic environment and global economies are
enhancing steadily, with more business opportunities emerging, the
Group is optimistic about the blueprint of the industry and layout
of the business. Looking ahead, with the strong support of the
national policies, the Group is granted the opportunity to ensure
core business and at the same time exploring new market through
our business expansion. The Group plans to continue enhancing its
business development in the coastal regions of China, particularly
along the Yangtze River Delta and Bohai Bay regions, so as to further
expand Dragon Crown’s domestic and even international market.

As Weifang Liquid Terminal Phase 1 and 2 commenced operation,
the Group has officially set foot in North-eastern China and North-
eastern Asia. The Group believes in the great business potential in
the region and is confident that the Group can maintain its leading
role in the new market with the help of Weifang Liquid Terminal, our
most stringent safety requirements and a state-of-the-art terminal
project located at a gateway to North-eastern Asian economic
powerhouses. Together with the construction of Weifang Liquid
Terminal Phase 3, it will become the largest terminal of the Group,
with storage capacity up to a total of 661,000 m®. Several potential
customers are in negotiation for renting the tank capacity in Phase 3
already. In addition, the facilitation of Shandong government in terms
of policy will strengthen our advantage in developing a remarkable
role in the industry.

With advanced operations and a highly experienced management
team at the helm, Dragon Crown is set to consolidate its leading
position as an integrated terminal service provider in China. As it
continues to grow, the Group will remain committed to achieving
more positive financial results and delivering greater value to its
shareholders.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BB WD T

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE REVIEW
Revenue

For the year ended 31 December 2017, the revenue of the Group
was decreased slightly by 3.4% from HK$249.9 million in 2016 to
HK$241.5 million. However, if the actual amount is expressed in
Renminbi, the revenue of the Group was decreased by 2.1% only,
from RMB213.8 million in 2016 to RMB209.4 million. The decrease
was mainly due to the decrease in revenue in respect of spot and
individual ethylene customers.

Gross profit

For the year ended 31 December 2017, the gross profit of the Group
was decreased by 6.7% from HK$134.5 million in 2016 to HK$125.5
million. The decrease was mainly due to the decrease in revenue as
mentioned above. Combined with the effect of decrease in diesel fuel
costs and increase in repair and maintenance expenses, the gross
profit ratio decreased slightly by 1.8% nevertheless remained at a
high level of 52.0% (2016: 53.8%).

Other income

Other income increased to HK$15.9 million from HK$8.1 million in
2016, which mainly due to the combined effect of increase in loan
interest income from a joint venture and increase in net foreign
exchange gains.

Administrative expenses

Administrative expenses decreased by 7.6% from HK$49.5 million
in 2016 to HK$45.8 million. The decrease was mainly attributable
to the decrease in loss on foreign exchange difference. Other
administrative expenses were comparable with those in 2016.
Finance costs

Finance costs for the year increased to HK$5.6 million from HK$3.0

million in 2016 because the Group has drawn down certain new
bank loans since June 2016.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Share of profit and loss of an associate

The associate in Tianjin was going through the liquidation process
in 2017 and the share of loss of HK$0.1 million for the year (2016:
share of profit of HK$3.6 million) was mainly due to the administrative
expenses on liquidation outweighed the gain on disposal of
remaining fixed assets.

Share of profits and losses of joint ventures

The share of profits of the joint ventures in Ningbo increased for the
year due to the savings in operating costs as a result of the reduction
in external storage tanks rental.

For the joint venture in Weifang entered into the Group since June
2016, since it only commenced formal operation in the fourth quarter
of 2017 and was under construction for the rest of 2017 prior to that,
it recorded net loss for the year and the Group had to share its loss
as well.

Since the share of loss of joint venture in Weifang outweighed the
share of profits of joint ventures in Ningbo, the Group recorded share
of loss of its joint ventures for the year.

Tax expense

The tax expense for the year increased to HK$29.3 million from
HK$18.6 million in 2016, despite the assessable profit decreased
for the year. The significant increase in tax expense was due to the
expiry of the preferential tax treatment with 50% deduction in the
corporate income tax of a major subsidiary in Mainland China since
1 January 2017.

Investment in Weifang Sime Darby Liquid Terminal Co., Ltd.
(“WSDL”)

The acquisition of 50% equity interest in WSDL at a consideration
of RMB60.85 million was completed on 23 May 2016 and WSDL
becomes a joint venture of the Group since then. On 20 June 2016,
the Group had injected capital of RMB55.00 million into WSDL in
proportion to its shareholding interest in WSDL.
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BB WD T

On 23 June 2016 and 15 September 2017, the Group had further
committed to inject capital in the amount of RMB100.00 million
and RMB70.00 million, respectively into WSDL in proportion to
its shareholding interest in WSDL. Of which RMB130.00 million in
aggregate had been injected into WSDL up to 31 December 2017
and the remaining RMB40.00 million shall be contributed within 5
years from the issuance date of WSDL’s newest business licence
(i.e., 25 September 2017) issued by the Weifang Administration
for Industry and Commerce in accordance with the articles of
association of WSDL. For details, please refer to the Company’s
announcements dated 23 June 2016 and 15 September 2017.

Loans to WSDL

The Group had provided shareholder’s loans to WSDL in an
aggregate amount of RMB100.00 million on July 2016. The loans
are unsecured, bear interest at fixed rates of 6.0% per annum
(RMB40.00 million) and 6.4% per annum (RMB60.00 million) for a
term of five years, expiring on 14 July 2021 with an option to further
renew for a term of five years.

On 14 July 2017, the Group had agreed to further provide additional
shareholder’s loans to WSDL in an aggregate amount of RMB63.00
million at an interest rate of 6.0% per annum for a term of five years,
expiring on 14 July 2022 with an option to further renew for a term
of five years. On 26 July 2017 and 9 August 2017, the Group had
provided shareholder’s loan of RMB38.00 million and RMB25.00
million, respectively to WSDL accordingly. For details, please refer to
the Company’s announcement dated 14 July 2017.

As at 31 December 2017 and up to the date of this report, WSDL
was indebted to the Group in an aggregate amount of RMB163.00
million.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

USE OF NET PROCEEDS FROM LISTING

The Group has received approximately HK$281.1 million net
proceeds, after deducting underwriting fee and other related
expenses, from listing of the Company’s shares in 2011.

These net proceeds were applied up to 31 December 2017 in
accordance with the proposed applications set out in the section
headed “Future Plans and Use of Proceeds” in the Company’s
prospectus dated 30 May 2011 (the “Prospectus”) and the
Company’s announcements dated 6 February 2013 headed
“Change of use of proceeds”, dated 20 December 2017 headed
“Change in use of proceeds from the global offering” and dated 22
December 2017 headed “Clarification announcement”, as follows:

Construction of second cryogenic ERE2AEE
ethylene tank I e

Construction of our third jetty AR 3 ETEER

Investing into existing projects RENRIAAFIER

Investing into future business RENARRE
development opportunities TRk

Construction of nine general purpose BFRoE—MRA®
storage tanks axd

General working capital —MEEES

The Group held the unutilised net proceeds in short-term deposits
or time deposits with banks in Hong Kong and Nanjing as at 31
December 2017.

FUND RAISING

On 28 September 2016, the Company entered into a placing
agreement with a placing agent pursuant to which, the Company
has conditionally agreed to allot and issue, and the placing agent
has conditionally agreed to use its best endeavours to procure the
placing of, a maximum of 110,966,200 placing shares to a placee at
a placing price of HK$1.25 per placing share.
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BB WD T

Mr. Ng Wai Man (the Chairman, the Chief Executive Officer, an
executive director and the controlling shareholder of the Company)
has entered into compensation agreement with the placee. Details of
the transaction are set out in the Company’s announcement dated
28 September 2016.

The placing was completed on 31 October 2016 and a total of
110,966,000 placing shares have been successfully placed. The
net proceeds amounted to approximately HK$133.5 million. The
Group intends to utilise as to approximately HK$70.0 million of the
net proceeds for investing into existing projects and future business
development opportunities, approximately HK$30.0 million for the
repayment of bank borrowings and interests and the remaining
balance of approximately HK$33.5 million as general working capital
of the Group. Up to 31 December 2017, the net proceeds were fully
utilized in each of the above intended uses.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE, LIQUIDITY AND GEARING

As at 31 December 2017, the Group’s total bank loans amounted
to HK$228.6 million (2016: HK$227.6 million), all are Hong Kong
dollar bank loans. The Group’s cash and cash equivalents amounted
to HK$127.2 million (2016: HK$208.1 million). The Group’s gearing
ratio (net bank loans to equity attributable to owners of the Company)
was 9.3% (2016: 1.9%). The gearing structure was as follows:

Net bank loans (total bank loans
minus cash and cash equivalents)
Equity attributable to owners
of the Company

Gearing ratio BEAEBHR
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Management Discussion and Analysis

As at 31 December 2017, the Group’s current assets and current
liabilities amounted to HK$190.3 million (2016: HK$249.2 million)
and HK$84.5 million (2016: HK$19.0 million), respectively. As at 31
December 2017, the Group’s current ratio decreased to 2.3 (2016:
13.1).

The Group strives to efficiently use its financial resources and adopts
a prudent financial policy in order to maintain a healthy capital ratio
and support its business expansion requirements.

DEBT MATURITY PROFILE

The maturity profile of the Group’s bank loans is set out below:

Repayable: FEEFRIA -
Within one year 1R
In the second year F2F

In the third to fifth years, inclusive

Note: All bank loans as at 31 December 2017 are denominated in Hong
Kong dollars.

FOREIGN CURRENCY AND INTEREST RATE RISKS

The Group’s cash and bank balances were primarily denominated
in Renminbi and Hong Kong dollars. Its operating cash inflows and
outflows were primarily denominated in Renminbi and Hong Kong
dollars. During the year, the Group did not have any material foreign
exchange exposure and had not used any financial instruments for
hedging purpose.

All bank borrowings of the Group were denominated in Hong Kong
dollars, the interest rates of these bank borrowings are calculated in
HIBOR plus a particular percentage. The Group will closely monitor
the interest rate movements and regularly review its banking facilities
so as to mitigate the expected interest rate risk.

FEIESF(BEEREMF)
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EERENWED T

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2017, the Group did not have any significant
contingent liabilities.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had a total of 341 full
time employees (2016: 283). The Group provides competitive
remuneration package to retain its employees including salaries,
discretionary bonus, medical insurance, other allowance and
benefits in kind as well as mandatory provident fund schemes for
employees in Hong Kong and state-managed retirement benefit
schemes for employees in the PRC.
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Corporate Governance Report

The board of directors (the “Board”) of the Company is pleased to
present this Corporate Governance Report in the Annual Report for
the year ended 31 December 2017.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Group is committed to achieving high standards of corporate
governance to safeguard the interests of shareholders, enhance
corporate value, formulate its business strategies and policies, and
enhance its transparency and accountability.

The Company has applied the principles as set out in the Corporate
Governance Code (the “CG Code”) contained in Appendix 14 of the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the
“Listing Rules”).

In the opinion of the directors, throughout the year, the Company
has complied with all the code provisions as set out in the CG Code,
except for code provision A.2.1.

The Company regularly reviews its corporate governance practices
to ensure compliance with the CG Code.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set
out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules.

Specific enquiry has been made of all the directors and the directors
have confirmed that they have complied with the Model Code
throughout the year ended 31 December 2017.

The Company has also established written guidelines (the
“Employees Written Guidelines”) no less exacting terms than the
Model Code for securities transactions by employees who are likely
to be in possession of inside information of the Company.

No incident of non-compliance of the Employees Written Guidelines
by the employees was noted by the Company.
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BUSINESS MODEL AND STRATEGY

The Group is principally engaged in the provision of high quality and
comprehensive range of petroleum and liquid chemical terminal,
storage and logistic services in the PRC. The Group continues
its proactive expansion strategy for generating and preserving
shareholder value in the long term. Apart from reinforcing its existing
infrastructure, the Group is actively exploring existing and new
business relationships and collaboration opportunities, which aims
to raise the quality and efficiency of its service, as well as enhancing
the customer base.

On the other hand, the Group will closely monitor the market for
merger and acquisition opportunities if it can bring synergy to our
existing business, as well as diversification of its investment portfolio
for strengthening and broadening its income base. The Group also
takes active and prompt measures from time to time, reviewing
and adjusting its business strategy and adopting various controls
over costs, if necessary, so as to maintain the Group’s profitability.
Besides, the Group maintains a healthy financing structure and
devotes effort to secure banking facilities which is regarded as an
important element for supporting continuous business development
of the Group.

Drawing on the Group’s successful business model and professional
management team, Dragon Crown will strive to maintain its top
position as an integrated terminal service provider in China, as well
as delivering optimal results to its shareholders.
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Corporate Governance Report

THE BOARD

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board oversees the Group’s businesses, strategic decisions
and performance and should take decisions objectively in the best
interests of the Company.

The Board should regularly review the contribution required from a
director to perform his responsibilities to the Company, and whether
the director is spending sufficient time performing them.

BOARD COMPOSITION

The Board currently comprises 6 directors, consisting of 3 executive
directors and 3 independent non-executive directors.

The Board currently comprises the following directors:

Executive directors:

Mr. NG Wai Man (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. CHONG Yat Chin
Ms. CHAN Wan Ming

Independent non-executive directors:

Mr. LAU Sik Yuen
Mr. LUO Shijie
Mr. ZHU Wujun

The list of directors (by category) is also disclosed in all corporate
communications issued by the Company from time to time pursuant
to the Listing Rules. The independent non-executive directors are
expressly identified in all corporate communications pursuant to the
Listing Rules.

The biographical details of the directors of the Company are set out
under “Directors and Senior Management” section in this annual
report. None of the members of the Board is related to one another.
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Code provision A.2.1 stipulates that the roles of chairman and chief
executive should be separate and should not be performed by the
same individual.

The roles of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of the Company
are held by Mr. NG Wai Man who is the founder of the Company and
has extensive experience in the industry.

The Board believes that vesting the roles of both Chairman and Chief
Executive Officer in the same person is beneficial to the business
prospects and management and provides the Company with strong
and consistent leadership and allows for effective and efficient
planning and implementation of business decisions and strategies.

The Board considers that the current structure of vesting the roles of
both Chairman and Chief Executive Officer in the same person will
not impair the balance of power and authority between the Board
and the management of the Company. The Board shall review its
structure from time to time to ensure appropriate and timely action
to meet changing circumstances.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Board at all times met
the requirements of the Listing Rules relating to the appointment of
at least three independent non-executive directors representing one-
third of the Board with at least one of whom possessing appropriate
professional qualifications or accounting or related financial
management expertise.

The independent non-executive directors bring a wide range of
business and financial expertise, experience and independent
judgment to the Board. Through active participation at Board
meetings, taking the lead in managing issues involving potential
conflict of interests, all independent non-executive directors
have made various contributions to the effective direction of the
Company.

The Company has received written annual confirmation from each
independent non-executive director of his independence pursuant
to the requirements of the Listing Rules. The Company considers
all independent non-executive directors to be independent in
accordance with the independence guidelines as set out in the
Listing Rules.
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APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

The procedures and process of appointment, re-election and
removal of directors are laid down in the Company’s Articles of
Association. The Nomination Committee is responsible for reviewing
Board composition, monitoring the appointment of directors
and assessing the independence of independent non-executive
directors.

The independent non-executive directors of the Company are
appointed for a specific term of one year, subject to renewal after the
expiry of the then current term.

The Company’s Articles of Association provides that all directors
appointed to fill a casual vacancy shall be subject to election by
shareholders at the first general meeting after appointment.

Under the Articles of Association of the Company, at each annual
general meeting, one-third of the directors for the time being, or if
their number is not three of a multiple of three, the number nearest to
but not less than one-third shall retire from office by rotation provided
that every director shall be subject to retirement by rotation at least
once every three years. The retiring directors shall be eligible for re-
election.

At the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company, Mr.
CHONG Yat Chin and Ms. CHAN Wan Ming shall retire by rotation
and being eligible, offer themselves for re-election pursuant to the
Company’s Articles of Association.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS

The Board should assume responsibility for leadership and control
of the Company. The Board has delegated to the Chief Executive
Officer, and through him, to the senior management the authority
and responsibility for the day-to-day management and operation of
the Group.

The Board directly, and indirectly through its committees, leads and
provides direction to management by laying down strategies and
overseeing their implementation, monitors the Group’s operational
and financial performance, and ensures that sound internal control
and risk management systems are in place.
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All directors have carried out their duties in good faith, in compliance
with applicable laws and regulations and in the interests of the
Company and its shareholders at all times.

DELEGATION OF MANAGEMENT FUNCTIONS

The Board reserves for its decision all major matters of the Company,
including: approval and monitoring of all policy matters, overall
strategies and budgets, internal control and risk management
systems, material transactions (in particular those that may involve
conflict of interests), financial information, appointment of directors
and other significant financial and operational matters.

All directors have full and timely access to all relevant information
as well as the advice and services of the Company Secretary, with
a view to ensuring that Board procedures and all applicable laws
and regulations are followed. Each director is normally able to seek
independent professional advice in appropriate circumstances at the
Company’s expense, upon making request to the Board.

The day-to-day management, administration and operation of the
Company are delegated to the Chief Executive Officer and the senior
management. The delegated functions and responsibilities are
periodically reviewed. Approval has to be obtained from the Board
prior to any significant transactions entered into by the aforesaid
officers.

INDUCTION AND CONTINUING PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT OF DIRECTORS

Directors shall keep abreast of regulatory developments and
changes in order to effectively perform their responsibilities and to
ensure that their contribution to the Board remains informed and
relevant.

Each newly appointed director receives formal, comprehensive and
tailored induction on the first occasion of his/her appointment to
ensure appropriate understanding of the business and operations
of the Company and full awareness of director’s responsibilities
and obligations under the Listing Rules and relevant statutory
requirements.
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All directors are encouraged to participate in continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills.
The Company regularly circulates training materials or briefings to
all directors in respect of the updates on, among other things, the
Listing Rules, the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of
the Laws of Hong Kong) or other useful guidelines, the Companies
Ordinance and financial or accounting standards which may be of
the interest to the directors and benefit for them to discharge their
duties. Training session for directors will also be arranged where
necessary.

In addition, the Company provides and circulates the directors
with monthly and regular updates relating to the Group’s business,
financial position and business environment, which aims to ensure
compliance and to enhance their awareness of good corporate
governance practices.

All directors have provided to the Company with their training
records on a regular basis, and such records have been maintained
by the Company for accurate and comprehensive record keeping.
During the year, all directors (Mr. NG Wai Man, Mr. TING Yian Ann
(resigned on 22 September 2017), Mr. CHONG Yat Chin, Ms. CHAN
Wan Ming, Mr. LAU Sik Yuen, Mr. LUO Shijie and Mr. ZHU Wujun)
have complied with the code provisions in relation to continuous
professional development through attendance of seminars on
corporate governance, regulatory development and other relevant
topics.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established three committees, namely, the
Nomination Committee, Remuneration Committee and Audit
Committee, for overseeing particular aspects of the Company’s
affairs. All Board committees of the Company are established with
specific written terms of reference which deal clearly with their
authority and duties. The terms of reference of the Board committees
are posted on the Company’s website and the Stock Exchange’s
website and are available to shareholders upon request.

The list of the chairman and members of each Board committee is
set out under “Corporate Information” on page 151.
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Board committees are provided with sufficient resources to
discharge their duties and, upon reasonable request, are able to
seek independent professional advice in appropriate circumstances
at the Company’s expense.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee comprises four members, namely, Mr.
LAU Sik Yuen (chairman), Mr. LUO Shijie, Mr. ZHU Wujun and Mr.
NG Wai Man, the majority of which are independent non-executive
directors.

The terms of reference of the Nomination Committee are of no less
exacting terms than those set out in the CG Code.

The principal duties of the Nomination Committee include reviewing
the Board composition, developing and formulating relevant
procedures for the nomination and appointment of directors,
making recommendations to the Board on the appointment and
succession planning of directors, and assessing the independence
of independent non-executive directors.

The Nomination Committee has adopted a set of nomination
procedures for selection of candidates for directorship of the
Company by making reference to the skills, experience, professional
knowledge, personal integrity and time commitments of such
individuals, the Company’s needs and other relevant statutory
requirements and regulations.

In assessing the Board composition, the Nomination Committee
would take into account various aspects as well as factors
concerning Board diversity as set out in the Company’s Board
diversity policy, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural
and educational background, professional qualifications, skills,
knowledge and industry and regional experience etc. The
Nomination Committee would discuss and agree on measurable
objectives for achieving diversity on the Board, where necessary, and
recommend them to the Board for adoption.

The Nomination Committee met once during the year under review
to review the structure, size and composition of the Board and the
independence of the independent non-executive directors, and
to consider the qualifications of the retiring directors standing for
election at the Annual General Meeting. The Nomination Committee
considered an appropriate balance of diversity perspectives of the
Board is maintained.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee comprises four members, namely,
Mr. LAU Sik Yuen (chairman), Mr. LUO Shijie, Mr. ZHU Wujun
and Mr. NG Wai Man, the majority of which are independent non-
executive directors.

The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee are of no less
exacting terms than those set out in the CG Code.

The primary objectives of the Remuneration Committee include
making recommendations on and approving the remuneration
policy and structure and remuneration packages of all directors
and the senior management. The Remuneration Committee is also
responsible for establishing transparent procedures for developing
such remuneration policy and structure to ensure that no director
or any of his/her associates will participate in deciding his/her own
remuneration, which remuneration will be determined by reference to
the performance of the individual and the Company as well as market
practice and conditions.

The Remuneration Committee met once during the year under
review to review and make recommendation to the Board on
the remuneration policy and structure of the Company, and the
remuneration packages of all directors and senior management and
other related matters.

Details of the remuneration of the senior management by band are
set out in note 11 to the financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2017.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee comprises three independent non-executive
directors, namely, Mr. LAU Sik Yuen (chairman), Mr. LUO Shijie
and Mr. ZHU Wujun, including one independent non-executive
director with the appropriate professional qualifications. None of
the members of the Audit Committee is a former partner of the
Company’s existing external auditors.

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee are of no less
exacting terms than those set out in the CG Code.
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The main duties of the Audit Committee include the following:

° To review the financial statements and reports and consider
any significant or unusual items raised by the external auditor
before submission to the Board

° To review the relationship with the external auditor by reference
to the work performed by the auditor, its fees and terms of
engagement, and make recommendations to the Board on the
appointment, re-appointment and removal of external auditor

° To review the adequacy and effectiveness of the Company’s
financial reporting system, internal control systems and risk
management system and associated procedures

The Audit Committee held two meetings during the year under
review to review the interim and annual financial results and reports
and significant issues on the financial reporting, operational and
compliance controls, the effectiveness of the risk management and
internal control systems and internal audit function, appointment of
external auditor and engagement of non-audit services and relevant
scope of works and, connected transactions and arrangements for
employees to raise concerns about possible improprieties.

The Audit Committee also met the external auditor twice without the
presence of the executive directors.

The Group’s accounting principles and practices and the audited
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2017 have been reviewed by the Audit Committee.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board is responsible for performing the functions set out in the
code provision D.3.1 of the CG Code.

During the year, the Board had reviewed the Company’s corporate
governance policies and practices, training and continuous
professional development of directors and senior management, the
Company’s policies and practices on compliance with legal and
regulatory requirements, the compliance of the Model Code and
Written Employee Guidelines, and the Company’s compliance with
the CG Code and disclosure in this Corporate Governance Report.
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ATTENDANCE RECORD OF DIRECTORS AND
COMMITTEE MEMBERS

The attendance record of each director at the Board and Board
Committee meetings and the general meeting of the Company held
during the year ended 31 December 2017 is set out in the table
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Attendance/Number of Meetings

below:

Nomination
Name of Director Board Committee
BB gz REZES
Mr. Ng Wai Man 6/6 11
REREE
Mr. Ting Yian Ann (resigned on 22 September 2017) 4/5 11
BB 254 (R 201749 A 22 BEHT)
Mr. Chong Yat Chin 6/6 -
HAEEE
Ms. Chan Wan Ming 6/6 -
BR=Bxt
Mr. Lau Sik Yuen 6/6 1/1
AHRESE
Mr. Luo Shijie 6/6 1/1
SRR A
Mr. Zhu Wujun 6/6 11
ARERE

Apart from regular Board meetings, the Chairman also held meetings
with the independent non-executive directors without the presence
of executive directors during the year.

Practices and Conduct of Board Meetings

Annual meeting schedules and draft agenda of each meeting are
normally made available to directors in advance.

Notice of regular Board meetings is served to all directors at least
14 days before the meeting. For other Board meetings, reasonable
notice is generally given.

Board papers together with all appropriate, complete and reliable
information are sent to all directors at least 3 days before each
Board meeting to keep directors apprised of the latest developments
and financial position of the Company and to enable them to
make informed decisions. The Board and each director also have
separate and independent access to the senior management where
necessary.

HE/ERRE
Remuneration Audit Annual General
Committee =~ Committee Meeting
FMESE BERZEEE RRBEFKE
11 - 11
11 - 11
- - 11
- - 11
11 2/2 11
11 2/2 11
11 2/2 11
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The Company Secretary is responsible for taking and keeping
minutes of all Board meetings. Draft minutes are normally circulated
to directors for comment within a reasonable time after each meeting
and final versions are open for directors’ inspection.

According to current Board practice, any material transaction, which
involves a conflict of interests for a substantial shareholder or a
director, will be considered and dealt with by the Board at a duly
convened Board meeting. The Company’s Articles of Association
contain provisions requiring directors to abstain from voting and not
to be counted in the quorum at meetings for approving transactions
in which such directors or any of their associates have a material
interest.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for the Group’s risk
management and internal control systems and reviewing their
effectiveness to safeguard interests of shareholders, customers,
employees and the Group’s assets. Such systems are designed to
manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business
objectives, and can only provide reasonable and not absolute
assurance against material misstatement or loss.

The Board has the overall responsibility for evaluating and
determining the nature and extent of the risks it is willing to take in
achieving the Group’s strategic objectives, and establishing and
maintaining appropriate and effective risk management and internal
control systems. The Audit Committee assists the Board in leading
the management and overseeing their design, implementation and
monitoring of the risk management and internal control systems.

The Group’s risk management and internal control systems
have been developed with the following principles, features and
processes:

(1) Identify significant risks in the Group’s operation environment;

(2)  Evaluate the impacts of those risks on the Group’s business
and the likelihood of occurrence;

(8)  Determine the risk management strategies and internal control
processes to prevent, avoid or mitigate the risks; and
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(4)  Perform ongoing monitor, review and revise the strategies
and processes in case of any significant change of situation,
ensuring effective communication to the Audit Committee and
the Board on all findings and the effectiveness of the systems
regularly.

The Internal Audit Department is responsible for performing
independent review of the adequacy and effectiveness of the risk
management and internal control systems. The Internal Audit
Department examined key issues in relation to the accounting
practices and all material controls and provided its findings and
recommendations for improvement to the Audit Committee.

The Board, as supported by the Audit Committee as well as the
management report and the internal audit findings, reviewed the
Group’s risk management and internal control systems, including
major financial, operational and compliance controls, as well as risk
management functions, for the year ended 31 December 2017,
and considered that such systems are effective and adequate.
The annual review also covered the resources, staff qualifications
and experiences, training programmes and budget of the Group’s
accounting, financial reporting and internal audit functions, which
also considered to be adequate. In addition, the management
has confirmed to the Board and the Audit Committee on the
effectiveness of the risk management and internal control systems
for the year ended 31 December 2017.

The Group regulates the handling and dissemination of inside
information according to internal procedures and policy so as to
ensure inside information remains confidential until the disclosure of
such information is appropriately approved, and the dissemination of
such information is efficiently and consistently made.

The Board assesses the likely impact of any unexpected and
significant event that may impact the share price and/or trading
volume and decides whether the relevant information is considered
inside information and needs to be disclosed as soon as reasonably
practicable pursuant to Rules 13.09 and 13.10 of the Listing
Rules and the Inside Information Provisions under Part XIVA of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance. The Group has strictly prohibited
unauthorized use of confidential or inside information and has
established and implemented procedures for responding to external
enquiries about the Group’s affairs, so that only the executive
directors and company secretary are authorized to communicate
with parties outside the Group.
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR FINANCIAL
REPORTING

The directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing
the financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31
December 2017.

The Board is responsible for presenting a balanced, clear and
understandable assessment of annual and interim reports, price-
sensitive announcements and other disclosures required under the
Listing Rules and other statutory and regulatory requirements.

The Management has provided to the Board such explanation and
information as are necessary to enable the Board to carry out an
informed assessment of the Company’s financial statements, which
are put to the Board for approval.

The directors are not aware of any material uncertainties relating
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt upon the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.

The statement of the independent auditor of the Company about the
reporting responsibilities on the financial statements is set out in the
Independent Auditor’s Report on pages 52 to 57.

Where appropriate, a statement from the Audit Committee
explaining its recommendation regarding the selection, appointment,
resignation or dismissal of external auditor and the reasons why the
Board has taken a different view from that of the Audit Committee.

EXTERNAL AUDITOR AND AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION
During the year ended 31 December 2017, the remuneration paid/

payable to the Company’s external auditor, Ernst & Young, in
respect of audit services and non-audit services is set out below:
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Service Category Fees Paid/Payable (HK$)
PR XE R B ENERA (BT
Audit Services ZERTE
— Annual audit —FEE 1,435,000
- Independent auditor letter on continuing —EEAREAERZ SN
connected transactions L AZ SR K 20,000
Non-audit Services IERZ RS
— Review of interim results — R HIEE 415,000
— Taxation services — BB ARTE 129,000
1,999,000
COMPANY SECRETARY LFEIWE
During the year, the company secretary, Mr. LAU Lai Chi, undertook at FAN - RaMERBSRE(XAREES)
least 15 hours of relevant professional training, is an employee of the BHETE DA/ IER R ZEE -
Company.

IBEESFYREARWEREEEARE
EERESERMEERLRE -

All Directors have access to the advice and services of the company
secretary on corporate governance and board practices and matters.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS RS

AREREFZFEEN  REAS -5
BZEABIYEEREBIAESR B8R
HERES -

RIRRREG LIREZFABRBRHRIE L
MRAMBRESTAETROR  MEERR
BREBNEBRRAGRRARE KB
HENEYN G

To safeguard shareholders’ interests and rights, separate resolution
should be proposed for each substantially separate issue at general
meetings, including the election of individual director.

All resolutions put forward at general meetings will be voted on by
poll pursuant to the Listing Rules and poll results will be posted on
the websites of the Company and of the Stock Exchange after each
general meeting.

CONVENING AN EXTRAORDINARY GENERAL MEETING HRRBARREHAE
BY SHAREHOLDERS

REARNREMERMAFESBHEHRE @ I
REFRRGARARBERN—BREBER
RNEEEXLHEFSAR  EZXFRR
RIBERXFERE BB OD TR/ IRMER
ARBERAGEREENCHEBATHZ
—  REERANAEFTERARAWE
RXMNEEERFPEANERNEHEEM
AEAMNEZ2ZEREMIEARRT o [{iE
ERAABNEFTERBEARZAE AR
EERALAZATRTAELILE - MR
EERATHEEZEREEARAGMARE
ELXNRAXEAARARMEZERLALE
HER -

Pursuant to Articles 58 of the Company’s Articles of Association, an
extraordinary general meeting shall be called by the Board on the
written requisition of any one or more shareholders of the Company,
provided that such shareholder(s) held at the date of deposit of
the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the
Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the
Company. Such meeting shall be called for the transaction of any
business specified in the written requisition to the Board or the
Secretary of the Company; and shall be held within two months
after the deposit of such requisition. If within twenty-one days of
such deposit the Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting,
the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may do so in the same
manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s)
as a result of the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to the

requisitionist(s) by the Company. Annual Report 2017 2 B3R 37
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PUTTING FORWARD PROPOSALS AT GENERAL
MEETINGS

There are no statutory provisions granting the right to shareholders
to put forward or move new resolutions at general meetings under
the Cayman Islands Companies Law or the Articles of Association
of the Company. Shareholders who wish to move a resolution may
request the Company to convene a general meeting following the
procedures set out in the preceding paragraph.

PUTTING FORWARD ENQUIRIES TO THE BOARD

For putting forward any enquiries to the Board of the Company,
shareholders may send written enquiries to the Company.

Note: The Company will not normally deal with verbal or anonymous
enquiries.

CONTACT DETAILS

Shareholders may send their enquiries or requests as mentioned
above to the following:

Address: Unit No. 3, 18th Floor

Convention Plaza, Office Tower

No. 1 Harbour Road

Hong Kong

(For the attention of the Board of Directors/Company
Secretary)

Fax: 2587 1338

Email: myfarm@dragoncrown.com

For the avoidance of doubt, shareholder(s) must deposit and send
the original duly signed written requisition, notice or statement,
or enquiry (as the case may be) to the above address, except for
the registered office of the Company, and provide their full name,
contact details and identification in order to give effect thereto.
Shareholders’ information may be disclosed as required by law.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
INVESTORS

The Company considers that effective communication with
shareholders is essential for enhancing investor relations and
investor understanding of the Group’s business performance
and strategies. The Company also recognizes the importance of
transparency and timely disclosure of corporate information, which
will enable shareholders and investors to make the best investment
decisions.

The general meetings of the Company provide a forum for
communication between the Board and the shareholders. The
Chairman of the Board as well as chairmen of the Nomination
Committee, Remuneration Committee and Audit Committee or,
in their absence, other members of the respective committees
and, where applicable, the chairman of the independent Board
committee, are available to answer questions at general meetings.

To promote effective communication, the Company maintains
a website at http://www.dragoncrown.com, where up-to-date
information and updates on the Company’s business operations
and developments, financial information and other information are
available for public access.

During the year under review, the Company has not made any
changes to its Articles of Association. An up to date version of
the Company’s Articles of Association is also available on the
Company’s website and the Stock Exchange’s website.
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The directors have pleasure in presenting their report together with
the audited financial statements of Dragon Crown Group Holdings
Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) for the
year ended 31 December 2017.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. Details of
the principal activities of the principal subsidiaries are set out in note
1 to the financial statements. There were no significant changes in
the nature of the Group’s principal activities during the year.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The Group’s profit for the year ended 31 December 2017 and the
Group’s financial position at that date are set out in the financial
statements on pages 58 to 61.

An interim dividend of HK1.5 cents (2016: HK2.0 cents) per share
was paid on 29 September 2017.

The Board has recommended the payment of a final dividend of
HK1.5 cents (2016: HK2.3 cents) per share for the year ended
31 December 2017 to shareholders whose names appear on the
register of members of the Company at the close of business on
Thursday, 7 June 2018. The proposed final dividend is subject to
the approval of the shareholders at the forthcoming annual general
meeting.
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BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the business of the Group for the year and a discussion
on the Group’s future business development and the principal risks
and uncertainties facing the Group are provided in the Management
Discussion and Analysis on pages 13 to 22 which form part of the
Directors’ Report. An analysis of the Group’s performance during
the year using financial key performance indicators is provided in the
Financial and Operating Highlights on page 2 which forms part of the
Directors’ Report but not part of the audited financial statements. No
important event affecting the Group has occurred since the end of
the financial year under review.

The Group is committed to supporting environmental sustainability.
Being an integrated service provider that specialized in the handling
and storage of liquid petrochemical products in the PRC, the Group
is subject to various environmental laws and regulations set by the
PRC national, provincial and municipal governments. These include
regulations on air and noise pollutions and petrochemical storage.

During the year under review, the Group has complied with the
relevant laws and regulations that have significant impact on the
operations of the Group.

The Group recognizes that our employees, customers and business
partners are the keys to our sustainable development. The Group
is committed to establishing a close and caring relationship with
our employees, providing quality services to our customers and
enhancing cooperation with our business partners.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND PERFORMANCE

The Group fulfils its social responsibilities of protecting the
environment by undertaking to promote social environmental
protection in our business routines and activities. We give due
consideration to environmental protection and conservation and
incorporates environmentally friendly practices and measures into
our daily course of business.

In accordance with Rule 13.91 of the Listing Rules, the Company will
publish an Environmental, Social and Governance (‘ESG”) Report
within three months after the publication of this annual report in
compliance with the provisions set out in the ESG Reporting Guide
in Appendix 27 to the Listing Rules.
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BANK BORROWINGS

Particulars of the bank borrowings of the Group as at 31 December
2017 are set out in note 25 to the financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in the Company’s share capital during the
year are set out in note 27 to the financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Articles of
Association or the laws of the Cayman Islands which would oblige
the Company to offer new shares on a pro rata basis to existing
shareholders of the Company.

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries purchased,
redeemed or sold any of the Company’s listed securities during the
year.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

At 31 December 2017, the Company’s reserves available for
distribution, calculated in accordance with the Companies Law
of the Cayman Islands amounted to HK$705.4 million (2016:
HK$654.3 million), of which HK$18.3 million has been proposed
as a final dividend for the year. In accordance with Section 34 of
the Companies Law, dividend may be paid out of the amount of
HK$553.9 million (2016: HK$553.9 million) of the Company’s share
premium account subject to a solvency test and the provisions of the
Company’s memorandum and articles of association.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year, the total revenue to the Group’s top five customers
and largest customer accounted for 97.0% and 42.9% of the total
revenue for the year. The cost of services provided by the Group’s
top five suppliers and largest supplier accounted for 32.0% and
10.1% of the total cost of services for the year.

None of the directors or any of their associates or any shareholder
of the Company (which to the knowledge of the directors own more
than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital) had beneficial
interests in the Group’s top five suppliers or customers referred to
above.

DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company who were in office during the year and
up to the date of this report were:

Executive directors:
Mr. NG Wai Man (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. CHONG Yat Chin
Ms. CHAN Wan Ming
Mr. TING Yian Ann (Chief Executive Officer)
(Resigned on 22 September 2017)

Independent non-executive directors:
Mr. LAU Sik Yuen

Mr. LUO Shijie

Mr. ZHU Wujun

Pursuant to Article 84(1) of the Articles of Association of the Company,
Mr. CHONG Yat Chin and Ms. CHAN Wan Ming are subject to
retirement by rotation at the forthcoming annual general meeting and,
being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

The Company has received annual confirmations of independence
from each of its independent non-executive directors and at the date
of this report still considers them to be independent.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Mr. CHONG Yat Chin and Ms. CHAN Wan Ming have entered into
service contracts with the Company for a term of three years which
commenced on 1 December 2010. Mr. CHONG and Ms. CHAN
have entered into renewal contracts with the Company on 2 April
2014 for a term of three years effective from 1 December 2013
and will continue thereafter for successive one-year terms until
terminated by not less than three months’ written notice.

No director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting has a service contract which is not determinable by
the Group within one year without payment of compensation, other
than statutory compensation.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY

Pursuant to the Company’s Articles of Association, the director
is entitled to be indemnified out of the assets and profits of the
Company against all actions, costs, charges, losses, damages
and expenses which he or she may sustain or incur in or about
the execution of his or her duties. To the extent provided that this
indemnity shall not extend to any matter in respect of any fraud or
dishonesty which may attach to any of the directors.

The Company has taken out insurance against the liability and costs
associated with defending any proceedings which may be brought
against directors of companies in the Group.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Connected Transactions”
in this report and note 35 (Related Party Transactions) to the financial
statements, no director nor a connected entity of a director had
a material interest, either directly or indirectly, in any transactions,
arrangements or contracts of significance to the business of the
Group to which the Company, its holding company, or any of its
subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party during the year.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES
AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2017, the interests and short positions of
the directors and the chief executives of the Company in the
shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company and
its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO”)) which have been
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO, or which were recorded in
the register required to be kept pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO
or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors
of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) set out in Appendix 10 to the
Listing Rules were as follows:

(i) Interests in the shares of the Company

Personal
Name of directors Interests
e BARS
Mr. Ng Wai Man (“Mr. NG”) REREETREE]D 125,354,000
Mr. Chong Yat Chin (‘Mr. CHONG")  HBERE([HE4]) 16,712,000
Ms. Chan Wan Ming (‘Ms. CHAN’) BEEat ([FErt]) 184,000
Notes:
1. All interests of the directors in the shares of the Company were

long positions.

2. Mr. NG was the beneficial owner of all the issued share capital of
Lirun Limited (“Lirun”) and Sure Port Investments Limited (“Sure
Port”) and therefore was deemed to be interested in a total of
767,988,000 shares of the Company held by Lirun and Sure Port.
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(i) Long positions in the shares of associated corporations of the iy RERABEESEBER D ZFE

Company
Percentage of
existing issued
Name of Number of shares share capital
associated held in associated of the associated
Name of directors corporation Capacity corporation corporations
RIEEEE RAEBEERA
EEEB HEEEER 514 FERAHEE CERTREAEIL
Mr. NG Lirun Beneficial owner 40 100%
REHE )| EnEEA
Mr. NG Sure Port Beneficial owner 10 100%
R B IIE EnEEA

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2017, none of the Br bitigEEE SN - R20178F12A31 0 K
directors nor chief executives of the Company had any interests or RAEZERETETHABTERARQF]K
short positions in any shares, underlying shares and debentures of HAREE B 2 ARG - BERG RES
the Company or any of its associated corporations. FHEAERERIORE o
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INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF SUBSTANTIAL FERFRZERRRE
SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 December 2017, so far as was known to the directors of R2017%F12A31H @ iR B EEFTH

the Company, the following persons or corporations (other than THALHBE(WIERRBEEHEET
directors or chief executives of the Company) who had interests and HWAB)RARTB 2D HBEIRD PR
short positions in the shares or underlying shares of the Company as ERCERMBIEE 5 M HAE 1410128 336 1678 T
recorded in the register required to be kept under Section 336 of the FEZERMBNE RN R 2 MK

SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company were as follows: BT
Approximate
percentage of
Number of shares existing issued
or underlying shares share capital
Name of shareholders Capacity held in the Company of the Company
RAEQ TR G HAELARREE R
RRERB g4 RAABAR A TRAHEHNE DL
Lirun Beneficial owner @ 751,488,000 61.56%
Vb EmEB A
Mr. Ng Dan Ching Beneficial owner 117,040,000 9.59%
RNEERE BB A
Notes: PitsE
1. All interests of the substantial shareholders in the shares of the 1. FERFRARBIRNDZIBERE BT
Company were long position. B
2. Mr. NG was the beneficial owner of all the issued share capital 2. REEDNBEMEBITRAZEZES
of Lirun and therefore was deemed to be interested in a total of A B ERBERNBEZREARRZEH
751,488,000 shares of the Company held by Lirun. 751,488,000 iR A0 R HE A fE RS ©
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2017, the Directors of
the Company were not aware of any other persons (other than the
directors of the Company whose interests are set out in the section
“Directors’ and chief executives’ interests and short positions in
shares, underlying shares and debentures” above) who held any
interests or short positions in the shares, or underlying shares of
the Company as recorded in the register required to be kept under
section 336 of the SFO.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

A share option scheme was adopted on 23 May 2011 (the “Share
Option Scheme”) to provide incentives to eligible participants
(including employees, executives or officers, directors including
non-executive directors and independent non-executive directors,
advisers, consultants, suppliers, customers and agents of the
Company or any of its subsidiaries) for their contribution to the long
term growth of the Group and to enable the Company to attract and
retain high calibre employees. During the year, no share options were
granted, exercised or cancelled by the Company under the Share
Option Scheme. There were no outstanding share options under the
Share Option Scheme as at 31 December 2017.

DEED OF NON-COMPETITION

Each of the executive directors (collectively the “Covenantors”) have
entered into a Deed of Non-Competition in favour of the Company
(on behalf of itself and the Group) dated 23 May 2011 (the “Deed”).
Pursuant to the Deed, each of the Covenantors shall procure that
their respective associates shall not directly or indirectly engage in
any business in competition with the existing business activity of
the Group. Relevant information on the Deed was disclosed in the
Prospectus in the section headed “Relationship with Controlling
Shareholders”.

The Company has received confirmations from the Covenantors
of their compliance with the terms of the Deed. The Covenantors
declared that they have fully complied with the Deed for the year
ended 31 December 2017. The independent non-executive
directors have reviewed on the confirmations from the Covenantors
and concluded that the Deed has been complied with and has been
effectively enforced.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The Group conducted the following non-exempt continuing
connected transactions during the year.

The table below sets out the annual caps and the actual transaction
amounts of those non-exempt continuing transactions in 2017:

Connected transactions Connected person (RMB'000)
BERS BEAL (AE&FT)
Renewed Ningbo Storage Ningbo Free Trade Zone Dragon
Agreement Crown Chemical International
Trade Company Ltd. (“Ningbo DC”)
BEHERFFHS ERRHE A TER
BHERRA ([ E5EA)) 9,39
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Annual cap

EELR

Approx.
e
(HK$'000)
(Fi&m)

10,835

R HE

Actual transaction amount
ERR 58
Approx.
ok
(RMB'000) (HK$'000)
(AR¥FT) (&)

8,156 9,406

Renewed Ningbo Storage Agreement

On 25 January 2016, Ningbo Ningxiang Liquid Chemicals Terminal
Co., Ltd. (“Ningbo Ningxiang”) and Ningbo DC entered into the
Renewed Ningbo Storage Agreement, pursuant to which Ningbo
Ningxiang agreed to provide Ningbo DC with terminal and storage
services at the Group’s terminal in Ningbo. The term of the Renewed
Ningbo Storage Agreement is for the period of three years from 1
January 2016 to 31 December 2018.

R R T e
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BMEREANAEENE RIGEREMENT
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Ningbo DC is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Dragon Crown
Investments Limited which in turn is owned as to 98% by Mr. NG, a
director and a controlling shareholder and as to 2% by Mr. CHONG,
a director. It is principally engaged in trading of chemicals. According
to the Listing Rules, Ningbo DC is an associate of Mr. NG and thus
a connected person. As Ningbo DC is a connected person of the
Company, the Renewed Ningbo Storage Agreement constitute
continuing connected transactions of the Company under Rule
14A.31 of the Listing Rules.

The fees for the services provided are principally determined by
(i) the quantity of the liquid chemical products handled by Ningbo
Ningxiang; and (i) the period for the storage of the liquid chemical
products at the terminal. The price will be negotiated and agreed
between both parties with reference to the market price and the
management will take into account the price range charged by other
service providers for the same services within the port. This is to
ensure that the terms offered by Ningbo DC to Ningbo Ningxiang
are no less favourable than those offered by other independent third
parties in the ordinary course of business.

The independent non-executive directors of the Company have,
for the purpose of Rule 14A.55 of the Listing Rules, reviewed
the continuing connected transactions set out above and have
confirmed that these continuing connected transactions have
been entered into by the Group (i) in the ordinary and usual course
of its business; (i) on normal commercial terms or better; and (iii)
according to the agreement governing them on terms that are fair
and reasonable and in the interests of the Company’s shareholders
as a whole.
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Pursuant to Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules, the Company’s BIE FTARBIE 14A 561§ NA R 228
auditor was engaged to report on the Group’s continuing connected FEEREKBE ST ALSEMAACES
transactions in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance %88 TVE4ERI)EE 3000 97 (A8 ET) [ 1B 1T
Engagements 3000 (Revised) “Assurance Engagements Other B 5 B REE TR AT S R B AN A2 78 T
Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and K 2 RRFERTE3| 5 74055 BN E B LR
with reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing BINFrall 3 4B BRI T 5 IR BET (1 ) s

Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” REEBNBHERESS  AEE
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. BNRERER S ZERRERE AL

The auditor has not qualified its report in respect of the continuing KREHREER - R ETHAIE14A.56
connected transactions disclosed above by the Group. A copy of the 1GFTE E 18 2 72 80AM B AR B A A &)

auditor’s letter confirming the matters set out under Rule 14A.56 of IR TS ©
the Listing Rules has been provided by the Company to the Stock

Exchange.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS FRBALRS

The details of the related party transactions are set out in note 35 to RAEE AN T2 S5 E N B ISR R M 5E35M ©
the financial statements.

The Company confirms that in relation to the related party RARTER  BEAEZ2017F12A31 81
transactions for the year ended 31 December 2017, it has complied FEZEBMA TR SEEST EMRAE 14A
with the disclosure requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of ZEWEIRE °

the Listing Rules.

PUBLIC FLOAT LRIGKRE

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company BIBERAABEAMGERNIEESEM R

and within the knowledge of the directors as at the latest practicable FIBARENNFEERAI/TAR  AQ
date prior to the issue of this report, the Company has maintained AEHF EMRARENARIFRE -

the prescribed public float under the Listing Rules.

AUDITOR % EEm

Ernst & Young will retire and a resolution for the reappointment as TKEMEEERERREREF RS
auditor of the Company will be proposed at the forthcoming annual FRERATWZEE > Mz Ae &R

general meeting. SEMEEHEARRBIZBAIARESR -
By order of the Board EEEED

Ng Wai Man FIEFRITEAER

Chairman & Chief Executive Officer RER

Hong Kong, 20 March 2018 EH - 20183 H20H
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Independent Auditor’s Report
BB R

EY:

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF DRAGON CROWN GROUP
HOLDINGS LIMITED
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Dragon
Crown Group Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(the “Group”) set out on pages 58 to 149, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December
2017, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss, the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of
cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated
financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting
policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2017, and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared in compliance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements
section of our report. We are independent of the Group in
accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we
do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. For each matter
below, our description of how our audit addressed the matter is
provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements
section of our report, including in relation to these matters.
Accordingly, our audit included the performance of procedures
designed to respond to our assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements. The results
of our audit procedures, including the procedures performed to
address the matters below, provide the basis for our audit opinion on
the accompanying consolidated financial statements.

B ZBERE

MEETFER

FARETFHRERERMOEXHE - R
RYERYE AW BHRERNBARRERN
FR - GUEHARERMEFBREAM
BHRALBAEBRFETRIEN - ZMAT
EUHELEREHEBNER - B TIE
FEMmMS - RAREZER MeHERMAE
FERTTREZFENSA

BB BITAME [XBEhE e 5
BERAFENEE] BOPMRNEE - BFE%
FEEMEMT - Bt - RAINBABEHR
TREF NEHRMABGAMBHRREX
BHARBR A E R R © RIPINFE R (R
FEREATEEMRBRNEF)NER B
BT BEM BV R & M S R T B R A&, at
BRIRGER -

How our audit addressed

Key audit matter the key audit matter

BMNEST AR
BRETEE BRRELER

Impairment assessment of accounts and bills receivables

FEY Rk R 12 49 BB A

As at 31 December 2017, the
Group recorded accounts and bills
receivables of HK$43,111,000
which represented approximately

In evaluating management’s
impairment assessment, we
tested the correctness of
aging analysis of accounts
23% of the current assets of the | and bills receivables prepared
Group. Management is required | by the management. In
to assess whether a provision for | addition, we checked the
impairment is required in respect of | subsequent settlement and
those receivables that might not be | historical repayment pattern
fully recovered. This assessment | of customers, with material
requires significant management | outstanding balances as at 31
judgement on the financial | December 2017.
condition and creditworthiness of

each customer.

Disclosures for accounts and bills
receivables are included in notes 4
and 21 to the financial statements.

2017512 A318 -
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Independent Auditor’s Report
BB R

OTHER INFORMATION INCLUDED IN THE ANNUAL
REPORT

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the Annual Report, other than the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
of the Company are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors of the Company either intend to
liquidate the Group or to cease operations or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit Committee in

discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial
reporting process.

Dragon Crown Group Holdings Limited BEFIEEIERER AR

FHFARAOHEMER

BERREFAHHEMESRR - HMES
BREFHRANEGER ETEEERSMER
R EBPIOZBERE -

BAESEEMBHRRNELL NREEM
B R TEZEHEMEREREM
AR R o

BARMERAMBERRNOEF - BN
BEERMEEMES  EIEES BE
HERER B e MBmRABMER
FHERETATRABAFEENEBELT
EEAERRANER - ERHFIE AT
M MRBEMARBSEMESFEEX
R RPFERERETEE - £EE
T BIFPEE RS -

ESHGaMERRMRIENHRE

BERREFARBRBETEGIMAEMR
o K& B I 75 T £ R D R B BCR Bl &
PDMEBEREREBEEEM T BNEE T
BE - UHERBRA/ESEMBEHRRAOE
BT FERRHGFFRERMEBNEXSE
RERLPIR R ABES AR -

ERBRAMBERRE  ERREFAE
AHAERERELENED  YEERE
MTHREERBCERANSER  UR&E
RFELERSER  RIEEEFEH

EREBRAEIHEE R HER
CENSER
EAFSEEEREARGY T AAK
EEERENSHREBE -



Independent Auditor’s Report

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Our report is made solely
to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
BB R

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

° Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures
in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters
that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.

Dragon Crown Group Holdings Limited BEFIEEIERER AR
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Independent Auditor’s Report

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Chan Kam Yee.

Ernst & Young
Certified Public Accountants

22/F CITIC Tower
1 Tim Mei Avenue
Central, Hong Kong

20 March 2018
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss
mEBRER

Year ended 31 December 2017

HE2017FE12 831 BILEE

2017 2016
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
B sk FET FHEIT
REVENUE WA 6 241,464 249,898
Cost of services provided RAEARTSR AR (115,935) (115,402)
Gross profit EH 125,529 134,496
Other income Hap e A 7 15,878 8,105
Administrative expenses THRAX (45,760) (49,522)
Finance costs BERA 8 (5,598) (2,980)
Share of profits and losses of: FEML R A KBS -
Associate i le/NE] (109) 3,636
Joint ventures Bel¥ (2,834) 4,902
PROFIT BEFORE TAX BB DG A 9 87,106 98,637
Tax I 12 (29,299) (18,557)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FRER 57,807 80,080
Attributable to: AT AT :
Owners of the Company VIN/NGIE7 =N 50,276 70,598
Non-controlling interests eI R 7,531 9,482
57,807 80,080
EARNINGS PER SHARE AATHEEA
ATTRIBUTABLE TO EEEREF
OWNERS OF THE COMPANY (L)
(HK cents)
Basic 2K 14 412 6.26
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
mEeEXHEWAER

Year ended 31 December 2017
HE2017E 12 A31 HILFE

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE
INCOME/(LOSS)

Other comprehensive income/(loss)
to be reclassified to profit or
loss in subsequent periods:

Share of changes in exchange
differences of an associate

Share of changes in exchange
differences of joint ventures

Exchange differences on translation
of foreign operations

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR

Attributable to:
Owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests

FREF

HttZmEB A (E18)

RRBEPRRERHEE

B Kb EEBRA(B18) :

PEAET D R

FEH R EhRE L ZHRE

BEBINETERE L E 5

FREME
LN

AT AL
ARRER A
IR R

2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET T
57,807 80,080
1,365 (1,177)
30,600 (11,066)
51,439 (54,629)
83,404 (66,872)
141,211 13,208
129,962 8,068
11,249 5,140
141,211 13,208
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e BRI R
31 December 2017
2017412 A 31 H

NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Property, plant and equipment
Prepaid land lease payments
Gooadwill

Investment in an associate
Investments in joint ventures
Available-for-sale investment
Prepayments

Total non-current assets

CURRENT ASSETS
Inventories
Accounts and bills receivables
Prepayments, deposits

and other receivables
Cash and cash equivalents

Total current assets

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Other payables and accruals
Interest-bearing bank loans
Tax payable

Total current liabilities
NET CURRENT ASSETS

TOTAL ASSETS LESS
CURRENT LIABILITIES

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Interest-bearing bank loans
Deferred tax liabilities

Total non-current liabilities

NET ASSETS

Notes
BT
REBEE
) E YN 15
Taft S 16
EES 17
R—EEE A RIMNRE 18
RELLEMRE 19
AHNENEE 20
SEUNE:N 22
ERBEERE
RBEE
FE
FEMER % iR 21
AR ek
H e U IR 22
ReRREEEY 23
MEVBEMRE
REBEE
HtEIgoaREsrER 24
TEIRITER 25
JESTEEIE
mENBERE
REBEEFE
HEERRBES
FkRBERS
HESRITER 25
BERIBEE 26
ERBAERE
EEFE

Dragon Crown Group Holdings Limited BEFIEEIERER AR

2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET TR
607,646 604,390
36,122 34,478
1,210 1,210
19,286 18,016
507,167 351,162
41,200 41,200
3,071 5,627
1,215,702 1,056,083
3,269 2,291
43,111 31,062
16,718 7,756
127,245 208,121
190,343 249,220
27,950 14,744
50,500 =
6,072 4,286
84,522 19,030
105,821 230,190
1,321,523 1,286,273
178,083 227,683
4,016 4,507
182,099 232,090
1,139,424 1,054,183




Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

EQUITY

Equity attributable to owners
of the Company

Share capital

Reserves

Non-controlling interests

TOTAL EQUITY

Ng Wai Man
RER
Director

EF

R
RATREEA
PEfL R 5=
[EEN
G

FERER
BEAE

Notes

B aE

Chong Yat Chin

HA

Director

EF

27
29

=
B

e BRI R
31 December 2017
201712 A31H

2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET THET
122,063 122,063
965,743 882,241
1,087,806 1,004,304
51,618 49,879
1,139,424 1,054,183
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
mEERgER

Year ended 31 December 2017
HZE2017F 12831 AILFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

RTEAARE
Exchange Non-
Share Share  Reserve Capital ~ fluctuation ~ Retained controlling Total
capital ~ premium funds* reserve reserve profits Total  interests equity
] EfRE

S A B RER B fhEE  EauE
Not HKS000  HKSO00  HKSO00  HKSO0D  HKSO0D  HKSOOD  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000
it Tin Tin Tin in in in THn THn THn
(note 29(i)  (note 29(i)  (note 29(ii)
(ko) (Reszoop) (W ougi)

At January 2017 RNMTE1A1R 122,063 553,008 13,457 0407 (2529 306992 1004304 408719 1,054183
Proft forte year g - - - - - R 5 7551 51807
Other comprehensiv ncome o e year: ERERZENA:
Shre of changesnexchange EiBend
diferences of an assockte EizEsy - - - - 1,365 - 1,65 - 1365
S of changes nexchange Eliagts
diferences of it ventures Eizgs - - - - 304600 - 30600 - 30600
Exchange dfetences et o Gl
foreign operations EizE - - - - a7 - a7 38 51439
Totd comprehensie income for e year EREENALE - - - - 19606 5026 129962 149 M
Appropriaon o stautoryresene AEiEhE - - 8 - - (008 m n -
Final 2016 diidend M6ERERE 13 - - - - - (28,074) (28074 - (28074
eim 201 diend T ERe 1 - - - - -9 (i - e
Dhicends decved onon-cortrolingmerests S 2 FEEER 28 - - - - - - - [osen e
At31 December 2017 ROTERANA 122,063 553,006 14.286™ 401 67,163 300079* 1,087,806 5618 113042

*

The reserve funds include the share of reserves of an associate * REECOERLBENTIRE ERER

and joint ventures of HK$4,739,000 (2016: HK$4,606,000). & 4,739,000 7T (2016 5 : 4,606,000 7
JL) °

**  These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of > ZERMEERERBREAVMBRKARA

HK$965,743,000 (2016: HK$882,241,000) in the consolidated R 4R & f#1965,743,0007% 7T (2016 4F -

statement of financial position. 882,241,00077T) ©
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A1 January 2016
Proft for he year
Other comprefensie loss for the year
Share of changes n exchange
ciferences of an associte
Share of changes i exchange
(lfferences ofjoint ventures
Exchange diferences reated fo
foreign operations

Total comprefensive income/oss) for the year
Appropriation o statutory resenve

Final 2015 cividend

Interin 2016 dhicend

Dividends decred o non-confroling inferests
Issug of shares

Share Issuance expenses

At31 December 2016

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

Attioutable fo owners of the Company

REEDBER

Year ended 31 December 2017
HE2017E 12 A31 HILFE

FAARBARK
Exchange Non-
Shre S Resene Captdl ~ fuctuafon ~ Refained contoling Totd
captd — premium funds' fesene Tesene profts Toid  inferests equity
&R XD
S B AN BE RO B FERER  ERUE
Notes 00 HS00  HRGOD  HKS000  HKSO00  HKSOOD  HKSO00  HKSOO0  HKSOD
i i T TR TR TR TAL TR TR TR
(ole 29 (rote29f)  (note 29(i)
(hikoom)  (Hitoon)  (Wstosg)
R6E1A1A 11096 431509 12,441 0407 nor o w2e 905 S8 9604
Ef = - - - 705% 705% 9482 80,080
ERERREER:
ElBEnT
EfZEE - - - (117 - (1177) - (1177
Rhagts
EfZER - - - (11,0660 - (11,066 - (11,066
EREERN
Ef2E = = - (60281) - (50,287) (3 [4eH
EREEN/ (R &8 - - - Ry T 8068 50 138
RE kiR - 1016 - - (1t ) % -
WoERERS 13 - - - - B bR - B
NioEAHRE 13 - - - - (781 VA - 219
EREHARELZBE - - - - - - 1B s
k] i o 126 - - - - 1708 - 1%
RiaRR l b2t - - - - B212) - 6212
R16E128%18 12208 G308 13T 4Tt (26 069 10M3 29879 1004183
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

= e~ —1
mEHERER
Year ended 31 December 2017
HE2017F 12 A31 BILFE

CASH FLOWS FROM
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax
Adjustments for:
Finance costs
Bank interest income
Loan interest income
Depreciation
Amortisation of prepaid
land lease payments
Loss on disposal of items of

property, plant and equipment

Share of profits and losses of:
Associate
Joint ventures

Decrease/(increase) in inventories
Decrease/(increase) in accounts
and bills receivables

Decrease/(increase) in prepayments,

deposits and other receivables

Increase/(decrease) in other payables

and accruals

Cash generated from operations
Tax paid

Net cash flows from operating activities

Notes

Bt

REEREE
ZHRERE
B A5 A1 A
AT S IRFE
BE A
RITHLE A
B S A
e
B L
e 9
REWZE - BFE
RiEEE EE 9
FEAE S K2 8518

N

AEDRE

© ~N ~

o

FERD ()
R N R
WL/ (B)
BN - RE MEMBER
FERD, (1)
H At FEA SRR K FE R T

EBmEm ORd)
RERERE
ERHE

RERPMFRSNEFE

Dragon Crown Group Holdings Limited #EF&EEZEREGRA A

2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHIT
87,106 98,637
5,598 2,980
(2,587) 3,172
(9,094) (3,047)
51,900 51,780
912 924
2,837 1,112
109 (3,636)
2,834 (4,902)
139,615 140,676
(772) 416
(9,339) 9,558
2,499 (6,227)
1,349 (4,207)
133,352 140,216
(28,634) (19,658)
104,718 120,558




CASH FLOWS FROM
INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchases of items of property,
plant and equipment
Proceeds from disposal of items
of property, plant and equipment
Acquisition of an interest in a joint
venture
Capital injections to a joint venture
Increase in loans to a joint venture

Acquisition of an available-for-sale
investment
Interest received

Dividends received from joint ventures

Decrease/(increase) in time deposits
with original maturity of over three
months when acquired

Net cash flows used in investing
activities

CASH FLOWS FROM
FINANCING ACTIVITIES

New bank loans

Repayment of bank loans

Proceeds from issue of shares

Share issuance expenses

Dividends paid

Dividends paid to non-controlling interests

Interest paid

Net cash flows from/(used in)
financing activities

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

Notes

M

RETEEE

ZEERE

BEWE  WE

K& HEEE
BREMZE - BE R

BHB ZFB5RIE
WEE—EAEE

B a 30, 31(a)(Vv)
m—EEERFETE 30
#mnm—EEETE
RIFECER
Wi —IRAHE

Wiz E

B IFE

B E EERE
R B R R E EI HA B

HBim =18 A 2 E 5
TR,/ (38%h0) 23
WEEEFTA

REenEFHE

BMEEBHESE
ZHRERE

FIBIRITER

EERITER

BAn BT 2 PSR

Bin BT

2R

S TR R 2 BB
EfFE

BERBME ()

REenEFHE

RERTREBR

Year ended 31 December 2017
HE2017E 12 A31 HILFE

2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAxT
(10,243) (10,020)
- 23

- (65,937)
(61,153) (153,108)
(73,232) (111,670)
- (41,200)
2,587 3,172
4,349 5,641
85,000 (85,000)
(52,692) (458,099)
- 230,000

- (42,500)

- 138,708

- (5,212)
(46,383) (47,715)
- (10,438)
(4,598) (5,397)
(50,981) 257,446
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

= Td=1
mEHERER
Year ended 31 December 2017
BZE2017TF12 A3 HILFE

NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents
at beginning of year

Effect of foreign exchange
rate changes, net

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
AT END OF YEAR

ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and bank balances

Time deposits with original
maturity of less than three
months when acquired

Cash and cash equivalents as
stated in the consolidated
statement of cash flows

RERREEEY
#@m, () B

REVZRE
;EEEHED

i 1)
MY FE

RERZRE
RBREEEY

RERREEEY
EERDAT

B MIRITHER
RUEER R E 28 B
PRIEAZ

EHEFER

FINGARERER
ZBE kRS FEY

Dragon Crown Group Holdings Limited BEFIEEIERER AR

2017 2016
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
BT FERT FET
1,045 (80,095)
123,121 211,225
3,079 (8,009)
127,245 123,121
23 52,863 92,412
23 74,382 30,709
127,245 123,121




Notes to Financial Statements

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

Dragon Crown Group Holdings Limited (the “Company”) was
incorporated on 16 July 2010 as an exempted company
with limited liability under the Companies Law of the Cayman
Islands. The address of its registered office is Cricket Square,
Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman KY1-1111,
Cayman Islands. The address of its principal place of business
in Hong Kong is Unit No.3, 18th Floor, Convention Plaza,
Office Tower, No.1 Harbour Road, Hong Kong. The Group is
principally engaged in terminal storage and handling of liquid
petrochemicals.

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the ultimate
holding company of the Company is Lirun Limited, which is
a limited liability company incorporated in the British Virgin
Islands (the “BVI”).

Information about subsidiaries

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries as at 31
December 2017 are as follows:

Place of Issued

incorporation/ ordinary/

registration registered

Name and business share capital
MR,/ B#T

8 BHIPES S B /ihRA
Ocean Ahead Limited BVI/Hong Kong US$100
EBBRRNE/BE 100%7T

Edford Investments Limited BVI/Hong Kong US$1
KIREBRAR EBERARES/BE 137
Dragon Bussan International Limited Hong Kong Ordinary US$600,000
EAMEARDR BB Non-voting deferred
1US$900,000 (note a)

L1k 600,000% T

ERTIEEL

1% 900,000% 7T

(Ffiza)

ISR ML

31 December 2017
201712 A31H

LFIRKREEH

EAREZERERAR(ARA DR
BERSBFERFER20106F7 A 16
B L AERRERAGE &
NalFEff =R Cricket Square,
Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681,
Grand Cayman KY1-1111, Cayman
Islands ° R QAR B ZLL LS
R BBBEE1RERESHAKN
18183 E - AEEF BN HREBIL
At IS sAHTE REEIR T

RRBEZRRS  ARRREERR
BAIRRRBEBRES ((RBERAR
B EMKZZBREERRANHE
BRAR -

TRMEBARZER

ARABR2017512 A 31 HAYF EHt
BARIFEWT ¢

Percentage
of equity
attributable to
the Company Principal activities
KT R IRE
Bk TERH
Direct Indirect
B 5t
100 - Investment holding
RARR
- 100 Investment holding
RARR
- 100 Investment holding
and provision of
marketing services
REBRRR TS
HERE
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Notes to Financial Statements
e

31 December 2017
2017412 A 31 H

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION (continued) 1. LFRKE&EH(Z)

Information about subsidiaries (continued) EENBATIZER ()
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries as at 31 KRR 2017 F12 A 31 BHYE ZHt
December 2017 are as follows: (continued) BARGBWT : (&)
Place of Issued Percentage
incorporation/ ordinary/ of equity
registration registered attributable to
Name and business share capital the Company Principal activities
MR/ BET KT b IRE
£ BIPES S B /imRA AAl TERK
Direct Indirect
Ei i

Dragon Crown Petrochemicals Hong Kong  Ordinary US$26,600,000 = 100 Investment holding
Terminal (Holdings) Limited BE Non-voting deferred and provision of

ENRHE(£E)BRA US$500,000 (note a) finance and

LB 26,600,000 T management services
ERZREL RA TR KRBT
1%500,000% 7T EERH
(Ffiza)
Dragon Source Industrial Limited Hong Kong  Ordinary HK$26,000,000 - 100 Investment holding
EMLIERAR BB Non-voting deferred and provision of
HK$2,000,000 (note a) accounting services
L4#0% 26,000,000 7T REERRRM e RS
ERTIERL
#%2,000,0007% T
(Mizka)

Nanjing Dragon Crown Liquid PRC/ US$52,254,820 - 90.01 Terminal storage
Chemical Terminal Company Mainland China 52,254,820 % T and handling of
Limited (‘NJDC”) FE/RER liouid chemicals

FRERE L IHERR RElEnBERFFRER
AR (TEREA])

Ocean Access Investments Limited Hong Kong HKS$1 = 100 Investment holding

BRERERAR it 13871 and provision of

administrative and
technical services
REBRRRE
TR AT AR
Overseas Hong Kong Investment Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 = 100 Provision of business
BINEBREER AR B 10,0007 development service
PR E BRI

Dragon Crown Group Holdings Limited BEFIEEIERER AR



2.1

Notes to Financial Statements

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION (continued)

Information about subsidiaries (continued)

Note:

(a) The non-voting deferred shares do not entitle the holders
thereof to receive notice of or to attend or vote at any
general meeting of the respective companies. The holders
of the non-voting deferred shares are not entitled to any
dividends. On a winding-up, the holders of the non-voting
deferred shares are entitled, out of the surplus assets of the
respective companies, to a return of the capital paid up on
the non-voting deferred shares held by them to one half of
the balance after a total sum of HK$100,000,000,000,000
has been distributed in such winding-up in respect of the
ordinary shares of the respective companies.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which,
in the opinion of the directors, principally affected the results
for the year or formed a substantial portion of the net assets
of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would, in
the opinion of the directors, result in particulars of excessive
length.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs”) (which include all Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”)
and Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”), accounting
principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. They
have been prepared under the historical cost convention.
These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars
and all values are rounded to the nearest thousand except
when otherwise indicated.

2.1

ISR ML

31 December 2017
201712 A31H
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ZRERRRERARNTERS
JKk 4838 100,000,000,000,000/8 T4
BREN—DZ— o
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REBRHDEEFE EFRA
Al EMHB AR ERREZE
FHER TR °
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Notes to Financial Statements
s B R

31 December 2017
2017412 A 31 H

2.1

BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December
2017. A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity),
directly or indirectly, controlled by the Company. Control
is achieved when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to
variable returns from its involvement with the investee and has
the ability to affect those returns through its power over the
investee (i.e., existing rights that give the Group the current
ability to direct the relevant activities of the investee).

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than a
majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group
considers all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing
whether it has power over an investee, including:

(@ the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders
of the investee;

(o)  rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

(c) the Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared
for the same reporting period as the Company, using
consistent accounting policies. The results of subsidiaries
are consolidated from the date on which the Group obtains
control, and continue to be consolidated until the date that
such control ceases.

Dragon Crown Group Holdings Limited BEFIEEIERER AR
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2.1

Notes to Financial Statements

BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the Company and to
the non-controlling interests, even if this results in the non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance. All intra-group
assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows
relating to transactions between members of the Group are
eliminated in full on consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee
if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to
one or more of the three elements of control described above.
A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a
loss of control, is accounted for as an equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises (i)
the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary,
(i) the carrying amount of any non-controlling interest and (iii)
the cumulative translation differences recorded in equity; and
recognises (i) the fair value of the consideration received, (ii)
the fair value of any investment retained and (jii) any resulting
surplus or deficit in profit or loss. The Group’s share of
components previously recognised in other comprehensive
income is reclassified to profit or loss or retained profits, as
appropriate, on the same basis as would be required if the
Group had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities.

2.1
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Notes to Financial Statements

B R R AR BT EE

31 December 2017
2017412 A 31 H

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND

DISCLOSURES

The Group has adopted the following revised HKFRSs for the

first time for the current year’s financial statements:

Amendments to
HKAS 7

Amendments to
HKAS 12

Amendments
to HKFRS 12
included in Annual
Improvements to
HKFRSs
2014-2016 Cycle

Disclosure Initiative

Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets
for Unrealised Losses

Disclosure of Interests in Other
Entities: Clarification of the Scope
of HKFRS 12

Dragon Crown Group Holdings Limited BEFIEEIERER AR
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (continued)

As explained below, the adoption of the above revised
standards has had no significant financial effect on these
financial statements.

The nature and the impact of the amendments are described
below:

(@)

Amendments to HKAS 7 require an entity to provide
disclosures that enable users of financial statements
to evaluate changes in liabilities arising from financing
activities, including both changes arising from cash flows
and non-cash changes. Disclosure of the changes in
liabilities arising from financing activities is provided in
note 31(b) to the financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 12 clarify that an entity, when
assessing whether taxable profits will be available
against which it can utilise a deductible temporary
difference, needs to consider whether tax law restricts
the sources of taxable profits against which it may
make deductions on the reversal of that deductible
temporary difference. Furthermore, the amendments
provide guidance on how an entity should determine
future taxable profits and explain the circumstances
in which taxable profit may include the recovery of
some assets for more than their carrying amount. The
amendments have had no impact on the financial
position or performance of the Group as the Group has
no deductible temporary differences or assets that are in
the scope of the amendments.

Amendments to HKFRS 12 clarify that the disclosure
requirements in HKFRS 12, other than those disclosure
requirements in paragraphs B10 to B16 of HKFRS
12, apply to an entity’s interest in a subsidiary, a joint
venture or an associate, or a portion of its interest in a
joint venture or an associate that is classified as held for
sale or included in a disposal group classified as held
for sale. The amendments have had no impact on the
Group’s financial statements as the Group did not have
subsidiaries classified as a disposal group held for sale
as at 31 December 2017.
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Notes to Financial Statements
e

31 December 2017
2017412 A 31 H

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

The Group has not applied the following new and revised
HKFRSs, that have been issued but are not yet effective, in
these financial statements.

Amendments to
HKFRS 2

Amendments to
HKFRS 4

Amendments to
HKFRS 9

Amendments to
HKFRS 10 and
HKAS 28 (2011)

Amendments to
HKFRS 15

Amendments to
HKAS 28

Amendments to
HKAS 40

HKFRS 9

HKFRS 15
HKFRS 16
HKFRS 17

HK (IFRIC)-Int 22

HK (IFRIC)-Int 23

Classification and Measurement of Share-
based Payment Transactions’

Applying HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments with
HKFRS 4 Insurance Contracts'

Prepayment Features with Negative
Compensation?®

Sale or Contribution of Assets between an
Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture*

Clarifications to HKFRS 15 Revenue from

Contracts with Customers!

Long-term Interests in Associates and Joint
Ventures?

Transfers of Investment Property’

Financial Instruments’

Revenue from Contracts with Customers'’
Leases?

Insurance Contracts®

Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance
Consideration’

Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatment?

Annual Improvements Amendments to HKFRS 1 and HKAS 28!

2014-2016 Cycle

Annual Improvements  Amendments to HKFRS 3, HKFRS 11,

2015-2017 Cycle

HKAS 12 and HKAS 23°
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2.3

Notes to Financial Statements

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2018

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2019

8 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2021

4 No mandatory effective date yet determined but available for
adoption

Further information about those HKFRSs that are expected to
be applicable to the Group is described below.

Of those standards, HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 15 will be applicable
for the Group’s financial year ending 31 December 2018 and
are expected to have a significant impact upon adoption.
Whilst management has performed a detailed assessment of
the estimated impacts of these standards, that assessment
is based on the information currently available to the Group,
including expectations of the application of transitional
provision options and policy choice. The actual impacts upon
adoption could be different to those below, depending on
additional reasonable and supportable information being made
available to the Group at the time of applying the standards
and the transitional provisions and policy options finally
adopted.

In September 2014, the HKICPA issued the final version
of HKFRS 9, bringing together all phases of the financial
instruments project to replace HKAS 39 and all previous
versions of HKFRS 9. The standard introduces new
requirements for classification and measurement, impairment
and hedge accounting. The Group will adopt HKFRS 9 from
1 January 2018. The Group will not restate comparative
information and will recognise any transition adjustments
against the opening balance of equity at 1 January 2018.
During 2017, the Group has performed a detailed assessment
of the impact of the adoption of HKFRS 9. The expected
impacts relate to the classification and measurement and the
impairment requirements and are summarised as follows:
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Notes to Financial Statements
e

31 December 2017
2017412 A 31 H

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)

(a)

(b)

Classification and measurement

The Group does not expect that the adoption of HKFRS
9 will have a significant impact on the classification
and measurement of its financial assets. It expects
to continue measuring at fair value all financial assets
currently held at fair value. Equity investments currently
held as available for sale will be measured at fair value
through profit or loss as the investments are intended to
be held for the foreseeable future and the Group expects
to apply the option to present fair value changes in profit
or loss.

Impairment

HKFRS 9 requires an impairment on debt instruments
recorded at amortised cost or at fair value through
other comprehensive income, lease receivables, loan
commitments and financial guarantee contracts that are
not accounted for at fair value through profit or loss under
HKFRS 9, to be recorded based on an expected credit
loss model either on a twelve-month basis or a lifetime
basis. The Group will apply the simplified approach
and record lifetime expected losses that are estimated
based on the present values of all cash shortfalls over
the remaining life of all of its trade and other receivables.
Furthermore, the Group will apply the general approach
and record twelve-month expected credit losses that
are estimated based on the possible default events on
its other receivables within the next twelve months. The
Group has expected that the provision for impairment will
increase upon the initial adoption of the standard.

Dragon Crown Group Holdings Limited BEFIEEIERER AR
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2.3

Notes to Financial Statements

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)

HKFRS 15, issued in July 2014, establishes a new five-
step model to account for revenue arising from contracts
with customers. Under HKFRS 15, revenue is recognised
at an amount that reflects the consideration to which an
entity expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring
goods or services to a customer. The principles in HKFRS
15 provide a more structured approach for measuring
and recognising revenue. The standard also introduces
extensive qualitative and quantitative disclosure requirements,
including disaggregation of total revenue, information about
performance obligations, changes in contract asset and liability
account balances between periods and key judgements
and estimates. The standard will supersede all current
revenue recognition requirements under HKFRSs. Either a full
retrospective application or a modified retrospective adoption
is required on the initial application of the standard. In June
2016, the HKICPA issued amendments to HKFRS 15 to
address the implementation issues on identifying performance
obligations, application guidance on principal versus agent
and licences of intellectual property, and transition. The
amendments are also intended to help ensure a more
consistent application when entities adopt HKFRS 15 and
decrease the cost and complexity of applying the standard.
The Group plans to adopt the transitional provisions in HKFRS
15 to recognise the cumulative effect of initial adoption as an
adjustment to the opening balance of retained earnings at 1
January 2018. In addition, the Group plans to apply the new
requirements only to contracts that are not completed before
1 January 2018. The Group expects that the transitional
adjustment to be made on 1 January 2018 upon initial
adoption of HKFRS 15 will not be material.
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31 December 2017
2017412 A 31 H

2.3

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)

The presentation and disclosure requirements in HKFRS 15
are more detailed than those under the current HKAS 18.
The presentation requirements represent a significant change
from current practice and will significantly increase the volume
of disclosures required in the Group’s financial statements.
Many of the disclosure requirements in HKFRS 15 are new
and the Group has assessed that the impact of some of these
disclosure requirements will not be significant. In particular,
the Group expects that the notes to the financial statements
will be expanded because of the disclosure of significant
judgements made on determining the transaction prices of
those contracts that include variable consideration, how the
transaction prices have been allocated to the performance
obligations, and the assumptions made to estimate the stand-
alone selling price of each performance obligation. In addition,
as required by HKFRS 15, the Group will disaggregate revenue
recognised from contracts with customers into categories
that depict how the nature, amount, timing and uncertainty of
revenue and cash flows are affected by economic factors. It will
also disclose information about the relationship between the
disclosure of disaggregated revenue and revenue information
disclosed for each reportable segment.
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Notes to Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition
method. The consideration transferred is measured at the
acquisition date fair value which is the sum of the acquisition
date fair values of assets transferred by the Group, liabilities
assumed by the Group to the former owners of the acquiree
and the equity interests issued by the Group in exchange for
control of the acquiree. For each business combination, the
Group elects whether to measure the non-controlling interests
in the acquiree that are present ownership interests and entitle
their holders to a proportionate share of net assets in the event
of liquidation either at fair value or at the proportionate share
of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All other components
of non-controlling interests are measured at fair value.
Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial
assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate classification
and designation in accordance with the contractual terms,
economic circumstances and pertinent conditions as at the
acquisition date. This includes the separation of embedded
derivatives in host contracts of the acquiree.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Business combinations and goodwill (continued)

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the
previously held equity interest is remeasured at its acquisition
date fair value and any resulting gain or loss is recognised in
profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer
is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Contingent
consideration classified as an asset or liability is measured
at fair value with changes in fair value recognised in profit or
loss. Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is
not remeasured and subsequent settlement is accounted for
within equity.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of
the aggregate of the consideration transferred, the amount
recognised for non-controlling interests and any fair value of
the Group’s previously held equity interests in the acquiree
over the identifiable net assets acquired and liabilities
assumed. If the sum of this consideration and other items
is lower than the fair value of the net assets acquired, the
difference is, after reassessment, recognised in profit or loss as
a gain on bargain purchase.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less
any accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is tested for
impairment annually or more frequently if events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be
impaired. The Group performs its annual impairment test of
goodwill as at 31 December. For the purpose of impairment
testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination is, from
the acquisition date, allocated to each of the Group’s cash-
generating units, or groups of cash-generating units, that are
expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination,
irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of the Group
are assigned to those units or groups of units.
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Notes to Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Business combinations and goodwill (continued)

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating
units) to which the goodwill relates. Where the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating
units) is less than the carrying amount, an impairment loss is
recognised. An impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not
reversed in a subsequent period.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit
(or group of cash-generating units) and part of the operation
within that unit is disposed of, the goodwill associated with the
operation disposed of is included in the carrying amount of the
operation when determining the gain or loss on the disposal.
Goodwill disposed of in these circumstances is measured
based on the relative value of the operation disposed of and
the portion of the cash-generating unit retained.

Investments in associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity in which the Group has a long term
interest of generally not less than 20% of the equity voting
rights and over which it is in a position to exercise significant
influence. Significant influence is the power to participate in the
financial and operating policy decisions of the investee, but is
not control or joint control over those policies.

A joint venture is a type of joint arrangement whereby the
parties that have joint control of the arrangement have rights
to the net assets of the joint venture. Joint control is the
contractually agreed sharing of control of an arrangement,
which exists only when decisions about the relevant activities
require the unanimous consent of the parties sharing control.

ISR ML

31 December 2017
201712 A31H

FEEBREE(E)

EBAHREE(E)

BB B A EEEREENR S E
EBA (IR EEBMAR) HATIK
EleFEET - ERGELEENM (IR
SEEBEMAR) 8D EER
BRE SRR - REEEE TUAER -

EREERERNBEBETERARRK
HAREHE ] o

WEBEPRERSELEN (B
SEABMAR) Mz BAAILDZE
BEHE - BIfEE T & EBaK
ok B IR - EBRPT I & SRR
Bt AZEBERRE - £2ZER
THEMNEE - THiREHEEBHH
ﬁﬂﬁ@&ﬁi&iﬁumﬁ 2058
HEATETE ©

RBERRREEEREZIRE

BANRABAEBNEF—RIERE
RE AL ZRER DR 20% HY = B RS
WA ETFEAFE INER - &=
ATEBNTIBEEZEREHR 2K
T2 A8 SRR TE T FE 48 ) ok 2k R 122 o
ZEBER -

ABLEE—BARTY  HEHR
B ERESIEZ SO B EA S0
% BESEREAEF - RAEBIE
B — B R
5 AAESIEEANEDEREE
B TR I — B 2R
BHEAE o

Annual Report 2017 FE#H &

81



Notes to Financial Statements
s B R

31 December 2017
2017412 A 31 H

82

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Investments in associates and joint ventures (continued)

The Group’s investments in associates and joint ventures are
stated in the consolidated statement of financial position at
the Group’s share of net assets under the equity method of
accounting, less any impairment losses. The Group’s share
of the post-acquisition results and other comprehensive
income of associates and joint ventures is included in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and consolidated other
comprehensive income, respectively. In addition, when there
has been a change recognised directly in the equity of the
associate or joint venture, the Group recognises its share of
any changes, when applicable, in the consolidated statement
of changes in equity. Unrealised gains and losses resulting
from transactions between the Group and its associates or
joint ventures are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s
investments in the associates or joint ventures, except where
unrealised losses provide evidence of an impairment of the
assets transferred. Goodwill arising from the acquisition of
associates or joint ventures is included as part of the Group’s
investments in associates or joint ventures.

If an investment in an associate becomes an investment
in a joint venture or vice versa, the retained interest is
not remeasured. Instead, the investment continues to be
accounted for under the equity method. In all other cases,
upon loss of significant influence over the associate or joint
control over the joint venture, the Group measures and
recognises any retained investment at its fair value. Any
difference between the carrying amount of the associate or
joint venture upon loss of significant influence or joint control
and the fair value of the retained investment and proceeds from
disposal is recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than
inventories and financial assets), the asset’s recoverable
amount is estimated. An asset’s recoverable amount is the
higher of the asset’s or cash-generating unit’s value in use
and its fair value less costs of disposal, and is determined for
an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash
inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets
or groups of assets, in which case the recoverable amount
is determined for the cash-generating unit to which the asset
belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount
of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing
value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to
their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money and
the risks specific to the asset. An impairment loss is charged
to the statement of profit or loss in the period in which it arises
in those expense categories consistent with the function of the
impaired asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period
as to whether there is an indication that previously recognised
impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased.
If such an indication exists, the recoverable amount is
estimated. A previously recognised impairment loss of an
asset other than goodwill is reversed only if there has been a
change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable
amount of that asset, but not to an amount higher than the
carrying amount that would have been determined (net of
any depreciation/amortisation) had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal of such an
impairment loss is credited to the statement of profit or loss in
the period in which it arises.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in
progress, are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation
and any impairment losses. The cost of an item of property,
plant and equipment comprises its purchase price and any
directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working
condition and location for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and
equipment have been put into operation, such as repairs and
maintenance, is normally charged to the statement of profit or
loss in the period in which it is incurred. In situations where the
recognition criteria are satisfied, the expenditure for a major
inspection is capitalised in the carrying amount of the asset or
as a replacement. Where significant parts of property, plant
and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the
Group recognises such parts as individual assets with specific
useful lives and depreciates them accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off
the cost of each item of property, plant and equipment to its
residual value over its estimated useful life. The principal annual
rates used for this purpose are as follows:

Buildings and structures 3.17%-19%
Motor vehicles 19%
Office equipment 19%

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment
have different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated
on a reasonable basis among the parts and each part is
depreciated separately. Residual values, useful lives and the
depreciation method are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate,
at least at each financial year end.
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Notes to Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
(continued)

An item of property, plant and equipment including any
significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal or
retirement recognised in the statement of profit or loss in the
year the asset is derecognised is the difference between the
net sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant
asset.

Construction in progress represents the infrastructure of a
terminal under construction, which is stated at cost less any
impairment losses, and is not depreciated. Cost comprises the
direct costs of construction and capitalised borrowing costs
on related borrowed funds during the period of construction.
Construction in progress is reclassified to the appropriate
category of property, plant and equipment when completed
and ready for use.

Operating leases

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of
ownership of assets remain with the lessor are accounted for as
operating leases. Where the Group is the lessor, assets leased
by the Group under operating leases are included in non-current
assets, and rentals receivable under the operating leases are
credited to the statement of profit or loss on the straight-line
basis over the lease terms. Where the Group is the lessee, rental
payables under operating leases net of any incentives received
from the lessor are charged to the statement of profit or loss on
the straight-line basis over the lease terms.

Prepaid land lease payments under operating leases are
initially stated at cost and subsequently recognised on the
straight-line basis over the lease terms. When the lease
payments cannot be allocated reliably between the land and
buildings elements, the entire lease payments are included
in the cost of the land and buildings as a finance lease in
property, plant and equipment.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as loans
and receivables and available-for-sale financial investments.
When financial assets are recognised initially, they are
measured at fair value plus transaction costs that are
attributable to the acquisition of the financial assets, except in
the case of financial assets recorded at fair value through profit
or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way purchases
or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the period generally established by
regulation or convention in the marketplace.

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on
their classification as follows:

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in
an active market. After initial measurement, such assets are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest rate method less any allowance for impairment.
Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and includes fees or
costs that are an integral part of the effective interest rate. The
effective interest rate amortisation is included in the statement
of profit or loss. The loss arising from impairment is recognised
in the statement of profit or loss.
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Notes to Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)

Subsequent measurement (continued)

Available-for-sale financial investments

Available-for-sale financial investments are non-derivative
financial assets in listed and unlisted equity investments and
debt securities. Equity investments classified as available for
sale are those which are neither classified as held for trading
nor designated as at fair value through profit or loss. Debt
securities in this category are those which are intended to be
held for an indefinite period of time and which may be sold in
response to needs for liquidity or in response to changes in
market conditions.

After initial recognition, available-for-sale financial investments
are subsequently measured at fair value, with unrealised
gains or losses recognised as other comprehensive income
in the available-for-sale investment revaluation reserve until
the investment is derecognised, at which time the cumulative
gain or loss is recognised in the statement of profit or loss
in other income, or until the investment is determined to be
impaired, when the cumulative gain or loss is reclassified from
the available-for-sale investment revaluation reserve to the
statement of profit or loss in other gains or losses. Interest and
dividends earned whilst holding the available-for-sale financial
investments are reported as interest income and dividend
income, respectively and are recognised in the statement of
profit or loss as other income in accordance with the policies
set out for “Revenue recognition” below.

When the fair value of unlisted equity investments cannot be
reliably measured because (a) the variability in the range of
reasonable fair value estimates is significant for that investment
or (b) the probabilities of the various estimates within the range
cannot be reasonably assessed and used in estimating fair
value, such investments are stated at cost less any impairment
losses.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)

Subsequent measurement (continued)

Available-for-sale financial investments (continued)

The Group evaluates whether the ability and intention to
sell its available-for-sale financial assets in the near term are
still appropriate. When, in rare circumstances, the Group is
unable to trade these financial assets due to inactive markets,
the Group may elect to reclassify these financial assets if
management has the ability and intention to hold the assets for
the foreseeable future or until maturity.

For a financial asset reclassified from the available-for-
sale category, the fair value carrying amount at the date of
reclassification becomes its new amortised cost and any
previous gain or loss on that asset that has been recognised
in equity is amortised to profit or loss over the remaining
life of the investment using the effective interest rate. Any
difference between the new amortised cost and the maturity
amount is also amortised over the remaining life of the asset
using the effective interest rate. If the asset is subsequently
determined to be impaired, then the amount recorded in equity
is reclassified to the statement of profit or loss.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period
whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset or a
group of financial assets is impaired. An impairment exists if
one or more events that occurred after the initial recognition of
the asset have an impact on the estimated future cash flows
of the financial asset or the group of financial assets that can
be reliably estimated. Evidence of impairment may include
indications that a debtor or a group of debtors is experiencing
significant financial difficulty, default or delinquency in interest
or principal payments, the probability that they will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation and observable
data indicating that there is a measurable decrease in the
estimated future cash flows, such as changes in arrears or
economic conditions that correlate with defaults.
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Notes to Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Assets carried at cost

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss has been
incurred on an unquoted equity instrument that is not carried
at fair value because its fair value cannot be reliably measured,
or on a derivative asset that is linked to and must be settled
by delivery of such an unquoted equity instrument, the amount
of the loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of estimated future
cash flows discounted at the current market rate of return for
a similar financial asset. Impairment losses on these assets are
not reversed.

Available-for-sale financial investments

For available-for-sale financial investments, the Group
assesses at the end of each reporting period whether
there is objective evidence that an investment or a group of
investments is impaired.

If an available-for-sale asset is impaired, an amount comprising
the difference between its cost (net of any principal payment
and amortisation) and its current fair value, less any impairment
loss previously recognised in the statement of profit or loss, is
removed from other comprehensive income and recognised in
the statement of profit or loss.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Available-for-sale financial investments (continued)

In the case of equity investments classified as available
for sale, objective evidence would include a significant or
prolonged decline in the fair value of an investment below
its cost. “Significant” is evaluated against the original cost of
the investment and “prolonged” against the period in which
the fair value has been below its original cost. Where there is
evidence of impairment, the cumulative loss — measured as
the difference between the acquisition cost and the current fair
value, less any impairment loss on that investment previously
recognised in the statement of profit or loss — is removed from
other comprehensive income and recognised in the statement
of profit or loss. Impairment losses on equity instruments
classified as available for sale are not reversed through the
statement of profit or loss. Increases in their fair value after
impairment are recognised directly in other comprehensive
income.

The determination of what is “significant” or “prolonged”
requires judgement. In making this judgement, the Group
evaluates, among other factors, the duration or extent to which
the fair value of an investment is less than its cost.

Financial assets carried at amortised cost

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the Group first
assesses whether impairment exists individually for financial
assets that are individually significant, or collectively for
financial assets that are not individually significant. If the Group
determines that no objective evidence of impairment exists
for an individually assessed financial asset, whether significant
or not, it includes the asset in a group of financial assets with
similar credit risk characteristics and collectively assesses
them for impairment. Assets that are individually assessed for
impairment and for which an impairment loss is, or continues
to be, recognised are not included in a collective assessment
of impairment.
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Notes to Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Financial assets carried at amortised cost (continued)

The amount of any impairment loss identified is measured as
the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding future
credit losses that have not been incurred). The present value
of the estimated future cash flows is discounted at the financial
asset’s original effective interest rate (that is, the effective
interest rate computed at initial recognition).

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use
of an allowance account and the loss is recognised in the
statement of profit or loss. Interest income continues to be
accrued on the reduced carrying amount using the rate of
interest used to discount the future cash flows for the purpose
of measuring the impairment loss. Loans and receivables
together with any associated allowance are written off when
there is no realistic prospect of future recovery and all collateral
has been realised or has been transferred to the Group.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the estimated
impairment loss increases or decreases because of an
event occurring after the impairment was recognised, the
previously recognised impairment loss is increased or reduced
by adjusting the allowance account. If a write-off is later
recovered, the recovery is credited to the statement of profit or
loss.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial
asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily
derecognised (i.e., removed from the Group’s consolidated
statement of financial position) when:

° the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have
expired; or

° the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the
received cash flows in full without material delay to a third
party under a “pass-through” arrangement; and either
(@) the Group has transferred substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the
asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash
flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through
arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained
the risk and rewards of ownership of the asset. When it has
neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset nor transferred control of the asset, the
Group continues to recognise the transferred asset to the
extent of the Group’s continuing involvement. In that case, the
Group also recognises an associated liability. The transferred
asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis that
reflects the rights and obligations that the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over
the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original
carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of
consideration that the Group could be required to repay.
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Notes to Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans,
and borrowings, or as derivatives designated as hedging
instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in
the case of loans and borrowings, net of directly attributable
transaction cost.

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends
on their classification as follows:

Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, financial liabilities are subsequently
measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest rate
method unless the effect of discounting would be immaterial,
in which case they are stated at cost. Gains and losses are
recognised in the statement of profit or loss when the liabilities
are derecognised as well as through the effective interest rate
amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that
are an integral part of the effective interest rate. The effective
interest rate amortisation is included in finance costs in the
statement of profit or loss.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under
the liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Derecognition of financial liabilities (continued)

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another
from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the
terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such
an exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of
the original liability and a recognition of a new liability, and
the difference between the respective carrying amounts is
recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net
amount is reported in the statement of financial position if there
is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised
amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to
realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and
demand deposits, and short term highly liquid investments that
are readily convertible into known amounts of cash, are subject
to an insignificant risk of changes in value, and have a short
maturity of generally within three months when acquired, less
bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand and form an
integral part of the Group’s cash management.
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Notes to Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Cash and cash equivalents (continued)

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of financial
position, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand
and at banks, including term deposits, and assets similar in
nature to cash, which are not restricted as to use.

Inventories

Inventories represent consumables, tools and parts for use
in the operation, and are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined on the first-in, first-out
basis. Net realisable value is based on estimated selling prices
less any estimated costs to be incurred to completion and
disposal.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax
relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised
outside profit or loss, either in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount
expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation
authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period, taking into consideration interpretations and practices
prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences, except:

o when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and, at
the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting
profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

o in respect of taxable temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries, associates and
joint ventures, when the timing of the reversal of the
temporary differences can be controlled and it is
probable that the temporary differences will not reverse
in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, the carryforward of unused tax credits and any
unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised, to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available
against which the deductible temporary differences, the
carryforward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can
be utilised, except:

o when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from the initial recognition
of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a
business combination and, at the time of the transaction,
affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or
loss; and
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Notes to Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Income tax (continued)

o in respect of deductible temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates
and joint ventures, deferred tax assets are only
recognised to the extent that it is probable that the
temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable
future and taxable profit will be available against which
the temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at
the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will
be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be
utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at
the end of each reporting period and are recognised to the
extent that it has become probable that sufficient taxable profit
will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to
be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is
realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax
laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if
and only if the Group has a legally enforceable right to set off
current tax assets and current tax liabilities and the deferred tax
assets and deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied
by the same taxation authority on either the same taxable entity
or different taxable entities which intend either to settle current
tax liabilities and assets on a net basis, or to realise the assets
and settle the liabilities simultaneously, in each future period in
which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or assets
are expected to be settled or recovered.

3.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Income tax (continued)

Dividend income derived from the Company’s subsidiaries,
associate and joint ventures in Mainland China is subject to a
withholding tax under the prevailing tax rules and regulations of
the People’s Republic of China (“PRC”).

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the economic
benefits will flow to the Group and when the revenue can be
measured reliably, on the following bases:

(@ from the rendering of services, when the services have
been rendered;

(b) rental income, on the straight-line basis over the lease
terms;

(c) interest income, on an accrual basis using the effective
interest method by applying the rate that exactly
discounts the estimated future cash receipts over the
expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter
period, when appropriate, to the net carrying amount of
the financial asset;

(d) compensation income, when the Group’s legal right
has been established and the collectability is reasonably
assured; and

(e) dividend income, when the shareholders’ right to receive
payment has been established.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value where
there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received
and all attaching conditions will be complied with. When the
grant relates to an expense item, it is recognised as income on
a systematic basis over the periods that the costs, which it is
intended to compensate, are expensed.
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Notes to Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Employee benefits — pension schemes

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance for those employees who are eligible to participate
in the MPF Scheme. Contributions are made based on a
percentage of the employees’ basic salaries and are charged
to the statement of profit or loss as they become payable in
accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets of
the MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the Group
in an independently administered fund. The Group’s employer
contributions vest fully with the employees when contributed
into the MPF Scheme.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiary which operates in
Mainland China are required to participate in a central pension
scheme operated by the local municipal government. The
subsidiary is required to contribute a certain percentage of its
payroll costs to the central pension scheme. The contributions
are charged to the statement of profit or loss as they become
payable in accordance with the rules of the central pension
scheme.

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars, which is also the Company’s functional currency. Each
entity in the Group determines its own functional currency and
items included in the financial statements of each entity are
measured using that functional currency. Foreign currency
transactions recorded by the entities in the Group are initially
recorded using their respective functional currency rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions. Monetary assets
and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated
at the functional currency rates of exchange ruling at the end
of each reporting period. Differences arising on settlement or
translation of monetary items are recognised in the statement
of profit or loss.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currencies (continued)

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical
cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange
rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary
items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated
using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value was
measured. The gain or loss arising on translation of a non-
monetary item measured at fair value is treated in line with the
recognition of the gain or loss on change in fair value of the item
(i.e., translation difference on the item whose fair value gain or
loss is recognised in other comprehensive income or profit or
loss is also recognised in other comprehensive income or profit
or loss, respectively).

The functional currencies of certain subsidiaries, associates
and joint ventures are currencies other than the Hong Kong
dollar. As at the end of the reporting period, the assets and
liabilities of these entities are translated into Hong Kong dollars
at the exchange rates prevailing at the end of the reporting
period and their statements of profit or loss are translated
into Hong Kong dollars at the weighted average exchange
rates for the year. The resulting exchange differences are
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated
in the exchange fluctuation reserve. On disposal of a foreign
operation, the component of other comprehensive income
relating to that particular foreign operation is recognised in the
statement of profit or loss.

Any goodwill arising on the acquisition of a foreign operation
and any fair value adjustments to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities arising on acquisition are treated as assets
and liabilities of the foreign operation and translated at the
closing rate.
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Notes to Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currencies (continued)

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
the cash flows of those entities comprising the Group in which
their functional currencies are currencies other than the Hong
Kong dollar are translated into the presentation currency of the
Company at the exchange rates ruling at the dates of the cash
flows. Frequently recurring cash flows of those entities which
arise throughout the year are translated into Hong Kong dollars
at the weighted average exchange rates for the year.

Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(@  the party is a person or a close member of that person’s

family and that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(iiy  is a member of the key management personnel of
the Group or of a parent of the Group;

or

(b) the party is an entity where any of the following
conditions applies:

(i) the entity and the Group are members of the same
group;

(i) one entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow
subsidiary of the other entity);

(iy  the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the
same third party;
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Related parties (continued)
(b)  (continued)

(iv)  one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
other entity is an associate of the third entity;

(v)  the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or an
entity related to the Group;

(vi)  the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a);

(vii)  a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the entity (or of a parent
of the entity); and

(viii)  the entity, or any member of a group of which it
is a part, provides key management personnel
services to the Group or to the parent of the
Group.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, i.e., assets
that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready
for their intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of the
cost of those assets. The capitalisation of such borrowing
costs ceases when the assets are substantially ready for
their intended use or sale. Investment income earned on
the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending
their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the
borrowing costs capitalised. All other borrowing costs are
expensed in the period in which they are incurred. Borrowing
costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in
connection with the borrowing of funds.
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Notes to Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Dividends

Final dividends are recognised as a liability when they are
approved by the shareholders in a general meeting. Proposed
final dividends are disclosed in the notes to the financial
statements.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and declared,
because the Company’s memorandum and articles of
association grant the directors the authority to declare interim
dividends. Consequently, interim dividends are recognised
immediately as a liability when they are proposed and declared.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements
requires management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues,
expenses, assets and liabilities, and the disclosure of
contingent liabilities, at the end of each reporting period.
Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could
result in outcomes that could require a material adjustment to
the carrying amounts of the assets or liabilities affected in the
future.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies,
management has made the following judgement, apart from
those involving estimations, which has the most significant
effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements:

Income taxes

Significant management judgements on the future tax
treatment of certain transactions are required in determining
income tax provisions. The Group carefully evaluates tax
implications of transactions and tax provisions are set up
accordingly. The tax treatment of such transactions is
reconsidered periodically to take into account all changes in
tax legislation.

ISR ML

31 December 2017
2017612 A31H
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Notes to Financial Statements
s B

31 December 2017
2017412 A 31 H

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting
period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial period, are described below.

Impairment of non-financial assets

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators of
impairment for all non-financial assets at the end of each
reporting period. Indefinite life intangible assets are tested for
impairment annually and at other times when such an indicator
exists. Other non-financial assets are tested for impairment
when there are indicators that the carrying amounts may not
be recoverable. An impairment exists when the carrying value
of an asset or a cash-generating unit exceeds its recoverable
amount, which is the higher of its fair value less costs of
disposal and its value in use. The calculation of the fair value
less costs of disposal is based on available data from binding
sales transactions in an arm'’s length transaction of similar
assets or observable market prices less incremental costs
for disposal of the asset. When value in use calculations are
undertaken, management must estimate the expected future
cash flows from the asset or cash-generating unit and choose
a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present value
of those cash flows.

Dragon Crown Group Holdings Limited BEFIEEIERER AR
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Notes to Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

Impairment of accounts and bills receivables

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period
whether there is any objective evidence that a receivable is
impaired. To determine whether there is objective evidence
of impairment, the Group considers various factors such as
the probability of insolvency or significant financial difficulties
of the debtor and default or significant delay in payments.
Where there is objective evidence of impairment, the amount
and timing of future cash flows are estimated based on
historical loss experience for assets with similar credit risk
characteristics.

The Group maintains an allowance for estimated impairment
of accounts and bills receivables arising from the inability
of its debtors to make the required payments. The Group
makes its estimates based on the aging of its accounts and
bills receivables balances, debtors’ creditworthiness, past
repayment history and historical write-off experience. If the
financial condition of its debtors was to deteriorate so that
the actual impairment loss might be higher than expected,
the Group would be required to revise the basis of making
the allowance. The carrying amount of accounts and bills
receivables at 31 December 2017 was HK$43,111,000 (2016:
HK$31,052,000). Further details are given in note 21 to the
financial statements.

Impairment of an available-for-sale investment

The Group’s unlisted investments included in available-for-sale
investment is stated at cost less impairment because the range
of reasonable fair value estimates is so significant that the
Group is of the opinion that its fair values cannot be measured
reliably. The Group assesses at the end of each reporting
period whether there are any indicators of impairment for this
unlisted investment. This unlisted investment is tested for
impairment when there are indicators that its carrying amounts
may not be recoverable. An impairment exists when the
carrying value of an asset or a cash-generating unit exceeds its
recoverable amount. In determining the recoverable amount,
the Group considers various factors, such as value in use,
available data for disposing of such asset and other factors
relevant to this unlisted investment. The carrying amount of
this available-for-sale investment was HK$41,200,000 (2016:
HK$41,200,000). Further details are given in note 20 to the
financial statements.

ISR ML

31 December 2017
201712 A31H
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Notes to Financial Statements
B R SRR M

31 December 2017
2017412 A 31 H

5. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION
No separate analysis of segment information is presented by
the Group as over 90% of the Group’s revenue, results and
assets are related to the terminal storage and handling of liquid
petrochemicals business in Mainland China.
Revenue from a major customer whose entities shown below
are within the same group and in aggregate amounting to 10%
or more of the Group’s revenue, is set out below:
Customer A BFEA
Customer B XF B
Customer C ®FC
Customer D %P D

6. REVENUE
Revenue represents the net invoiced value of services
rendered for terminal storage and the handling of liquid
chemicals during the year, after business tax and value-added
tax.

7. OTHER INCOME
An analysis of other income is as follows:
Bank interest income RITHFBUA
Gross rental income HeWABREE
Loan interest income from RKE—HEEREL

ajoint venture FEWA

Foreign exchange gains, net bE 5 Wz - R
Others HAtb

Dragon Crown Group Holdings Limited #EF&EEZEREGRA A

pacEo
B

EEsBasH

MR AEERB 0% A - EE N
BERBNTEAMRE AL
SBAFFREARER  WAKEY
25|20 BERHBULOMN

KB AHEREELA10% KA LD
FREF(ETXHARECBR %
B) U AFIT

2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT TET
103,628 96,621
77,562 81,810
21,939 22,072
15,868 20,219
218,997 220,722

A

WASELANE R AR AR EBE 2 maE
S MEERH RGN ERFE
(REBR & E BRI ERIR) ©

Htlg A
HWADILT -
2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$'000
TR THAT
2,587 3,172
839 870
9,094 3,047
2,810 -
548 1,016
15,878 8,105




FINANCE COSTS

Interest on bank loans

PROFIT BEFORE TAX

Notes to Financial Statements

Profit before tax is arrived at after charging/(crediting):

Depreciation

Amortisation of prepaid
land lease payments

Minimum lease payments under
operating leases of office
premises and pipe racks

Auditor’s remuneration

Directors’ remuneration

Staff costs (excluding directors’
remuneration):
Wages, salaries and other benefits
Pension scheme contributions™

Gross rental income
Less: Outgoings

Loss on disposal of items of
property, plant and equipment
Foreign exchange losses/(gains), net

8.
RITERAF A
0.
Notes
F
e 15
Taft i S
2 5 16
WAEMERELR
KA RIKE
HEMK
Z SR &
EEMe 10
BT (TEE
BEME)
T% - HeREMET
BRIRGET IR
WA LLZE 7
B
BREWE  BEX
RBEEE 2 EE
BN (Wes) - FE

* As at 31 December 2017, the Group had no forfeited
contributions available to reduce its contributions to the
pension schemes in future years (2016: Nil).

ISR ML

31 December 2017
201712 A31H

MERE
2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHExT T
5,598 2,980
BRI EIRF
BREATR AR (GEA)
2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET T
51,900 51,780
912 924
13,246 14,273
1,435 1,380
6,777 6,923
22,838 22,698
4,435 4,395
27,273 27,093
(839) (870)
42 43
(797) (827)
2,837 1,112
(2,810) 4,194

* 201712 831 H « AREEIL &
RIRGFRNAR R EE R BB D H
RS FHEMER (20164 : &) ©
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Notes to Financial Statements
B R SRR M

31 December 2017
2017412 A 31 H

10. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION 10.

Directors’ remuneration for the year, disclosed pursuant to
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”), section
383(1)(a), (b), (c) and (f) of the Hong Kong Companies

ESHe

BEEEHAR AR ARESLE
mRA ([ EmARA]) - FERQBHEH
£383(1)@) * (b) * (c) & () AR AR]
(BBRESFZER) ROIE2HHE

Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies (Disclosure of HWAREEEEMSOT ¢
Information about Benefits of Directors) Regulation, is as
follows:
2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHBxT AT
Fees: e
— Executive directors —HITES - =
— Independent non-executive directors — B IEITES 540 540
Other emoluments of executive directors:  #{TE = H b3
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e R REYEF 6,201 6,347
Pension scheme contributions BRIRBETEIMHR 36 36
6,777 6,923
Salaries,
allowances Pension
and benefits scheme Total
Fees inkind contributions remuneration
- 1.1 BiRg
®E  REYEA BEEE agm
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TERL TER TER
2017
Executive directors: HITES:
Mr. Ng Wai Man RERLAE - - - -
Mr. Ting Yian Ann (resigned on BREREE(R2017F
22 September 2017) 9422 BEHE) - 2,659 - 2,659
Mr. Chong Yat Chin HAERE - 1,839 18 1,857
Ms. Chan Wan Ming [FE - 1,703 18 1,721
- 6,201 36 6,237
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Notes to Financial Statements
B R R M =E

31 December 2017
201712 A31H

10. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (continued) 10. EE#M& (Z)
Salaries,
allowances Pension
and benefits scheme Total
Fees inkind  contributions  remuneration
E2 = il
e REWER HEIfR B
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AT AT FAL AT
2016
Executive directors: HITESE
Mr. Ng Wai Man REREE - - - -
Mr. Ting Yian Ann et - 3,404 - 3,404
Mr. Chong Yat Chin HAERE - 1,476 18 1,494
Ms. Chan Wan Ming BBt - 1,467 18 1,485
- 6,347 36 6,383

The fees paid to independent non-executive directors of the
Company during the year were as follows:

Mr. Lau Sik Yuen BISHIR A&
Mr. Luo Shijie SRR A
Mr. Zhu Wujun FNEWE S

There were no other emoluments payable to the independent
non-executive directors during the year (2016: Nil).

Save as disclosed above, no remuneration was paid or
payable by the Group to directors of the Company during the
year (2016: Nil).

FARARBBILIFATEERNZ

WEWT

2017 2016

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET THTT

240 240

150 150

150 150

540 540

FARERNBYIFRITESEMF

B (20165 : &) -

B EXPTIERE SN -
BEEADNIENARRIESNIE

(20164

E) o
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Notes to Financial Statements
B R SRR M

31 December 2017
2017412 A 31 H

10.

11.

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (continued)

No remuneration was paid or payable by the Group to the
directors of the Company as an inducement to join or upon
joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office during
the year (2016: Nil).

There was no arrangement under which a director waived
or agreed to waive any remuneration during the year (2016:
Nil).

FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES

The five highest paid employees during the year included three
(2016: three) directors, details of whose remuneration are set
out in note 10 above. Details of the remuneration for the year
of the remaining two (2016: two) highest paid employees who
are not directors of the Company are as follows:

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind

Pension scheme contributions BRIRESEEIRK

The number of non-director highest paid employees whose
remuneration fell within the following bands is as follows:

10.

11.

e ERMEEMER

EEMe (=)

FR - AEEAEIFADNHEMNE
RAEENHE - ERINAREER
RS HIER/MAREEROBERE
(20164 : &) ©

RAFEER - HEESHEXFRENR
REAMEZTE (2016 5F : F) »

RAFERS LR FHMES BIE3H
(20164 : 3R EE - HHMFITH
R EXHIEE10 » R T (2016 4F :
ME) WIHFARTEZNRSH HIE
EFERHMFISEIIT

2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$000
FTEx TAT
2,617 2,683

18 18

2,635 2,701

N F T 5 BEIFE R RS M
REMHBLLT :

Number of employees

EENHE
2017 2016
Nil to HK$1,000,000 0Z%1,000,000/&7T - -
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 # 7T ZE 1,500,000 7T 1 2
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 # 7T £ 2,000,000 % 7T 1 =
2 2

No remuneration was paid or payable by the Group to the
five highest paid employees as an inducement to join or upon
joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office during
the year (2016: Nil).

Dragon Crown Group Holdings Limited BEFIEEIERER AR
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Notes to Financial Statements

INCOME TAX

Current — Hong Kong BNER— &
Charge for the year RELZW
Overprovision in prior years BAEFEBERE

Current — Elsewhere BNER— E ftbih 5
Charge for the year REFZW
Underprovision in prior years BAFERETR

Deferred — note 26 IEIE — 526

Total tax charge for the year NEEHIES HERE

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5%
(2016: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profits arising in
Hong Kong during the year.

Taxes on profits assessable in Mainland China have been
calculated at the rates of tax prevailing in Mainland China
in which the Group operates, based on existing legislation,
interpretations and practices in respect thereof.

Under the new PRC Corporate Income Tax Law and its
Implementation Rules (effective from 1 January 2008), the
PRC Corporate Income Tax rates for domestic and foreign-
invested enterprises are unified at 25%. The other major
tax concessions applicable to the Group’s Mainland China
subsidiary are detailed below.

Pursuant to the tax document Guoshui Han 2007 No. 2
“Approval on Corporate Income Tax” issued by the national tax
authority of Nanjing City, Jiangsu Province, the PRC, NJDC,
a subsidiary of the Company, was entitled to preferential tax
treatment with full tax exemption from PRC Corporate Income
Tax (“CIT”) for the first five profitable years, commencing from
1 January 2007, and thereafter is entitled to a 50% deduction
in the CIT rate for the subsequent five years. The assessable
income of NJDC was subject to CIT at a rate of 25% (2016:
12.5%) for the year ended 31 December 2017.

ISR ML

31 December 2017
201712 A31H

12. Fifd#R

2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHExT T
43 40

21) (25)
25,344 15,069
48 69
3,885 3,404
29,299 18,557

EEFEBRERAFEARBBESE
B 5T FERR RS A 16.5% (20164 -
16.5% ) BTt R4 o

AEBEF BAHE LG ERT
HEHNEARBRITEAR - 2B LB
BRBRMARTH R ERIA

BEFTHECEMETERE TR
Bl(B 200841 A1 BELAR) - A&
RONEDEMT R EMEHHER
—525% o 15 AR 2N 5 B P B A b T
BARIMEMEZHIER 2N TG

it o

RIEH BT & m R B BB
TR A5 {4 BRR (112007 255 [ BIA %
FISBiMER] - XA R EBRRE
TREAZAEETHFR - R2007F
1A1ERRERAERMNFEEA xS TR
REIZERER ([REMEH]) - &
BAFAIZHEEMSHR R
FARBEDNEE2017F12 A31 HIEFE
[EHFER TR A IR E TSR R
25% (2016 4F : 12.5%) #%x o
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Notes to Financial Statements

B R R AR BT EE

31 December 2017
2017412 A 31 H

12. INCOME TAX (continued)

A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit before
tax using the statutory rates for the jurisdictions in which the
Company and its subsidiaries are domiciled to the tax position
at the Group’s effective tax rate is as follows:

2017

Profit/(loss) before tax

Tax at the applicable tax rates
Income not subject to tax
Expense not deductible for tax
Tax loss utilised
Tax loss not recognised
Adjustments in respect of current
tax of previous years
Effect of withholding tax on
the distributable
profits of the Group’s
Mainland China subsidiary,
associate and joint ventures
Profit and losses attributable to
joint ventures and an associate

Tax charge for the year

12. P8R (&)

BARB NEWE AR AERDEER
BATE B R 5T B E AR BRI A
MB RS B AREERREAE

BT AR RO EBR DT -
Mainland
Hong Kong China Total
8 TPEHRAH wEt
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
FHER FHET FHET
BREL AT A, (E1E) (14,443) 101,549 87,106
RERAH R ERRIE (2,383) 25,387 23,004
BERBIUA (2,623) (43) (2,666)
L0 289 - 289
EERARIEEE (89) - (89)
RERIAEE 4,363 - 4,363
BEFE AT E
2B (21) 48 27
A& E A B A
A BE AR R
BEREA DA
wEAE B AR
- 3,885 3,885
BREMER
NRIEE R REE 486 - 486
NEEHIERZ 22 29,277 29,299

Dragon Crown Group Holdings Limited BEFIEEIERER AR



INCOME TAX (continued)

2016

Profit/(loss) before tax

Tax at the applicable tax rates
Lower tax rate due to concession
Income not subject to tax
Expense not deductible for tax
Tax loss utilised
Tax loss not recognised
Adjustments in respect of current

tax of previous years
Effect of withholding tax on

the distributable profits

of the Group’s Mainland

China subsidiary,

associate and joint ventures
Profit and losses attributable to

joint ventures and an associate

Tax charge for the year

Notes to Financial Statements

BREATEA,(B1R)

RERABR X EHNTIA
HRER2SHE TR’
BARBIA
T RIRE R R
EBRREEE
REERBIRER
BEFEEENIR
Z R
A& B P B A b P B
DA BERE R
BELEANE
iR

B

I

ABOER— MWD

FEAE N 2 &5 1R
REFBRIAFM

The share of tax attributable to an associate and joint
ventures amounting to HK$32,000 (2016: HK$131,000) and
HK$2,429,000 (2016: HK$1,675,000) is included in share
of profits and losses of an associate and joint ventures,

respectively, in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

12. P8R (&)

ISR ML

31 December 2017
201712 A31H

Mainland
Hong Kong China Total
/A HEAM FEE
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
FET T FET
(12,406) 111,043 98,637
(2,047) 27,761 25,714
- (14,556) (14,556)
(1,384) - (1,384)
823 1,864 2,687
(110) - (110)
4,167 — 4,167
(25) 69 44
- 3,404 3,404
(1,409) - (1,409)
15 18,542 18,557

EE—HBEAFARALLER
18 /32,000(20164F : 131,000/ 7T) &
2,429,000/ 7T (2016 £ : 1,675,000
BIL) ED BT ARG IBEERNE
E—FEBE R RALDE R KL

BB -
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e

31 December 2017
2017412 A 31 H

13. DIVIDENDS 13. BRE
2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$’000
FBx FAT
Interim dividend — HK1.5 cents PEIR S — TR B
(2016: HK2.0 cents) per ordinary share 1.5l (2016 4F : 2.0781L) 18,309 22,193
Proposed final dividend — HK1.5 cents EEARRE - FREER
(2016: HK2.3 cents) per ordinary share 1.5l (2016 4F : 2.371L) 18,309 28,074
36,618 50,267
On 17 August 2017, the board of directors declared an interim R201748 A17H  EESE T KT
dividend of HK1.5 cents per ordinary share. A& A 1.5 B 1L A R AR S, -
The proposed final dividend for the year ended 31 December HZE2017F12 A31 BHIEFEMES
2017 is subject to the approval of the Company’s shareholders REARBANEERRBEFAS L
at the forthcoming annual general meeting. BARRNRIIRIL A o
The proposed final dividend for the year ended 31 December 1201745 A 16 H B FARAREBEF K
2016 was approved at the annual general meeting on 16 May e FEMEHZ2016F12 A31 A1k
2017. FEMEBERABRS -

Dragon Crown Group Holdings Limited #EF&EEZEREGRA A
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Notes to Financial Statements
B S SRR M EE

31 December 2017
201712 A31H

14. EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO 14. FLAFHBARESFERET]
OWNERS OF THE COMPANY
The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on: SRERARN ZFTEER
2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FE&T
Earnings ZF|
Profit attributable to owners NATER AFE
of the Company, used in the basic R - ARETE
earnings per share calculation SRR EAREA R 50,276 70,598

Number of shares

RHEE
2017 2016

Shares & 12
Weighted average number of AAREETEBR

ordinary shares of the Company InEEE - ARETE

in issue, used in the basic BRERRZF

earnings per share calculation 1,220,628,000 1,128,459,519
No diluted earnings per share is presented as there were no R & =2017F & 20164F 12 A 31
potentially dilutive ordinary shares in issue for the years ended BIEFEATEETHEEHTER
31 December 2017 and 2016. I& - AR5 GRESSRT -
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Cost:

At 1 January 2016
Additions

Transfers

Disposals

Exchange realignment

At 31 December 2016
and 1 January 2017

Additions

Transfers

Disposals

Exchange realignment

At 31 December 2017

At 1 January 2016

Provided for during
the year—note 9

Disposals

Exchange realignment

At 31 December 2016
and 1 January 2017

Provided for during
the year—note 9

Disposals

Exchange realignment

At 31 December 2017

Net carrying amount:
At 31 December 2017

At 31 December 2016

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

A

12016%1 A1H
RE

EER

RE

ST

R2016E12 318
R2017E1A1H

AE

E 7

RE

i

12017412 A31 B

Accumulated depreciation: 23t :

12016%1 A1 8
FREE-HI

RE
B 5 AR

201612 A31 8
R2017%1 A1H
FREE KO

RE
3T
201712 A318

REFE -
2017512 A31 B

201612 A31 8

Notes to Financial Statements
e

31 December 2017
2017412 A 31 H

15. #WK - BERRMR

Construction Buildings and Motor Office

in progress structures vehicles equipment Total
HEIE BTRESEYM RE  BAERE #ct
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAL FEL TAL TAR TAL
5,392 979,133 5,027 1,750 991,302
9,255 3,868 = 24 13,147
(9,497) 9,497 - - -
= (1,283) (301) (59) (1,639
(336) (63,968) (260) (79) (64,643)
4,814 927,247 4,466 1,640 938,167
4,187 9,208 153 5 13,553
(3,636) 3,636 - - -
(2,752) (351) - (123) (3,226)
2N 70,939 285 86 71,581
2,384 1,010,679 4,904 1,608 1,020,075

- 209,128 3,782 1,343 304,253

= 51,029 518 233 51,780

- (166) (286) (62) (604)

- (1,474) (205) (73) (21,752)

- 328,517 3,809 1,451 333,777

- 51,416 393 91 51,900
- (275) - (114) (389)

- 26,813 244 84 27,141

- 406,471 4,446 1,512 412,429

2,884 604,208 458 9% 607,646
4814 598,730 657 189 604,390

Dragon Crown Group Holdings Limited #EF&EEZEREGRA A



16.

17.

Notes to Financial Statements

PREPAID LAND LEASE PAYMENTS

Carrying amount at 1 January ©®1 A1 BHERAEE
Amortised during the year -note 9

B 5

Exchange realignment

Carrying amount at 31 December
Current portion included in prepayments,
deposits and other receivables

Non-current portion JEmENED D

GOODWILL

Cost and net carrying amount at the FH) R FRAIBA
beginning and end of the year N AREFE

Impairment testing of goodwill

Goodwill acquired through business combinations is related
to the cash-generating unit of terminal storage and the
handling of liquid chemicals. Its recoverable amount has been
determined based on a value in use calculation using cash flow
projections based on financial budgets covering a five-year
period approved by senior management. The discount rate
applied to the cash flow projections is 8.9% (2016: 8.4%) and
cash flows beyond the five-year period are extrapolated using
an inflation rate of 5% (2016: 5%).

Assumptions were used in the value in use calculation of the
cash-generating unit of terminal storage and the handling of
liquid chemicals. The following describes each key assumption
on which management has based its cash flow projections to
undertake impairment testing of goodwill:

FREH— KT

W12 A31 BEEMEE
STATERRIE ek
E b e W IE R R D ER (D

ISR ML

31 December 2017
201712 A31H

16. HAffLiviE&
2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FH&T
35,418 38,791
912) (924)
2,627 (2,449)
37,133 35,418
(1,011) (940)
36,122 34,478

17. B8

2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHETT
1,210 1,210

EERER R

BREBEHEEZHEYRREL
BONEERTEREENHSEEES
iz EraESsEERARSRETE
RMEE 2 FRENE - MBELRE
%EQEIJETEEEEZ&MEETtt)’%Zﬁiﬁﬁ
%?Ek’t =HE o Iﬁimbgfﬁ E'JL}EHZ
ﬁﬁ¥$ﬁ89%<mﬂei-84%)'ﬁ
BEAFHENESREFER%
(20164 : 5%) Z iBIREHER] o

AERSELBMREB(CEMIBER
T&Fﬁ%@%ﬁﬁkaaﬁﬁﬂo
LTHAEEERAGERSRER
ALVETAEREIRAZ ZBEEER

0 .
2 -
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Notes to Financial Statements
e

31 December 2017
2017412 A 31 H

17. GOODWILL 17.

Impairment testing of goodwill (continued)

Discount rate — The discount rate used is before tax and
reflects specific risks relating to the relevant units.

Inflation rate — The basis used to determine the value assigned
to cost of sales and the revenue price are the forecast price
indices during the budget year in the PRC.

18. INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE 18.

Share of net assets EREEFE

Particulars of the Group’s associate as at 31 December 2017
are as follows:

Particulars Place of
of issued registration
Name shares held and business
REE#T &
% BRAD B MR
Tianjin Tianlong Registered PRC/
Liquid Chemicals capital of Mainland
Storage and US$1,950,000 China
Transportation Co., Ltd. #* A AR FE R E A
REREREBCLRE 1,950,000 % 7T
BRAR
W Pursuant to the articles of association, the Group has

significant influence but not unilateral control over this entity.
* The statutory financial statements are not issued by Ernst &

Young, Hong Kong or another member firm of the Ernst &
Young global network.

The interest in the associate is indirectly held by the Company.

118 Dragon Crown Group Holdings Limited BEFIEEIERER AR

[:]

BERENR ()

THEFE-ERZITRERERA - I
RBLERREELEM 2K ER

B -

BRE-RARBEESEBEEHEENX
ARWABRHEESTREFEES
BRI BRI -

R—HBELFNRE

2017 2016
HK$°000 HK$000
FTEx TAT
19,286 18,016

R20174F 12 A1 BAKEZBER
AR FIEMT -

Percentage of
equity interest

attributable to Principal

the Group activities
FEEEN

REEDL TEXEK

65 Terminal storage

and handling of
liquid chemicals

TE5R e TF N 12

# RIBEMEIRZA]  AEBEHZE
BEEATE  BEFE b

© EEMBRELEETERAE
B 35 75 o 22k B I 404 A
AFFIE -

R E QB 2B AR B HER

o

af



18.

19.

INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE (continued)

Notes to Financial Statements

18.

The following table illustrates the financial information of the

Group’s associate:

Share of associate’s profit/(loss)
for the year

Share of associate’s other
comprehensive income/(loss)

Share of the associate’s total
comprehensive income

Aggregate carrying value of the
Group’s investment in an associate

INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES

Share of net assets
Goodwill on acquisition

Loans to a joint venture

FEIEBEE R BIFA
A, (B18)
FEIEHE 1 F
Ht2mB A,/ (EE)
FEIEBE ARI2|
LONE
REER—EEE QR
BREZ #REE

19.

FEIEEEFE
WREEL cBmE

A—EAERRERZER

Loans to a joint venture of RMB103,000,000 (approximately
HK$123,672,000) (2016: RMB40,000,000 (approximately
HK$44,668,000)) and RMB60,000,000 (approximately
HK$72,042,000) (2016: RMB60,000,000 (approximately
HK$67,002,000)) are unsecured, bear interest at fixed rates
of 6.0% per annum (2016: 6.0%) and 6.4% per annum (2016:
6.4%), respectively, and repayable ranging from 2021 to
2022 (2016: 2021). The carrying amounts of loans to a joint
venture approximate their fair values. In the opinion of the

directors, these loans are considered as part of the Group’s

net investments in the joint venture.

ISR ML

31 December 2017
201712 A31H

R—REBEAFNRE (5

TRAPRARE ZHE AR ZHBEE
2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$'000
(109) 3,636
1,365 (1,177)
1,256 2,459
19,286 18,016
AEELEMHRE
2017 2016
HK$°000 HK$’000
FExT T
296,933 225,988
14,520 13,504
311,453 239,492
195,714 111,670
507,167 351,162

M — A& & 1 2 $2 £#£ 103,000,000 A
R ¥ (49123,672,00078 7T ) (20164F :
40,000,000 A ¥ (4944,668,000/47T )
160,000,000 A R #& (4972,042,000 7
7T ) (20164 : 60,000,000 A R #5 ( #9
67,002,000 7)) M EFAEEIR - 5
Bl LA %2 4E6.0% (2016 4F : 6.0%) & #%
F6.4%(20164F : 6.4%) M ETE B K5
B IR 2021 4 £ 2022 F (2016 4F :
2021 ) AR AERE - m—E&a & f
¥RENEFRZEEEEE QA ER
HoEERRZEEFBASEERE
EEFIRERN D -
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Notes to Financial Statements
s B R

31 December 2017
2017412 A 31 H

19.

INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES (continued) 19. REBELENRE(Z)
Particulars of the Group’s joint ventures are as follows: AEEEGEPENFBEOT
Percentage of
Particulars Place of Btk
of issued registration Ownership Voting Profit Principal
Name shares held and business interest power sharing activities
HEERT
a7 REGFE SRMRESLE  HEEER REE  EHER TEEH
Ningbo Ningxiang Paid-up capital of PRC/ 60 60 60 Terminal storage
Liquid Chemicals RMB?7,350,000 Mainland and handling of
Terminal Co., Ltd.#* HRBA China liquid chemicals
BREARIEE 7,350,000 AR e/ RE(LBRIEHE
BRABRAA R E A @7 REE
Ningbo Xinxiang Paid-up capital of PRC/ 60 60 60 Terminal storage
Liquid Chemical RMB4,200,000 Mainland and handling of
Store Co., Ltd.** HRBA China liquid chemicals
ERAAREL 4,200,000 AR e/ R BRIEE
IRRERRA* R E A @7 REE
Weifang Sime Darby Paid-up capital of PRC/ 50 50 50 Terminal storage
Liquid Terminal RMB460,000,000 Mainland and handling of
Co., Ltd."" BRBAR China liquid petrochemicals
("WSDL") (note 30) 460,000,000 AR EE HE,/ A IS
R EE LR fEIY B RRE
BRAR ™ (TWSDLJ)
(PBi7E 30)
The interests in the joint ventures are indirectly held by the AAREERBEELENER
Company.
# Pursuant to the articles of association, the Group has joint 5 RIFAZERMA] - A& EAh

control of these entities with other joint venture partners.

& Young, Hong Kong or another member firm of the Ernst &

Young global network.

WSDL, which is considered a material joint venture of the
Group, is engaged in terminal storage and handling of liquid
petrochemicals in Mainland China and is accounted for using
the equity method.

The statutory financial statements are not audited by Ernst

Acquired during the year ended 31 December 2016

Dragon Crown Group Holdings Limited BEFIEEIERER AR

B RIS % %TE‘E% 2

* EEM B mARIL IR BB LG
il =5 75 P o 22k B R A A EL B A B
AGIE S

" R20164F 12 A 31 BItFEWEE

WSDLAAEEBE —RHEEMNA L1
¥ EREAMTERER RIS
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19.

INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES (continued) 19.

Notes to Financial Statements

The following table illustrates the summarised financial

information in respect of WSDL adjusted for any differences in

accounting policies and reconciled to the carrying amount in

the consolidated financial statements:

Current assets (including cash and cash

equivalents of HK$103,706,000
(2016: HK$30,123,000))

Non-current assets, excluding goodwill

(including construction in progress
of HK$367,385,000
(2016: HK$868,969,000))

Current liabilities

Non-current liabilities

Net assets

Reconciliation to the Group’s
interest in a joint venture:

Proportion of the Group’s ownership

Group’s share of net assets of a joint
venture, excluding goodwiill

Goodwill on acquisition

Carrying amount of the investment

Revenue

Depreciation

Amortisation

Interest expenses

Tax

Profit/(loss) for the year/period

Other comprehensive income/(loss)
for the year/period

Total comprehensive income/(loss)
for the year/period

ISR ML

31 December 2017
201712 A31H

REBELENHRE (B

IREGRWSDLEYI IS ERBZ (230
SR BRCEMZRFELAR) B

REVEE (8235 108,706,000/8 7T
(2016 £F : 30,123,000/ 7T)

ZRe RA2EEN)

FRBEE - TBEBHE (B

367,385,000 87T

(2016 £ : 868,969,000 7T)

ZHERETIE)
mEBRE
FRBAE

BEFE

AEBER—HEAZEDLE
ZREEEE
ARE L A RSP
AEBERE-—HEELEL
BERE TEERE
WEBEL < BE
REZREE

YA

e

BRI

IR

F/Bra,/ (B1E)

F/HREMEE
WA (E1R)

F/PRZEBA
(B518) AR

$1EE T B T SRR RO T -
2017 2016
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FHIL
232,441 78,969
1,441,888 922,277
(733,166) (373,702)
(395,761) (223,340)
545,402 404,204
50% 50%
272,701 202,102
14,520 13,504
287,221 215,606
2017 2016
HK$°000 HK$'000
FH FHT
44,301 16,895
(10,483) (143)
(840) (527)
(14,561) (31)
(1,180) (4,300)
(15,830) 524
34,723 (19,524)
18,893 (19,000)
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Notes to Financial Statements
e

31 December 2017
2017412 A 31 H

19. INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES (continued) 19. REELEMRE (E)
The following table illustrates the aggregate financial TEHBAEHEEIAETE 5%
information of the Group’s joint ventures that are not 7 EHMBEER -

individually material:

2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$ 000
FET FAT
Share of joint ventures’ profit for the year  JE{G A & D EF T 5,081 4,640
Share of joint ventures’ other EIEE &5
comprehensive income/(loss) Hib2mk A (EiE) 1,411 (1,304)
Share of the joint ventures’ total R B
comprehensive income e NE 6,492 3,336
Aggregate carrying amount of REBREGEDRE
the Group’s investments "B 7 BIREE
in joint ventures 24,232 23,886
20. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENT 20. THHENKRSE
2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$ 000
FET FAT
Unlisted investment, at cost FELTIRE - FREKAR 41,200 41,200
As at 31 December 2017, the unlisted investment with a f£2017F12A31H ZEEE AR
carrying amount of HK$41,200,000 (2016: HK$41,200,000) 41,200,000787T(20164F : 41,200,000
was stated at cost less impairment because the range of BIT) 2 IEE TR B IR AR A RE
reasonable fair value estimates is so significant that the R AASEAREMZEE K
directors of the Company are of the opinion that its fair value RN BEERARFREZRBEARETRE
cannot be measured reliably. The Group does not intend to A SEEE - AEESEEAHEE
dispose of it in the near future. EAFELTHIRE -

122 Dragon Crown Group Holdings Limited #EF&EEZEREGRA A



21.

Notes to Financial Statements

ACCOUNTS AND BILLS RECEIVABLES 21.
Accounts receivable JE Y BR TR
Bills receivable FEU %

The Group’s trading terms with its customers are mainly
on credit, except for new customers, where payment in
advance is normally required. The credit period is generally 30
days, extending to up to 60 days for major customers. The
Group seeks to maintain strict control over its outstanding
receivables. Overdue balances are reviewed regularly by senior
management. The Group did not hold any collateral or other
credit enhancement over its accounts receivable balance.
Accounts receivable are non-interest-bearing.

An aging analysis of the accounts receivable at the end of the
reporting period, based on the invoice date, is as follows:

Current to 30 days BHEZ 30K
31 to 60 days 31 260X
61 to 90 days 61 E90K
Over 90 days 90 RN E

ISR ML

31 December 2017
201712 A31H

FEM AR B SR i
2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$’000
TR TAT
41,461 30,558
1,650 494
43,111 31,052

BRETEP —RBFELNTIN  AEH
MEFPAZZHEAY - ERHE-—R
BB0K  EBEPHFGHIR AT
REGOK - NEBBEMBEHE KRB
EREEN - SREREEEREX
B R o 7N 5 B 30 4 L U AR AR
BRREEMERmREMER R
Tt o FRUBRRAL BT S, o

RIERR - RIBERBHMERD
FEUER BRI D AT AT

2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$’000
FEx TR
33,119 26,125
6,946 3,911
1,394 102

2 420

41,461 30,558
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Notes to Financial Statements
e

31 December 2017
2017412 A 31 H

21. ACCOUNTS AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (continued) 21. BKERRER(Z)
An aging analysis of the accounts receivable that are not REEVER B FEU R R A BR B D AT 2R
considered to be impaired is as follows: BN
2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$’000
TERT THET
Neither past due nor impaired BEARBHTI AR E 33,119 26,125
Within 90 days past due #BHIQ0 KA 8,340 4,013
Over 90 days past due BHIQ0 XA £ 2 420
41,461 30,558
Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate to BT 7k 780 BA 78 AR S (B 1Y FE U BE X 5 B
customers for which there was no recent history of default. HANP S HE /R SRR R ARG o
Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate to AR ERBENEREREG TR
independent customers that have a good track record with P(EANEEBERMFNEELE)
the Group. Based on past experience, the directors of the B - ERNBEKE - KARIEER
Company are of the opinion that no provision for impairment A AR CEEEVTESEAEE NG
is necessary in respect of the balances as there has not been A AR A2 gk E - B ER:
a significant change in credit quality and the balances are still SERRVERE R -

considered fully recoverable.

22, PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 22, FfIR - REREMEBURIEA
RECEIVABLES

2017 2016

HK$’000 HK$’000

FEx T

Prepayments SiEUNES 6,653 9,861
Deposits and other receivables e R E b EWGRIE 13,136 3,522
19,789 13,383
Portion classified as current assets (note) D BARBEERZD (M:E) (16,718) (7,756)
Portion classified as non-current assets DB AIEREEENID 3,071 5,627
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22,

23.

Notes to Financial Statements

PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES (continued)

Note:

As at 31 December 2017, included in deposits and other
receivables was a receivable from WSDL, a joint venture of the
Company, of HK$10,530,000 (2016: HK$2,490,000), which was
unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand.

None of the above assets is either past due or impaired.
The financial assets included in the above balances relate to
deposits and receivables for which there was no recent history
of default. The carrying amounts of these deposits and other
receivables approximate their fair values.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and bank balances He RIRTTHER
Time deposits with original maturity
of less than three months TEHFR

Time deposits with original maturity

of more than three months EHITERR
Cash and cash equivalents on the RERE SRR TR A
consolidated statement He ke EEY

of financial position

At the end of the reporting period, the cash and bank
balances denominated in Renminbi (“RMB”) amounted
to HK$60,486,000 (2016: HK$73,081,000). RMB is not
freely convertible into other currencies, however, under
Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and
Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign
Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange
RMB for other currencies through banks authorised to conduct
foreign exchange business.

22,

23.

FREZHMETE=EAZ

FREDHMEBB=TAZ

ISR ML

31 December 2017
201712 A31H

AR EHEREMBKRIT (=)

G

R2017F 128318 BHEERE R
HEWHREARBARBIZAEDRE
WSDLH)—% 10,530,000 7T (2016 4F :
2,490,000 7T ) K FEWGRIE - 32K IE 3
I - BB RBIEERK(EIE -

Lt B ERERBEATNRRIE o B4
SABENEREERKIIY R
RIS R BB FHIAAR - %FK
T REMRBEFIENRAERE AR
BRE -

BRakReERY
2017 2016
HK$°000 HK$000
52,863 92,412
74,382 30,709
- 85,000
127,245 208,121

MARREIR » AARE (AR
FHERIR & K IR1T 4582 60,486,000
7 7T (2016 £ : 73,081,000/ 7T ) °
ARET BB ERKEMER - A
i AR 35 AP B P 3 B9 SN B B R 001 K2
©E EERMNESTERT  A%5E
BHEERERBETINEEBIR
17 BARB S EME o
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Notes to Financial Statements
e

31 December 2017
2017412 A 31 H

23.

24,

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (continued)

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily
bank deposit rates. Short term time deposits are made
for varying periods of between one day and three months
depending on the immediate cash requirements of the Group,
and earn interest at the respective short term time deposit
rates. The bank balances are deposited with creditworthy
banks with no recent history of default.

OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS

Other payables E b ERIE
Accruals FEETE R

As at 31 December 2017, included in other payables was a
payable of HK$1,201,000 (2016: HK$1,117,000) due to the
Nanjing Chemical Industry Park Management Committee,
which is the parent company of Nanjing Chemical Industry
Park Company Limited (“Nanjing CIPC”), a non-controlling
interest of the Group. The amount represents the remaining
outstanding balance due to acquiring a prepaid land lease.
Upon certain conditions being fulfiled by the Nanjing Chemical
Industry Park Management Committee, such as land levelling,
the amount will be settled.

As at 31 December 2017, included in other payables was a
dividend payable of HK$10,105,000 (2016: Nil) due to Nanjing
CIPC, a non-controlling interest of the Group. The amount was
unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand.

Other than the balances mentioned above, other payables are
non-interest-bearing and have an average term of one month.

Dragon Crown Group Holdings Limited BEFIEEIERER AR

23.

24,

BeRBEERM(E)

RITIREIRE BRITEZN R ZE
BREREAE - 52 HE BFRLARN
F1XRZBEARE - BFAREED
BRI S HBRME - WAER R B
FEHRE RN R BRERA B, o RITHESRTF
BT HEENTR - FERFHR
17 °

HttEREREHER
2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$’000
14,238 5,955
13,712 8,789
27,950 14,744

R20174F12 5318 » H fib fE 1+ 3
BABEENASEEIEERERER
{LETERAMRRQRA([ERCIPC))
WEAR BR{EBIEXERERE
B2MFIE1,201,000/87T (20164
1,117,000 7T) ° 2 REIEE R A%
1S T8 Lt 70 & M FE A B R (BB R0E
B  FEACBRTEREERES
ERRE TR (I3 ) 15 - 3%

B TEE -

R2017 512 A31 B - EfbFE {308
NEEEMNANEBIEERESRRE R
CIPCHy I% £.10,105,0007 (2016
FF) o RN BEAERE  RENIE
ZEE o

B LTt ERSD - AN FIAS
THERFHEFMS1EA -



25.

INTEREST-BEARING BANK LOANS

Current
ik FaN
Unsecured

EER

Unsecured

EER

Total current

AR

Non-current
E ik Fiay
Unsecured

R

Unsecured

EAR

Total non-current

BERBHD

Total
by

Effective
interest
rate (%)
BIRME %)

Hong Kong Interbank
Offer Rate ("HIBOR”),
plus 1.4%
BRRTRRASHX
([BRBTRAFRENE])
+1.4%

HIBOR, plus 1.9%
BRRITARREHE +1.9%

HIBOR, plus 1.4%
BARTRARRENE+1.4%

HIBOR, plus 1.9%
EARTRFFEFE+1.9%

Notes to Financial Statements
B S SRR M EE

25. FEMITER

Maturity
HEA

2018
(2016 Ni)

2018%
(20164 : &)

2018
(2016: il
20184
(2016% : &)

2019

(2016: 2018 10 2019)

20194

(20164 : 2018FZ 20195)

2019 t0 2021
(2016: 2018 0 2021)
2019522021 %

(20164 : 2018F £ 2021 %)

31 December 2017
201712 A31H

2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000
Fiégn TiETL
49,000 =
1,500 =
50,500 =
149,583 197,583
28,500 30,000
178,083 227,583
228,583 227,583
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Notes to Financial Statements

B R R AR BT EE

31 December 2017
2017412 A 31 H

25. INTEREST-BEARING BANK LOANS (continued)

Analysed into:

Bank loans repayable:

Within one year

In the second year

In the third to fifth
years, inclusive

Notes:

A :
RITEHEE -
15R
F2F
FEIE5F (B
BEME)

(a) All borrowings are denominated in Hong Kong dollars.

(b)  The carrying amounts of bank loans approximated their fair
values at the end of the reporting period.

() As at 31 December 2017, the Company and one of the
subsidiaries have guaranteed certain banking facilities of the
Group up to HK$51,000,000 (2016: HK$110,000,000), of
which Nil (2016:Nil) has been utilised.

128 Dragon Crown Group Holdings Limited SEFIEEIERER A A

25.

ARETRR(E)
2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000
TEx AL
50,500 -
152,583 50,896
25,500 176,687
228,583 207,583

BieE

@  FTAERABITEHE -

() MI|BEHR - RITEROREER
HARERE -

(© H2017F12831H AR AIRE
— BB AR EALAEERSE
51,000,000 7t (2016 % :
110,000,000/ 7T ) B9 5 FiR1TRL &
REER  BEFHTARTHE
(20164 : £&) -



26. DEFERRED TAX

Movements in deferred tax liabilities during the year are as

follows:

At 1 January 2016

Deferred tax charged to the statement of

profit or loss during the year — note 12
Withholding tax paid on repatriation

of earnings from a subsidiary,

joint ventures and an associate
Exchange realignment

At 31 December 2016 and 1 January 2017

Deferred tax charged to the statement

of profit or loss during the year — note 12
Withholding tax paid on repatriation

of earnings from a subsidiary,

joint ventures and an associate
Exchange realignment

At 31 December 2017

Notes to Financial Statements

26. ERERIR

T

R20164F1 A1H

B F AR RINRARTEN I — 12

H—EREBAR - &L HE K —fEHE
N RIE A FI 2 SR FEH R

E 34 9

MR2016F 12 A31 B KR2017F1 A1H

B F AR SR INRARTEN I — 12

H—EREBAR - &L HE K —fEHE
N RIIE B A FI 2 SR FEHFR

BEE 5 Fe 2

MR20179F 12 A31 H

TSR ML

31 December 2017
201712 A31H

RAFEEELERAABESFHN

Withholding
taxes

EMB
HK$'000
THET

4,868

3,404

(3,541)
(224)

4,507

3,885

(4,626)
250

4,016

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a 5% to
10% withholding tax is levied on dividends declared to foreign
investors from foreign investment enterprises established in
Mainland China. The requirement is effective from 1 January
2008 and applies to earnings generated after 31 December
2007. A lower withholding tax rate may be applied if there is a
tax treaty between Mainland China and the jurisdiction of the
foreign investors. For the Group, the applicable rate is 5%.
The Group is therefore liable to withholding taxes on dividends
distributed by the subsidiary, an associate and joint ventures
established in Mainland China in respect of earnings generated
from 1 January 2008.

RIFEPECEMETE - MARBERH
BRI EVONE R ERPREIME B E BRI
B Ek 5% E10% M TEHF  Z
FHIEBH2008F 1 A1 HRBER @ Wil
AR 2007F12 A31 HZBREEXNA
F o P B i B R AN E 2 P )
ERERMTEREEERRE - RIAR
RIEFENF RN - wAEEmE -
HAMEES% - Ay AEBEAR
R B RS S OB A R) - — R
ERAIREERFERN20085F 1 A 1
B RS B FIKEE AR SAMTEE
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31 December 2017
2017412 A 31 H

26. DEFERRED TAX (continued) 26. ERERIE(Z)

The Group has tax losses arising in Hong Kong of REBBEEREBA 2R EEIE
HK$134,034,000 (2016: HK$112,739,000) that are available 134,034,000/ 7020164 : 112,739,000
indefinitely for offsetting against future taxable profits of the HIT)  AIEREANIREELAEE Y
companies in which the losses arose. Deferred tax assets have NEIR) BIRFERTORN] o BPEFRIE
not been recognised in respect of these losses as they have TMIBEENME A RD EE— R
arisen in subsidiaries that have been loss-making for some BARARESRATAAESELER
time and in the opinion of the directors of the Company, it is G| I = he =) = B i o e 2
not considered probable that taxable profits will be available B RIRIEF B A EE ©

against which the tax losses can be utilised.

There are no income tax consequences attaching to the AR BNRAN FRER Z B S BB PT
payment of dividends by the Company to its shareholders. BHER -
27. SHARE CAPITAL 27. B#F
2017 2016
HK$°000 HK$'000
THET FET
Authorised: EE
4,000,000,000 (2016: 4,000,000,000) 4,000,000,000 f&x
ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each (2016 4F : 4,000,000,000 /%)
BREBE0.108 T Lk 400,000 400,000
Issued and fully paid: ERTRHE :
1,220,628,000 (2016: 1,220,628,000) 1,220,628,000 i
ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each (2016 F : 1,220,628,000 %)
SREEC10E L2 LR 122,063 122,063

Dragon Crown Group Holdings Limited BEFIEEIERER AR



27.

28.

Notes to Financial Statements

SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

Note:

On 28 September 2016, the Company entered into an agreement
with Ping An of China Securities (Hong Kong) Company Limited
(“Placing Agreement”). Pursuant to the Placing Agreement, the
Company issued 110,966,000 shares at HK$1.25 per share on 31
October 2016. The aggregate gross proceeds and net proceeds
were approximately HK$138,708,000 and HK$133,496,000,
respectively. The share issuance expenses of HK$5,212,000 were
debited to the share premium account.

Further details of the above issuance of shares were disclosed in
the Company’s announcement dated 28 September 2016.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

A share option scheme was adopted on 23 May 2011 (the
“Share Option Scheme”) to provide incentives to eligible
participants (including employees, executives or officers,
directors including non-executive directors and independent
non-executive directors, advisers, consultants, suppliers,
customers and agents of the Company or any of its
subsidiaries) for their contribution to the long term growth of
the Group and to enable the Company to attract and retain
high calibre employees. During the years ended 31 December
2017 and 2016, no share options were granted, exercised or
cancelled by the Company under the Share Option Scheme.
There were no outstanding share options under the Share
Option Scheme as at 31 December 2017 (2016: Nil).

27.

28.

ISR ML

31 December 2017
201712 A31H

Bz (&)
BIFE

20164F9 A28 H - AR RIERHEF 22:E
7 (B8 ) BRA BRI R ([ &
&) o MRSk - ANAFIR2016410
A 31 HAS AR 1.25 87317 110,966,000
BB - TSRERERFEINOE
138,708,000% JT. % 133,496,0005% JT °
5,212,000 7% 7T, 3 & B 17 7 32 FE B £ )4 1
AR R HIER

bt 2 B EATEE — FHBERAREIE
20164F 9 A28 H NERHE -

MRRx st ®

AREER 201145 A 23 B RN
ETEl ([T El]) B EREEE
B2REE(BEAR R KEAEMKE
RNAIZEE - TRABSEHEBE -
EE(PRIIFRTES KB ILIENTT
BE) B FRE- fHED- ¥
PRRIE)  RIEHAREE KL
RIELH ZBRR © REAR T RN RIE
BRA8®2EE - REZE2017TF K
201612 A1 HIEFEAN * &NAF]
BEREERETSERD - 17FEE
$H B IR #E o R2017F12A31H -
REARME ST &I T 2 P AR i N R IETT 0
(20164 : 48) °
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31 December 2017
2017412 A 31 H

29. RESERVES

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and movements therein

are presented in the consolidated statement of changes in

equity.

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

Capital reserve

Capital reserve mainly represents the difference between
the consideration and the book value of the share of the
net assets acquired in respect of the acquisition of non-
controlling interests.

Reserve funds

In accordance with the relevant regulations applicable in
the PRC, the Group’s subsidiary established in the PRC
is required to transfer a certain percentage of its statutory
annual profit after tax (after offsetting any prior year’s
losses), if any, to the reserve funds until the balance
of the funds reaches 50% of its respective registered
capital. Subject to certain restrictions as set out in the
relevant PRC regulations, the statutory surplus fund may
be used to offset against accumulated losses of the PRC
subsidiary. The amount of the transfer is subject to the
approval of the board of directors of the PRC subsidiary.

Exchange fluctuation reserve

The exchange fluctuation reserve comprises all foreign
exchange differences arising from the translation of the
financial statements of operations in the PRC which are
dealt with in accordance with the accounting policy set
out in note 3.

Dragon Crown Group Holdings Limited BEFIEEIERER AR
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30.

Notes to Financial Statements

ACQUISITION OF A JOINT VENTURE

On 28 January 2016, Overseas Hong Kong Investment
Limited (“OHKIL”), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company, entered into an equity purchase agreement
with Sime Darby Overseas (HK) Limited (“SDOHK”) and
Weifang Sime Darby Port Co. Ltd., independent third parties,
to acquire a 50% equity interest in WSDL, at a total cash
consideration of RMB60,850,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$71,998,000). WSDL is principally engaged in the
construction, management and operation of Weifang Liquid
Terminal at Weifang Port in Mainland China. Further details
of the above acquisition are disclosed in the Company’s
announcement dated 28 January 2016.

On 23 May 2016, the acquisition has been completed and
WSDL has become a joint venture of the Group since then.
Goodwill of RMB12,093,000 (approximately HK$14,435,000)
was recognised. On 20 June 2016, the Group further injected
capital of RMB55,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$64,933,000) to WDSL.

On 23 June 2016, OHKIL, SDOHK and WSDL entered into a
capital injection agreement (the “Capital Injection Agreement”)
pursuant to which SDOHK and OHKIL shall each further
inject capital in the amount of RMB100,000,000 (“Capital
Injection”) into WSDL. The obligations of the parties to the
Capital Injection Agreement to complete the Capital Injection
are conditional upon the satisfaction of the various conditions
precedent which were fulfilled on 17 August 2016. Further
details of the above Capital Injection are disclosed in the
Company’s announcement dated 23 June 2016.

On 30 August 2016, 14 October 2016, 22 November
2016 and 5 April 2017, the Group had further injected
capital of RMB27,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$31,350,000), RMB20,000,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$23,064,000), RMB30,000,000 (equivalent
to approximately HK$33,761,000) and RMB23,000,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$25,912,000) to WDSL,
respectively.

30.

ISR ML

31 December 2017
201712 A31H

BR—KaER%

20164F1 A28 H » AQ Az M
2EWBARIEINEBREBRAF
(TOHKILD) BFRZEEBINERE) A
fR A& ([SDOHK) K # 3 #rigE =7
BRAR CBYE=7)UEWSDL
BI50% % #E 2] 32 Ik RE BE B 15 5
K {8 560,850,000 A R ¥ (4 F R
71,998,000/ 7T) © WSDLZEZE A
N B 2R - BEREE TR
{bmiEsE - WhE 2 FIBHRAE BT
2016F 1 A28 HZ A& °

20165 A23H @ W BB & =
K- WSDLE WK AAEBHNEZ
% WHER 12,093,000 A RE (49
14,435,000 7T ) 2 7 & - 1K2016
F6H20H A& B RWSDLE &
55,000,000 A ER#5 (4755 7264,933,000
PETL) °

720166 523 H » OHKIL + SDOHK
HWSDLAT M ZEm&E( ZE %
#1) o it - SDOHK R OHKILE & B
#E— P RWSDL/E % 100,000,000 A &
B(DEE]D) - FBWRETA T THOE
BRRAAGFSIEDREHR 20165
817 BERKE - ARIETT ° Lax
ENFIBEARR2016F6 H23H 2

DEHRE -

7201648 A30H * 2016410 A 14
H 2016411 A22 B 201744 A5
H ' AEE#E—FSAWSDLAFEE
27,000,000 A R # (#9574 31,350,000
7 7T ) ~ 20,000,000 A R B8 ( 49 & R
23,064,000/ 7T ) * 30,000,000 A &
(#9%7233,761,0007% 7T ) 1 23,000,000
AR (4% 25,912,000/87T) °
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30.

31.

ACQUISITION OF A JOINT VENTURE (continued)

On 15 September 2017, OHKIL and SDOHK passed a capital
injection resolution (the “Capital Injection Resolution”) pursuant
to which it is resolved that OHKIL and SDOHK shall each
further inject capital in the amount of RMB70,000,000 (‘2017
Capital Injection”) into WSDL. The obligations of the parties to
the Capital Injection Resolution to complete the 2017 Capital
Injection are conditional upon the satisfaction of the various
conditions precedent which were fulfilled on 25 September
2017. Further details of the above 2017 Capital Injection
are disclosed in the Company’s announcement dated 15
September 2017.

On 29 September 2017, the Group had further injected
capital of RMB30,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$35,241,000) to WDSL.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CASH FLOWS

(@) Major non-cash transactions

()  As at 31 December 2017, the Group recorded
other payables and accruals in relation to additions
of property, plant and equipment of HK$836,000
(2016: HK$82,000). The additions have had no
cash flow impact on the Group during the years
ended 31 December 2017 and 2016.

(i)  During the year ended 31 December 2017,
HK$2,556,000 (2016: HK$4,220,000) in relation
to the purchase of property, plant and equipment
was transferred from prepayments to property,
plant and equipment.

Dragon Crown Group Holdings Limited BEFIEEIERER AR
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Notes to Financial Statements

31. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CASH FLOWS (continued)

(@) Major non-cash transactions (continued)

(i)

(v)

During the year ended 31 December 2017,
loan interest income of HK$9,094,000 (2016:
HK$3,047,000) from a joint venture was settled
through a receivable from a joint venture.

As at 31 December 2017, the Group recorded
other payables and accruals in relation to dividend
payable to Nanjing CIPC, a non-controlling interest
of the Group, of HK$10,105,000 (2016: Nil). The
payable have had no cash flow impact on the
Group during the year ended 31 December 2017.

During the year ended 31 December 2016,
HK$6,061,000 in relation to the acquisition of a
50% equity interest in WSDL was transferred from
deposits and other receivables to investments in
joint ventures.

31.

ISR ML

31 December 2017
201712 A31H

REReRERMEF)

(@)

TEHFRRERZ (B)

(i)

(v)

HZE2017F12A31 B ILF
B RE—REEEEDN
9,094,000 7T (2016 4F :
3,047,000 7T ) B 5K F B
WABBERK—KE =T
FERBRFAE ©

®2017 €12 A31 8 -
RNRAREEEEEEN
M RCIPC( & & H 3
ERER) RSB EM
FERFHIERERHX
10,105,000 7% 7T (2016 £F :
T) o REZE2017F 12 A
NHIEFEHAE - %ZEE
NHIBH RSB EESL

A<= B gE
HenerE-

HZE2016F12A31HILF
= - BRAUEEWSDL 50%
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31. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF 31. GABSRERMEE)
CASH FLOWS (continued)

(b) Changes in liabilities arising from financing (b) RETEFEENEGEERS
activities

Interest-bearing bank loans

TEBRITEXR
HK$’000
FAET
At 1 January 2017 R2017F1 A1 H 227,583
Changes from financing cash fows  BIER&REE (4,598)
Interest expenses B 5,598
At 31 December 2017 ®20174 12 A31 B 228,583
32. PARTLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARY WITH MATERIAL 32. BFEEXRIERRESZDIERMK
NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS BT
Details of the Group’s subsidiary that has material non- AT #E5EREHEE EAEIER R
controlling interests are set out below: REBWBARIFFE
NJDC PRES
2017 2016
Percentage of equity interest held by RN S FTH m mRE D
non-controlling interests in NJDC IREB DL 9.99% 9.99%
2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$’000
FBx FH&T
Profit for the year allocated FRDE T IEERER
to non-controlling interests Z g Al 7,531 9,482
Dividends paid to non-controlling ST TR AFEERR
interests of NJDC il ¥\ - 10,438
Accumulated balances of non-controling ~ FEIZERRHE SR RE Bk
interests at the end of 2 BIEER
the reporting period 51,618 49,879

Dragon Crown Group Holdings Limited BEFIEEIERER AR
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32. PARTLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARY WITH MATERIAL
NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS (continued)

32. REXFERERZBSHAM
BT (&)

NREA LB QR M E R
Z o IR ESBEIIREER A AR

The following tables illustrate the summarised financial
information of the above subsidiary. The amounts disclosed

are before any inter-company eliminations: i
2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET AT
Revenue WA 241,464 249,898
Other income EHbggA 1,681 2,315
Total expenses BE (166,988) (156,307)
Profit for the year F R 76,157 95,906
Total comprehensive income for the year ~ FRETEURA 4258 113,168 62,649
Current assets MENE EE 85,488 76,630
Non-current assets ERBEE 655,745 653,333
Current liabilities mENEME (178,316) (186,092)
Non-current liabilities ERBEE (26,415) (24,567)
Net cash flows from operating activities KETEFEIR S REFR 128,695 148,388
Net cash flows used in investing activities ~ & /EBFTAE S REF5E (13,255) (9,520)
Net cash flows used in financing activites ~ BIE/EBFTABE S R= 55 (121,247) (158,298)
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents IR MIR & EEWR L F58 (5,807) (19,430)
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33. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS

(a)

(b)

As lessor

The Group leases certain portion of its office building
under an operating lease arrangement, with the lease
negotiated for a term of five years (2016: five years).

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had total
future minimum lease receivables under non-cancellable
operating leases with its tenant falling due as follows:

1F R

Within one year
In the second to fifth years, inclusive

As lessees

The Group leases certain portion of its office premises
and pipe racks under operating lease arrangements. The
leases are negotiated for terms ranging from three to
fifteen years (2016: three to fifteen years).

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had total
future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable
operating leases falling due as follows:

15ER

Within one year
In the second to fifth years, inclusive

After five years 5% F

Dragon Crown Group Holdings Limited #EF&EEZEREGRA A

33.

F2ESF (REERMF)

F2ESF (BREERMF)

EEHARH

(a)

(b)

EREAA

REBRBEEHELHAE
EEFENSETHBY  ZAL
HESSEEA (20164 : 54F) o

RE|BEHR - NEEH AR
HEEHENRRRERS R
BAN T HIFHRE,YER :

2017 2016

HK$’000 HK$'000

902 274

3,005 -

3,907 274
EREBA

AEERBEEEHELHREE
HETHAMERER -
RHOFHIHEAIE15F (2016
& 3F15%F) -

E aray
2%

RBEHR > NEER AR
HEEHENRRREES R
BANTHIFHRZA

2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET T
11,657 13,434
32,011 48,695
- 2,449
43,668 64,578




34.

Notes to Financial Statements
B G sk M EE

COMMITMENTS 34.

In addition to the operating lease arrangements detailed in
note 33 above, the Group had the following capital expenditure
commitments at the end of the reporting period:

EATH - BRI
BT RREY
A-MABEKTE

Contracted, but not provided for:
Buildings and structures
Capital injection to a joint venture

In addition, the Group’s share of a joint venture’s own capital
commitments, which are not included in the above, is as
follows:

BRTA - BREHE
BT RZEY

Contracted, but not provided for
Buildings and structures

31 December 2017
201712 A31H

i
Br EXHIFES3 TRl & ELHEZ
Gh o RIREHIR - AEEE N EAR
A S
2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET T
4,820 6,191
48,028 25,684
52,848 31,875
AN EXRET R 2 AEEREES

BOERG 2 ERESE  BIIMT -

2017
HK$°000
TERT

163,578

2016
HK$'000
THET

142,981

Annual Report 2017 FERE

M

139



Notes to Financial Statements
B R SRR M

31 December 2017
2017412 A 31 H

35. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 35. FBMALTES

B B 75 ¥R 3R EL At b 05 P &l Y
R REBRFR L LR
BEATETATEARRS ¢

(a) In addition to the transactions detailed elsewhere in (a)
these financial statements, the Group had the following
material transactions with related parties during the year:

2017 2016
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
BsE TERT FAT
Terminal service expenses: PSSERRTS R
Nanjing Chemical Industry Park FmREETER AR
Public Services Company Ltd. EEEREFAF 0) 6,419 3,001
Rental and auxiliary expenses: HERMBRY
Nanijing CIPC B R CIPC (ii) 12,317 13,181
Dragon Crown Investments EAME B AR AR
Limited (‘DC Investments”) ([BEMC TR ) (i) 1,680 1,680
Interest income: S N
WSDL WSDL (iv) 9,094 3,047
Notes: st -

)

v)

Terminal service expenses were charged in accordance
with the terms mutually agreed between the Group
and the related company which was a non-controlling
shareholder of NJDC.

Rental and auxiliary expenses were charged in
accordance with the terms mutually agreed between
the Group and a non-controlling shareholder of NJDC
for the use of pipe racks.

Rental expense was charged in accordance with the
terms mutually agreed between the Group and the
related company for the use of an office premise. DC
Investments is a company in which Mr. Ng Wai Man and
Mr. Chong Yat Chin, directors of the Company, have
98% and 2% interest in it, respectively.

The shareholder loans of RMB103,000,000 (2016:
RMB40,000,000) and RMB60,000,000 (2016:
RMB60,000,000) to WSDL were interest-bearing at
6.0% (2016: 6.0%) and 6.4% (2016: 6.4%) per annum,
respectively, unsecured and repayable in five years.

Dragon Crown Group Holdings Limited BEFIEEIERER AR
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Notes to Financial Statements

35. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(@) (continued)

The related party transactions in respect of items (i), (ii),
(i) and (iv) above also constitute connected transactions
or continuing connected transactions as defined in
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

(b) Commitments with related parties

() A subsidiary of the Group, as the lessee, entered
into a three-year office lease agreement ending
on 31 December 2018 with DC Investments.
As at 31 December 2017, the total operating
lease commitment that falls due within one
year was HK$1,680,000 (2016: HK$1,680,000)
and in the second to fifth years was nil (2016:
HK$1,680,000).

(i) A subsidiary of the Group entered into certain
agreements with Nanjing CIPC for the use of pipe
racks and auxiliary services for periods up to and
ending on 14 March 2022 and on 6 January 2023,
respectively. As at 31 December 2017, the total
operating lease commitments in relation to pipe
racks and auxiliary services falling due within one
year, in the second to fifth years, and beyond
the fifth year were approximately HK$9,977,000
(2016: HK$11,754,000), HK$32,011,000 (2016:
HK$47,015,000) and nil (2016: HK$2,449,000),
respectively.

(c) Details of the outstanding balances with related
parties are included in notes 22 and 24 to the financial
statements.

ISR ML

31 December 2017
201712 A31H

35. RAMALER(Z)
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FUAZTHEER S TIFEH
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(b) EIBAREA IR 2 HRIE

) AKEz—HHBRFME
A A EER T
BRE] S B E=20184F 12 A
S1HIEARHSFZMAE
HE W= - M2017F12 A
31 - 1F AR BK
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BIL) M E2ESF N
2 & E R T(20164F ¢
1,680,000787T) °

iy AEEz—HEHBARRE
ERCIPCR A AIREE
20223 A 14 B (B1E%
H)X%2023%F186H (1
ZB)LHREFERAERR
M8 e e ] ML T e o
2017128318 A
B8 T B SR e A A
N B2FEESFRF
LA b B HA 2 4l A 4 FR
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35. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued) 35. MBMALTESR(Z)
(d) Compensation of key management personnel of (d ETEBHNETEESIEASIEN
the Group
2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$’000
FExT T
Short term employee benefits HHEEERF 9,574 9,750
Post-employment benefits B AR A 71 71
Total compensation paid BENEEERE
to key management personnel ANE R BN R%E 9,645 9,821
36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 36. REESMEMIA
The carrying amounts of each category of financial instruments RERERR ST AENERR
as at the end of the respective reporting period are as follows: BT
Financial assets - loans and receivables SRMEE-BERRERRE
2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$’000
FEx T
Accounts and bills receivables FEYBR T N ik 43,111 31,052
Financial assets included STATE K ~ e R EHAM
in prepayments, deposits and JEUGRIER SR E 2=
other receivables (note 22) (FFzE22) 13,136 3,522
Cash and cash equivalents ReERREEFEEY 127,245 208,121
183,492 242,695
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36.

37.

Notes to Financial Statements

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY
(continued)

Financial liabilities — at amortised cost

Financial liabilities included in other
payables and accruals
Interest-bearing bank loans

HERITER

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES

The Group’s principal financial instruments comprise cash and
cash equivalents and interest-bearing bank loans. The main
purpose of these financial instruments is to finance the Group’s
operations. The Group has various other financial assets and
liabilities such as accounts and bills receivables, deposits and
other receivables, other payables and accruals, which mainly
arise directly from its operations.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments
are interest rate risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The board
of directors reviews and agrees policies for managing each of
these risks and they are summarised below.

Interest rate risk

The Group’s exposure to the risk of changes in market interest
rates relates primarily to the Group’s net debt obligations with
floating interest rates. The majority of the bank borrowings bear
interest at rates with reference to HIBOR. The Group mitigates
the risk by monitoring closely the movements in interest rates
and reviewing its banking facilities and borrowings regularly.
The Group has not used any interest rate swap to hedge its
exposure to interest rate risk.

AR A K
BAHERANTRAR

36.

37.

ISR ML

31 December 2017
201712 A31H

ERNBSHERIR
(&)

EHMAE —RBHEREIR

2017 2016

HK$°000 HK$’000

15,418 14,744

228,583 227,583

244,001 242,327
MERREEHRRER

AEENTIZcHIABRKERS MR
SEEMARGTRBRITER - %F2
BTATEANSAKEZEEES
B AEEBAHMZHESHEE
NEE PIMEEEREREELN
W IR R RR ~ 1Re R E M REUGR
FARE RN FTBAREHER

$%ﬁ%ﬂlﬁﬁﬁﬁ&ﬂ’]f§ﬂﬁﬁ%

ﬂ’rﬂ - EERREREE SR
%%Aﬁﬁjﬁﬁ*“ﬁﬁt—rﬂ

E’\thﬁzﬁ C ZEBRABEIT

FUE 2 e

AEEMHOTSAHEEBRMEE
BEAREELOZEF R ERFESL B
B - KD fﬁfﬂﬁ?ﬁ(ﬂ 8208
E\iﬁﬁﬁ TRIZEFSFEGTE - XEH
i8N 548 A1) R B Eh Y BE 12 K E HAAR
fﬁﬂmﬁﬁﬁfﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂﬁﬂ NS
I 7K B) A A 1A] 1) = 452 R 39 5 A1 R
B o
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Notes to Financial Statements

MR R
31 December 2017
2017412 A 31 H

37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND

POLICIES (continued)

Interest rate risk (continued)

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a

reasonably possible change in the HIBOR, with all other

variables held constant, of the Group’s profit before tax

(through the impact on floating rate bank borrowings).

31 December 2017
HIBOR

31 December 2016
HIBOR

Credit risk

2017912 A 31 H

37.

BRRITRER SN

20164412 A 31 H

FBIRIT R L B

The Group primarily provides services to recognised and

creditworthy third parties. It is the Group’s policy that

advanced payments are generally required for new customers.

In addition, receivable balances are monitored on an ongoing

basis and the Group’s exposure to bad debts is not significant.

Since the Group primarily provides services to recognised and

creditworthy third parties, there is normally no requirement for

collateral.
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FIE @ (&)

TREREEMAEZAEBTRLT -
EBBITRIEREF RS EEBE A
SERBRTRADET (FBREIZBRIT
BRI L) MEUNE -

Change in
profit
Change in before tax
basis points BR%E AT
EHE#E mAEE
HK$’000
FH&T
50 1,147
50 196
1EEER

AEBTEAERLEBRINE
= RHERE - AEBBRRRENE
P—RRAMTAMEK  besh - UK
TRESE X BFEER - AEBEAIE
RRERYTEN - ARAEEEEMR
ERANEBRENE=TRHER
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37.

Notes to Financial Statements

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (continued)

Credit risk (continued)

The credit risk of the Group’s financial assets, which comprise
cash and cash equivalents, accounts and bills receivables
and financial assets included in prepayments, deposits and
other receivables, arises from default of the counterparties,
with a maximum exposure equal to the carrying amounts of
these instruments. As at 31 December 2017, there was a
concentration of credit risk as approximately 57.2% (2016:
45.6%) of the Group’s accounts receivable were due from one
debtor.

Further quantitative data in respect of the Group’s exposure
to credit risk arising from accounts receivables, and financial
assets included in prepayments, deposits and other
receivables are disclosed in notes 21 and 22, respectively.

Liquidity risk

The Group monitors its risk to a shortage of funds by
considering the maturity of both its financial liabilities and
financial assets (for example, accounts receivable) and
projected cash flows from operations.

The Group’s objective is to maintain a balance between
continuity of funding and flexibility through the use of
internal funding and bank loans to meet its working capital
requirements.

37.

ISR ML

31 December 2017
201712 A31H

MERRERERRBE (&)

ZEmE (&)

rEENEREE(RRESRES
ZLEY - BUSRREREE - UEFTA
BRAR - Fe REMEKKREN S
BEE)NEERK DEEFELAM
B HEARBESNZEIANRE
E{E - R2017F12 A31 B ARAK
EERUBRF P B XI57.2%(20165F -
45.6%) KB —EBA - BWEFEEER
EERERE

B AR EEEWIR R KT AT
ReREMEWRENEREEEE
NEERRAE -T2 EES BIE
ERMIEE21 K22 o

REBE LA

AEEEERCRABREREE
(flan e AR A K FRAT IS & 1530
ERENZIHMAREREES TR
R o

AEENBRRBEBERNTES M
RITEF EESRKEEEBIEL
MG FE UneREEELH
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B R SRR Mt

31 December 2017
| 2017412 A 31 H

37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 37. MERBEEAERBE (Z)
POLICIES (continued)

Liquidity risk (continued) B E T E S ()
The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities as at AEERREBREN S LIARERIRT
the end of the reporting period, based on the contractual FHeRaENIHERNT

undiscounted payments, is as follows:

2017
On Less than 3to 1to5
demand 3 months 12 months years Total
3EAZE
BRER SR3IEA 12188 1Z5%F st

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TER TEr TER TER TER

Interest-bearing FHRBITER
bank loans - 1,192 54,749 181,735 237,676
Other payables H e 5RTE R
and accruals et &M 1,201 14,217 - - 15,418
1,201 15,409 54,749 181,735 253,094
2016
On Less than 3to 1to5
demand 3 months 12 months years Total
3EAZE
wER  DPR3EA 1216 A 15855 st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAET TAT FET FHET FAET
Interest-bearing FTEIRITER
bank loans - 1,083 3,310 239,027 243,420
Other payables HAb I EIE R
and accruals fEET & 1,117 13,627 - - 14,744

1,117 14,710 3,310 239,027 258,164
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37.

Notes to Financial Statements

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (continued)

Capital management

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital management are
to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern
and to maintain healthy capital ratios in order to support its
business and maximise shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes
adjustments to it in light of changes in economic conditions
and the risk characteristics of the underlying assets. To
maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust
the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital to
shareholders or issue new shares.

The Group monitors the capital ratio on the basis of the gearing
ratio, which is calculated as the net debt divided by equity
attributable to owners of the Company. Net debt includes
interest-bearing bank loans, less cash and cash equivalents.
The gearing ratio as at the end of the respective reporting
period was as follows:

Interest-bearing bank loans FTERITER

Less: Cash and cash equivalents

Net cash e F58

Equity attributable to owners
of the Company

BEAMILE

Gearing ratio

37.

o e MNREFHEY

EA/NSIE 2PN AL o

ISR ML

31 December 2017
2017612 A31H

MERRERERRBE (&)

BEXEE

AEBEEAEENTEZARA/RER
SEBRNFELEER  LAESR
REEARLE KM BEETER
KMEAREMRTREE -

REREE R HE AR RIFE AN
LR B K AR B A ) R B e R L
GAE - RERRHABREARE &
SEAHRARRRMNORE - [
RIREBANKEITHIA

AEEREEABLRERERL
xR gl e R TR BEFERARL
AAARIGEAE - AEFEE
EETBRITEN - HREMREEE
W REREHR - BERBHLEZD
T

2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET T
228,583 227,583
(127,245) (208,121)
101,338 19,462
1,087,806 1,004,304
9.3% 1.9%
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31 December 2017
2017412 A 31 H

38. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 38. FAFMBRRAE
COMPANY
Information about the statement of financial position of the ARAIRHE R 2 A BAR R K ZE
Company at the end of the reporting period is as follows: BEZIMT
2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET T
NON-CURRENT ASSETS EREBEE
Investments in subsidiaries RETB R RMIEE 969,923 850,668
Available-for-sale investment Al ERRE 41,200 41,200
Total non-current assets IERBEELE 1,011,123 891,868
CURRENT ASSETS REEE
Prepayments, deposits and BN BER
other receivables E fib U FRIE 272 889
Cash and cash equivalents ReRREeEFEEY 46,550 113,096
Total current assets MmN EREE 46,822 113,985
CURRENT LIABILITIES RBAE
Other payables and accruals H A JETRIE R EET B 1,896 1,894
Interest-bearing bank loans FTRIRITER 50,500 =
Total current liabilities mE B ERE 52,396 1,894
NET CURRENT ASSETS/(LIABILITIES) #EBEIEE (8&)FE (5,574) 112,091
TOTAL ASSETS LESS HEERRBERS
CURRENT LIABILITIES 1,005,549 1,003,959
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FRBER
Interest-bearing bank loans FTERITER 178,083 227,583
Net assets BEFE 827,466 776,376
EQUITY s
Share capital — note 27 AR AR — B 5E 27 122,063 122,063
Reserves (note) bt (5T 705,403 654,313
Total equity TR AR R 827,466 776,376
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Notes to Financial Statements

38. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE

39.

BA RS AR BT RE

31 December 2017
201712 A31H

38. FLTFMBRAE(Z)

COMPANY (continued)
Note: BEE -
A summary of the Company’s reserves is as follows: NAREBBENT :
Share Retained
premium profits Total
B 13 = {E REBER st
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FHT FHT FHT
At 1 January 2016 R20164%1 A1 H 431,509 173,063 604,572
Total comprehensive FAEE
loss for the year WA 4258 - (24,943) (24,943)
Final 2015 dividend 2015 FREFAR B = (25,522) (25,522)
Interim 2016 dividend 2016 FrhEAR & - (22,193) (22,193)
Issue of shares - note 27 AN BT —BisE 27 127,611 - 127,611
Share issuance expenses — note 27 AR BEITHRZ —HizE27 (5,212) = (5,212)
At 31 December 2016 and 2016412 531 H
1 January 2017 % 20171 A1H 553,908 100,405 654,313
Total comprehensive FAEE
income for the year LNt - 97,473 97,473
Final 2016 dividend 2016 FARHIAZ B - (28,074) (28,074)
Interim 2017 dividend 2017 FHHIRR B - (18,309) (18,309)
At 31 December 2017 R2017F12 A31H 553,908 151,495 705,403

APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved and authorised for
issue by the board of directors on 20 March 2018.

39. #EMBEHE

EESCR2018F3 A20 Bi@B MIE
TR TSR -
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Five Year Financial Summary

IFUMBHRE

REVENUE
PROFIT BEFORE TAX
Tax

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

Attributable to:
Owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests

ASSETS
Non-current assets
Current assets

Total assets

LIABILITIES
Current liabilities
Non-current liabilities

Total liabilities
Net assets

Total equity

This summary does not form a part of the audited financial statements.

A
BRB AT R
PR

F R

AT AR
ZA/NEIE 2SN
FEIER R s

aE
FERBEE
mBEE
BEMRE
&
nBaE
FRBEE

BfEMRE

BERE

EEAE

Year ended 31 December

HZE12A31BLEE

2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
HK$000 HK$000 HK$O000 HK$000 HK$000
FHET FHT FA&T FA&T THT
241,464 249,898 269,104 261,574 270,020
87,106 98,637 111,105 114,120 144,085
(29,299) (18,557) (23,010) (20,910) (25,778)
57,807 80,080 88,095 93,210 118,307
50,276 70,598 77,118 80,933 104,234
7,531 9,482 10,977 12,277 14,073
57,807 80,080 88,095 93,210 118,307
At 31 December
M12H831H

2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HKS000 HK$000
FHET T FH&TT FAET T
1,215,702 1,056,083 772,036 854,900 856,271
190,343 249,220 267,825 361,465 372,751
1,406,045 1,305,303 1,039,861 1,216,365 1,229,022
84,522 19,030 58,398 163,753 76,760
182,099 232,090 19,035 47,583 140,767
266,621 251,120 77,433 211,336 217,527
1,139,424 1,054,183 962,428 1,005,029 1,011,495
1,139,424 1,054,183 962,428 1,005,029 1,011,495
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Mr. NG Wai Man (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. CHONG Yat Chin
Ms. CHAN Wan Ming
Mr. TING Yian Ann (Chief Executive Officer)
(Resigned on 22 September 2017)

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Mr. LAU Sik Yuen

Mr. LUO Shijie

Mr. ZHU Wujun

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Mr. LAU Sik Yuen (Chairman)
Mr. LUO Shijie

Mr. ZHU Wujun

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Mr. LAU Sik Yuen (Chairman)

Mr. LUO Shijie

Mr. ZHU Wujun

Mr. NG Wai Man

Mr. TING Yian Ann (Resigned on 22 September 2017)

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Mr. LAU Sik Yuen (Chairman)

Mr. LUO Shijie

Mr. ZHU Wujun

Mr. NG Wai Man

Mr. TING Yian Ann (Resigned on 22 September 2017)

AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVES
Mr. CHONG Yat Chin
Ms. CHAN Wan Ming

COMPANY SECRETARY
Mr. LAU Lai Chi

AUDITOR
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Corporate Information
NEIEF

INVESTOR RELATIONS CONSULTANT
Financial PR (HK) Limited

5/F, BOC Group Life Assurance Tower
134-136 Des Voeux Road Central, Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN HONG KONG
Unit No. 3, 18th Floor

Convention Plaza, Office Tower

No. 1 Harbour Road

Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN THE PRC
No. 101, Hao-Jia-Ba, Xinli Village

County of Yudai

Nanjing Chemical Industry Park

Liuhe District, Nanjing City

Jiangsu Province, the PRC

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER OFFICE

IN CAYMAN ISLANDS
Conyers Trust Company (Cayman) Limited
(Formerly “Codan Trust Company (Cayman) Limited”)

Cricket Square

Hutchins Drive

P.O. Box 2681

Grand Cayman KY1-1111
Cayman Islands

HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER OFFICE

Tricor Investor Services Limited

Level 22, Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Hong Kong

REGISTERED OFFICE
Cricket Square

Hutchins Drive

P.O. Box 2681

Grand Cayman KY1-1111
Cayman Islands

COMPANY WEBSITE
www.dragoncrown.com
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